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ANNUAL REPORT 2017

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Twenty-Fourth Annual General Meeting of BTM Resources Berhad will be held at the Latitude 1.01, Level 1, Hotel
Armada, Lot 6, Lorong Utara C, Section 52, 46200 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan on Wednesday, 30th May 2018 at 11.30 a.m. for the following
purposes :-

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS
1.

To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st December 2017 together with the Reports of the
Directors and Auditors thereon.

(Please refer
Explanatory
Note 1)

2.

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of RM120,000 for the financial year ended 31st December 2017.

Resolution 1

3.

To re-elect Mr Choong Show Tong who retires in accordance with Article 64 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

Resolution 2

4.

To re-elect Mr Yong Hin Siong who retires in accordance with Article 64 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

Resolution 3

5.

To re-elect Messrs Folks DFK & Co. as Auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

Resolution 4

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Ordinary Resolutions :6

Continuation in Office as Independent Non-Executive Director
“THAT pursuant to Practice Note 4.2 of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance, approval be and is hereby given to Tan
Sri Dato’ (Dr) Abdul Aziz Bin Abdul Rahman who has served as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company for a
cumulative terms of more than twelve (12) years, to continue to act as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company.”

Resolution 5

7.

Continuation in Office as Independent Non-Executive Director
“THAT subject to the passing of Ordinary Resolution No. 2 and pursuant to Practice Note 4.2 of the Malaysian Code on Corporate
Governance, approval be and is hereby given to Mr Choong Show Tong who has served as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company for a cumulative terms of more than twelve (12) years, to continue to act as an Independent NonExecutive Director of the Company.”

Resolution 6

8.

Authority to Issue Shares Pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the Companies Act 2016.
“THAT subject always to the Companies Act, 2016 (“Act”), Articles of Association of the Company, Main Market Listing
Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) and approvals of the relevant governmental/regulatory
bodies (if any), the Directors be and are hereby authorised and empowered pursuant to Section 75 and Section 76 of the Act
to issue new shares in the Company from time to time at such price, upon such terms and conditions, for such purposes
and to such person or persons whomsoever as the Directors may, in their absolute discretion, deem fit, provided that the
aggregate number of shares issued in any one financial year of the Company pursuant to this resolution does not exceed ten
percentage (10%) of the total number of issued shares of the Company at the time of issue and that the Directors be and are
also empowered to obtain the approval for the listing of and quotation for the additional shares so issued on Bursa Securities
and that such authority shall continue to be in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company”.

Resolution 7

9.

Proposed Renewal of Existing Shareholders’ Mandate for Recurrent Related Party Transactions
“THAT approval be and is hereby given to the Company and its subsidiaries to enter into the category of recurrent transactions
of a revenue or trading nature with those related parties, as specified in Section 2.3 of the Circular to Shareholders dated 30th
April 2018 subject further to the following:-

Resolution 8

a)

the transaction are, in the ordinary course of business at arm’s length, on normal commercial terms and are on terms not
more favourable to the related party than those generally available to the public and not to the detriment of the minority
shareholders;

b)

disclosure is made in the Annual Report of the breakdown of the aggregate value of the transactions conducted pursuant
to the shareholders’ mandate during the financial year and propose that such approval shall continue in force until;

		

i)

the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company following the AGM at which the proposed
renewal of the recurrent related parties transaction mandate is approved, at which time it will lapse, unless by a
resolution passed at the AGM, the mandate is renewed; or

		ii)

the expiration of the period within which the next AGM after the date it is required to be held pursuant to Section
340(2) of the Companies Act 2016 (“Act”) but shall not extend to such extension as may be allowed pursuant to
Section 340(4) of the Act; or

		

iii) revoked or varied by resolution passed by the shareholders in a General Meeting,

			

whichever is the earlier.

AND THAT the Directors or any of them be and are hereby authorised to complete and do all such acts and things to give effect
to the transactions authorised by this Ordinary Resolution.”
10. To transact any other ordinary business for which due notice shall have been given.
By Order of the Board,
Chong Seok Tian (MIA 2502)
Wong Youn Kim (MAICSA 7018778)
Joint Secretaries
Kuala Lumpur
Date : 30th April 2018
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
(cont’d)

Notes :
i)
A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint up to two (2) proxies to attend and vote in his stead. A proxy may but need not be a
member of the Company.
ii)

Where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the appointments shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportion of his shareholding to be represented
by each proxy.

iii)

Where a member is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account
(“omnibus account”), as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991 there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt
authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

iv)

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under its Common Seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

v)

The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at HMC Corporate Services Sdn Bhd, Level 2, Tower 1, Avenue 5,
Bangsar South City, 59200 Kuala Lumpur not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

vi)

In respect of deposited securities, only members whose name appear on the Record of Depositors on 22 May 2018 (General Meeting Record of Depositors)
shall be eligible to attend the meeting or appoint proxies to attend and/or vote on his behalf.

EXPLANATORY NOTES ON SPECIAL BUSINESS
1.
To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2017 together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors
thereon
This agenda item is meant for discussion only as under the provision of Section 340(1) of the Companies Act, 2016, the Audited Financial Statements do not
require formal approval of the members and hence, this item will not be put forward for voting.
2.

Ordinary Resolution 5 - Continuing in Office as Independent Non-Executive Director
Tan Sri Dato’ (Dr) Abdul Aziz Bin Abdul Rahman has served as Independent Non-Executive Director for a cumulative term of fourteen (14) years. The Nomination
Committee has assessed his independence and recommended him to continue to act as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company on the following
justifications :a)

He has fulfilled the criteria under the definition of Independent Director as stated in the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad.

b)

He has vast experience and his legal background enables him to provide an objective and independent view point in enabling the Board to properly
discharge its duties and responsibilities.

c)

He has always actively participated in Board and Board Committee discussion and has continuously provided as independent view to the Board.

d)

He has the calibre, qualifications, experience and personal qualities and therefore would be able to provide constructive opinion and exercises independent
judgement and has the ability to act in the best interest of the Company.

Pursuant to Practice Note 4.2 of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (“MCCG”), the Board will seek the approval of the shareholders through a twotier voting process at the Twenty-Fourth Annual General Meeting of the Company for Tan Sri Dato’ (Dr) Abdul Aziz Bin Abdul Rahman to continue to serve as
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company.
3.

Ordinary Resolution 6 - Continuing in Office as Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr Choong Show Tong has served as an Independent Non-Executive Director for a cumulative term of fifteen (15) years. The Nomination Committee has
assessed his independence and recommended him to continue to act as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company on the following justification :a)

He has fulfilled the criteria under the definition of Independent Director as stated in the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad.

b)

He has vast experience as public accountants and enable him to provide financial and accounting view point in enabling the Board to properly discharge
its duties and responsibilities.

c)

He has always actively participated in Board and Board Committee discussion and has continuously provided independent view to the Board

d)

He has the calibre, qualifications, experience and personal qualities and therefore would be able to provide constructive opinion and exercises independent
judgement and has the ability to act in the best interest of the Company.

Pursuant to Practice Note 4.2 of the MCCG, the Board will seek the approval of the shareholders through a two-tier voting process at the Twenty-Fourth Annual
General Meeting of the Company for Mr Choong Show Tong to continue to serve as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company.
4.

Ordinary Resolution 7 - Authority for Directors to allot shares pursuant to Section 75 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2016
The Ordinary Resolution pursuant to Section 75 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2016 is a renewal of the last mandate granted to the Directors at the Twenty-Third
AGM held on 30th May 2017 and which will lapse at the conclusion of the Twenty-Fourth AGM.
This Ordinary Resolution, if passed,, will give the Directors of the Company, from the date of the Twenty-Fourth AGM, the authority to allot shares in the Company
up to and not exceeding in total ten per cent (10%) of the total number of issued shares of the Company for such purposes as the Directors deem fit and in the
best interest of the Company. This authority, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, will expire at the conclusion of the next AGM.
As at the date of this Notice, 12,849,400 new shares in the Company were issued pursuant to the last mandate, the proceeds of which were utilised for working
capital of the Group.
The renewal of this mandate will provide flexibility to the Company for any possible fund raising activities, including but not limited to further placing of shares,
for purpose of funding future investment, working capital and / or acquisitions.

5.

Ordinary Resolution 8 - Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature
(“Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate)
This Ordinary Resolution is to renew the Shareholders’ Mandate granted by the shareholders to the Company at the Twenty-Third AGM held on 30th May
2017. The Proposed Renewal of the Shareholders’ Mandate will enable the Group to enter into the Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a Revenue or
Trading Nature which are necessary for the Group’s day-to-day operations, subject to the transactions being in the ordinary course of business and on normal
commercial terms which are not more favourable to the related parties than those generally available to the public and are not to the detriment of the minority
shareholders of the Company.

3
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STATEMENT ACCOMPANYING NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
1.

Names of Directors who are standing for re-election/re-appointment at the Twenty-Fourth Annual General Meeting of the
Company :A)

		

Director retiring pursuant to Article 64 of the Company’s Articles of Association:
i)

B)
		

Mr. Choong Show Tong

(Resolution 2)

Director retiring pursuant to Article 64 of the Company’s Articles of Association:
i)

Mr. Yong Hin Siong

(Resolution 3)

The details of the abovenamed Directors who are standing for re-election/re-appointment are set out in the Directors’ Profile at pages
10 to 11 of the Annual Report, while their securities holdings (where applicable) are set out in the Analysis of Shareholdings – Directors’
Interest in the Company (page 80 of the Annual Report)

2.

Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings for year 2017
A total of five (5) Board Meetings were held during the financial year ended 31 December 2017. Details of attendance of Directors are set
out on page 17 of this 2017 Annual Report.
Name of Directors

Attendance

Tan Sri Dato’ (Dr.) Abdul Aziz Bin Abdul Rahman

5 out of 5 meetings

Dato’ Seri Yong Tu Sang

5 out of 5 meetings

Mr. Choong Show Tong

5 out of 5 meetings

Madam Yong Emmy

5 out of 5 meetings

Datuk Haji Mohamed Iqbal Bin M.M. Mohamed Ganey

5 out of 5 meetings

Mr Yong Hin Siong

4 out of 5 meetings

		
3.

Date, Time and Place of the Annual General Meeting :
Date

:

Wednesday, 30 May 2018

Time		

:

11.30 a.m.

Place

:

Latitude 1.01, Level 1,

				Hotel Armada,
				

Lot 6, Lorong Utara C, Section 52

				

46200 Petaling Jaya

				

Selangor Darul Ehsan

4.

Profile of Directors Who Are Standing For Re-election
The information required in compliance with the Appendix 8A, Section (4) under the BMSB Listing Requirement has been included in pages
10 to 11 herein.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Tan Sri Dato’ (Dr.) Abdul Aziz Bin Abdul Rahman
Chairman, Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Tan Sri Dato’ (Dr.) Abdul Aziz Bin Abdul Rahman
Chairman,

Dato’ Seri Yong Tu Sang
Managing Director

Datuk Haji Mohamed Iqbal Bin M.M. Mohamed Ganey
Member

Mr. Yong Hin Siong
Executive Director

Mr. Choong Show Tong
Member

Datuk Haji Mohamed Iqbal Bin M.M. Mohamed Ganey
Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr. Choong Show Tong
Independent Non-Executive Director
Madam Yong Emmy
Non-Executive Director
Madam Yong Ellen
Alternate to Madam Yong Emmy

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Datuk Haji Mohamed Iqbal Bin M.M. Mohamed Ganey
Chairman

COMPANY SECRETARIES
Mr. Chong Seok Tian (MIA 2502)
Ms Wong Youn Kim (MAICSA 7018778)

REGISTRARS
Sectrars Management Sdn Bhd
Lot 9-7, Menara Sentral Vista
No. 150, Jalan Sultan Abdul Samad
Brickfields
50470 Kuala Lumpur
Tel No : 03-2276 6138
Fax No : 03-2276 6131

Tan Sri Dato’ (Dr.) Abdul Aziz Bin Abdul Rahman
Member
Mr. Choong Show Tong
Member

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Tan Sri Dato’ (Dr.) Abdul Aziz Bin Abdul Rahman
Chairman
Datuk Haji Mohamed Iqbal Bin M.M. Mohamed Ganey
Member
Mr. Choong Show Tong
Member
Mdm Yong Emmy
Member

AUDITORS
Folks DFK & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
12th Floor, Wisma Tun Sambanthan
No. 2, Jalan Sultan Sulaiman
50000 Kuala Lumpur
Tel No : 03-2273 2688
Fax No : 03-2274 2688

REGISTERED OFFICE
Level 2, Tower 1, Avenue 5
Bangsar South City
59200 Kuala Lumpur
Tel No : 03-2241 5800
Fax No : .03-2282 5022

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Choong Show Tong
Chairman

BANK

Tan Sri Dato’ (Dr.) Abdul Aziz Bin Abdul Rahman
Member

Bank Perusahaan Kecil & Sederhana Malaysia Berhad

Alliance Bank Malaysia Berhad

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
Main Market
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
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GROUP FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(RM’000)		2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

Revenue

12,763

15,939

11,552

9,082

7,833

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax

(1,498)

404

(2,633)

(6,346)

(2,306)

(821)

406

(2,632)

(6,356)

(716)

Total Assets

41,016

39,922

39,394

41,110

33,911

Total Liabilities

12,157

13,521

13,599

13,302

15,152

28,859

26,400

25,795

27,808

18,759

26,561

25,061

25,061

24,441

40,734

(0.65)

0.32

(2.1)

(11.3)

(1.8)

-

-

-

-

-

22

21

21

23

46

Profit/(Loss) Attributable to Equity Owners
of The Company
Financial Position (RM’000)

Net Assets Attributable to Equity Owners of
The Company (Shareholders Funds)
Share Capital
Share Information (Sen)
Basic Earnings /(Loss)Per Share (Sen)
Gross Dividend Per Share (Sen)
Net Assets Per Share Attributable to Equity
Owners of The Company (Sen)
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE
DATO’ SERI YONG TU SANG
Position

Executive Director/ Managing Director

Age

71 years

Nationality

Malaysian

Qualification Held

Timber Merchant / Businessman

Working Experience & Occupation

His involvement in business commenced in 1973 with the setting up of BTM Timber Industries Sdn
Bhd, a company principally involved in logging and sawmilling operations. Since then, he has been
actively involved in the setting up and management of companies in a diverse area of business
ranging from timber, oil palm plantation, civil and building construction, property development and
sea transportation.
46 years of experience in trading of timber. Currently sits on the Boards of several private limited
companies in addition to companies within the BTM Resources Berhad

Date of Appointment

27th December, 1995

Other Directorship of

NIL

Public Listed Companies
Membership of

NIL

Board Committees
Family Relationship with Director

Husband of To’ Puan Ng Ah Heng, a major shareholder of BTM Resources and father of Yong

and/or Major Shareholder of BTM

Emmy, an Executive Director and major shareholder of BTM Resources ,father of Yong Hin Siong

Resources Berhad

and Yong Ellen,Executive Director and Alternate Director respectively of BTM Resources Berhad

Conflict of Interest with BTM

Saved as disclosed, and in notes no. 31 in the accompanying financial statements

Resources Berhad, if any
Convictions for offences within

NIL

the past 10 years other than
traffic offences
No. of Board Meetings attended
in the financial year

5/5
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE
(cont’d)

TAN SRI DATO’ (DR) ABDUL AZIZ BIN ABDUL RAHMAN
Position

Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Age

85 years

Nationality

Malaysian

Qualification Held

Barrister-At-Law Lincoln’s London. Hon. Doctor of Philosophy, University Utara Malaysia, Doctor
of Business Administration h.c. International Management Centre Buckkingham UK, Advanced
Management Programme (AMP) Harvard Business School Harvard University U.S.A.

Working Experience & Occupation

An advocate and solicitor and a partner in the law firm of Nik Saghir & Ismail, K.L. More than
35 years experience in managing public and private corporations. He started by serving the
government for 15 years, the first 7 years as an administrative officer and for 8 years he was in
judicial and legal service of the Federal Govt. He served as Magistrate, President Sessions Court,
Federal Counsel and Asst. Parliamentary Draftsman. His last government appointment was a
Federal Counsel and Legal Officer of the National Operation Council during the Emergency of 1969.
He subsequently served Malaysian Airlines from its inception in 1971 as Company Secretary and
Director of Legal Affairs. He retired in 1991 as the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer,
a position he held for 10 years

Date of Appointment

1st July, 2003

Other Directorship of

NIL

Public Listed Companies
Membership of

Member of Audit Committee

Board Committees

Chairman of Remuneration Committee
Member of Nomination Committee
Chairman of Risk Management Committee

Family Relationship with Director
and/or Major Shareholder of BTM

NIL.

Resources Berhad

Conflict of Interest with BTM
Resources Berhad, if any

NIL.

Convictions for offences within
the past 10 years other than

NIL.

traffic offences
No. of Board Meetings attended
in the financial year

5/5
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE
(cont’d)

DATUK HAJI MOHAMED IQBAL BIN M.M. MOHAMED GANEY
Position

Independent Non-Executive Director

Age

69 years

Nationality

Malaysian

Qualification Held

Diploma in Banking from the Institute of Bankers London. An Associate of the International Bankers,
London.

Working Experience & Occupation

He has vast experience in banking having worked with foreign bank in various senior positions for 29 years.
He had the opportunity to be exposed to various environment in the domestic as well as international markets
whilst serving as the Head of Product Development, Trade Finance, Standard Chartered Bank Malaysia Berhad.
He was also an active member of the Export Credit Refinancing (ECR) Committee chaired by Bank Negara
Malaysia and currently by EXIM Bank, a committee member of APEC, for standardization of import and export
documents chaired by EXIM Bank, a committee member of Cross Border Barter Trade chaired by Malaysian
Banking Berhad, an examiner for the International Trade Finance (DP 06), paper of the Institute of Bankers
Malaysia Diploma in Banking and Financial Services examination and a resident trainer for the Institute’s
International Trade. His immense contribution to the banking fraternity and to Bank Negara Malaysia has been
well received and recognized.
He is the Group Executive Director of SPM Holdings Sdn. Bhd. a major recycler in the country since 2000.
He is also Chairman of Patchee Bakery Sdn. Bhd, a company involved in food production for more than 100
years. He is also the Chairman of MIG Resources Sdn. Bhd. an investment holding company with investment
in properties, food production and restaurants.
He has been involved in a number of social and religious bodies such as Persatuan Muslimin India Malaysia
(PERMIM), Angkatan Kemajun Islam PJ and Selangor, Chairman of Building Committee.

Date of Appointment

21st January, 2010

Other Directorship of

NIL

Public Listed Companies
Membership of

Chairman Of Audit Committee

Board Committees

Member of Remuneration Committee
Member of Risk Management Committee

Family Relationship with Director

NIL

and/or Major Shareholder of BTM
Resources Berhad

Conflict of Interest with BTM

NIL

Resources Berhad, if any
Convictions for offences within

NIL

the past 10 years other than
traffic offences
No. of Board Meetings attended
in the financial year

5/5

9
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE
(cont’d)

CHOONG SHOW TONG

YONG EMMY

Position

Independent Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Age

62 years

43 years

Nationality

Malaysian

Malaysian

Qualification Held

Associate Member of the Institute of Chartered

Degree in Bachelor of Arts majoring in Japanese

Accountants in England & Wales Admitted as

Studies and Economics, MBA (Finance) from

a Member (Public Accountant) of MIA in May

Oklahoma City University.

1983.
Working Experience & Occupation

He started his career as an Article Clerk in April

Started her career in July 1997 as a Business

1978 and later became an Office Manager in

Executive in Itochu Asia Pte Ltd, and Itochu

a Chartered Accountants firm in London. In

Pulp & Paper Asia Pte Ltd Singapore, both

September 1983, he worked as an Office

companies dealing with paper and wood pulp.

Manager in Christopher Chooi & Co. a firm of

She has gained experience in marketing &

Chartered Accountants in Kuala Lumpur. Since

trading. Appointed as Business Development

October 1984 till now he is the Sole Proprietor

Manager of Mizam Pte Ltd.

of Allan Choong & Co, a Chartered / Public
Accountants firm in Kuala Lumpur

8 years of experience in trading & marketing
of wood-based products. Currently sits on the
Board of several private limited companies

Date of Appointment

19th May, 2003

11th November, 1999

Other Directorship of

NIL

NIL

Membership of

Member of Audit Committee

Member of Remuneration Committee

Board Committees

Member of Remuneration Committee

Public Listed Companies

Chairman of Nomination Committee
Member of Risk Committee Meeting
Family Relationship with Director

NIL

Daughter of Dato’ Seri Yong Tu Sang, the

and/or Major Shareholder of BTM

Managing Director of BTM Resources Berhad

Resources Berhad

and To’Puan Ng Ah Heng, a major shareholder of
BTM Resources Berhad. Sister of Yong Hin Siong
Executive Director of BTM Resources Berhad and
Yong Ellen, an alternate director to Yong Emmy.

Conflict of Interest with BTM

NIL

Resources Berhad, if any
Convictions for offences within

Saved as disclosed, and in note no. 31 in the
accompanying financial statements

NIL

NIL

5/5

5/5

the past 10 years other than
traffic offences
No. of Board Meetings attended
in the financial year
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE
(cont’d)

Position

YONG ELLEN

YONG HIN SIONG

Non-Executive Alternate

Executive Director

Director to Mdm Yong Emmy
Age

40 years

38 years

Nationality

Malaysian

Malaysian

Qualification Held

Bachelor of Arts (Design), Postgraduate

Bachelor of Arts from Macquarie University in

Diploma in Design and Master of Design from

New South Wales, Australia.

Curtin University of Technology.
Working Experience & Occupation

Started her career as a Management Trainee

After graduated from Macquarie University

in the subsidiary company, BTM Marketing &

in New South Wales, Australia in 2004, he

Trading Sdn. Bhd. on 1st June 2002.

joined a timber consortium company as a
management trainee focusing on operation
management. He was promoted to manager
of sales and purchases department in charge
of purchasing raw material and sales of
finished products whereby he gained valuable
experience sourcing for raw materials from
various countries.
Subsequently,

he

also

gained

working

experience in manufacturing of plywood,
managing a golf and country resort, oil palm
plantation and logging operation in Malaysia
and Papua New Guinea.

Date of Appointment

14th September, 2002

2nd May, 2014

Other Directorship of

NIL.

NIL.

NIL.

NIL.

Family Relationship with Director

Daughter of Dato’ Seri Yong Tu Sang, the

Son of Dato’ Seri Yong Tu Sang, the Managing

and/or Major Shareholder of BTM

Managing Director of BTM Resources Berhad and

Director of BTM Resources Berhad and To’Puan

Resources Berhad

To’Puan Ng Ah Heng, a major shareholder of BTM

Ng Ah Heng, a major shareholder of BTM

Resources Berhad and sister of Yong Emmy, Non-

Resources Berhad and brother of Yong Emmy,

Executive Director and major shareholder of BTM

Non-Executive Director and major shareholder of

Resources Berhad and Yong Hin Siong Executive

BTM Resources Berhad and Yong Ellen, alternate

Director of BTM Resources Berhad.

Director to Yong Emmy.

Conflict of Interest with BTM

Saved as disclosed, and in note no. 31 in the

Saved as disclosed, and in note no. 31 in the

Resources Berhad, if any

accompanying financial statements

accompanying financial statements

Convictions for offences within

NIL

NIL

- as alternate to Madam Yong Emmy

4/5

Public Listed Companies
Membership of
Board Committees

the past 10 years other than
traffic offences
No. of Board Meetings attended
in the financial year
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
For the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded a loss before taxation of RM1.50 million compared to a profit before tax
of RM0.40 million in the previous financial year.
The Group’s revenue of RM12.76 million for the financial year ended 31 December 2017 represented a decrease of RM3.18 or 19.95%
compared to RM15.94 million recorded in the previous financial year.
The net assets per share as at 31 December 2017 was RM0.22 as compared to RM0.21 at 31 December 2016, the increase in net assets per
share was mainly due to surplus arising from the revaluation gain (net of deferred taxation) from properties, amounting to RM2.65 million which
has been credited to revaluation reserve.
The Group’s loss per share for the financial year ended 31 December 2017 is RM0.65 as compared to earnings per share of RM0.32 in the
previous financial year. The loss is mainly attributed to the decrease in Group’s revenue for the financial year.

DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for the financial year under review.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Corporate social responsibility is defined as open and transparent business practices that are based on ethical values and respect for community,
employees, the environment, shareholders and other stakeholders. (source: Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Corporate Social Responsibility
Framework For Public Listed Companies, issued on 11th September 2006)
The principles of corporate social responsibility has been observed and practiced by the Group in varying degrees except that these practices
have not been incorporated into a documented framework.
The principles and philosophies on corporate social responsibility are being reflected in the Group’s business practices as follows :1.

Providing quality products for the consumers

2.

Maximising the use of renewable / recycled materials and reducing wastes to incubate a safe and healthy working environment
for our employees to contribute at their peak potential and abilities

The Group will continue to improve its business practices, in an open and transparent manner, in-line with generic societal expectations of
ethical business behaviours. The Group will also continually assess the impact of the Group’s business activities on the community, employees,
the environment, shareholders and other relevant stakeholders.

PROSPECTS
In view of the negative outlook for the global economic environment, the Group is mildly pessimistic of its business prospects for the financial
year ending 31 December 2018 with the outlook for wood based products remained to be challenging for the rest of the year.
The Group will continue to focus on its core products of wood moulding and priming products and promote new products such as wood pellets,
which production has just been commissioned in the final quarter of financial year ended 31 December 2017.

APPRECIATION
On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank all our shareholders, bankers, business partners, associates and our esteemed customers. Our
appreciation also goes to the relevant regulatory authorities, various government agencies and local authorities.
In closing, I would like to record my profound appreciation to my fellow colleagues on the Board for their counsel, and to the management team
and employees for their support, dedication and commitment throughout the year.

TAN SRI DATO’ (DR) ABDUL AZIZ BIN ABDUL RAHMAN
Chairman
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Our Group primarily involved in wood-based industry comprising of wood moulding, priming timber and laminated timber, provision of kilndrying services, trading in sawn timber plywood and veneer, sawmilling and logging.
Our factory for manufacturing of wood pellet has commenced production in fourth quarter of 2017. Our operations are located wholly in
Malaysia with manufacturing and sawmill facilities based in state of Terengganu and a marketing office located in the state of Selangor.
Our moulding and priming timber and wood pellet are mainly exported to Australia, South Korea and Philippines, which contributed approximately
43% to the Group’s revenue. For local market, our customers are mainly dealers in wood products and local exporters of wood-based products.
For manufacturing moulding and priming timber, the major components of raw materials are rough sawn timber and rough sawn rubber wood
timber which are mainly sourced from sawmills in the states of Terengganu, Kelantan, Perak and Kedah. As for manufacturing of wood pellet,
the major component of raw materials are off-cut timber and saw dust and are mainly sourced from neighbouring sawmill in the state of
Terengganu.
For the Group’s trading business, plywood, veneer and sawn timber are mainly sourced from plywood factory and sawmill of related parties in
which directors of the Company have substantial interest.

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND CONDITION
Financial Information

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

12,763

15,939

11,552

9,082

7,833

Profit /(Loss) after tax (RM’000)

(827)

404

(2,632)

(6,356)

(716)

Shareholders’ equity (RM’000)

28,859

26,400

25,795

27,808

18,760

Total Assets (RM’000)

41,016

39,922

39,394

41,110

33,911

987

2,778

8,273

13,803

721

Borrowings (RM’000)

4,185

5,022

5,954

5,976

5,866

Debt / Equity (%)

14.50

19.02

23.08

21.49

31.27

Earnings /(Loss) per share (sen)

(0.65)

0.32

(2.1)

(11.3)

(1.8)

Net assets per share (RM)

0.22

0.21

0.21

0.23

0.46

Revenue (RM’000)

Cash, Bank and fixed deposits (RM’000)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded revenue of RM12.76 million, a decrease of RM3.18 million compared to
RM15.94 million recorded in previous financial year ended 31 December 2016, mainly due to lower production volume and selling price of wood
products achieved in the current financial year.
Loss after taxation for financial year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to RM0.83 million as compared to a profit after taxation of RM0.40
million registered in previous financial year ended 31 December 2016, which is a deterioration of profit amounting to RM1.23 million mainly
due to lower production volume and profit margin of wood products.
Cash and bank balances (inclusive of fixed deposits) of the Group had decreased from RM2.78 million to RM0.99 million mainly due to utilisation
of cash for purchase of plant and machineries, repayment of bank borrowings and working capital purposes.
The Group’s borrowings decreased by RM0.84 million due to repayment of term loan instalments during the financial year. For financial year
ended 31 December 2017, other than capital incurred for factory set-up costs and purchase of plant and machineries for manufacturing of
wood pellet and wood moulding business, there are no other material capital commitments incurred by the Group that will have material impact
on the Group’s financial results and position.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
(cont’d)

REVIEW OF OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Due to the challenging business environment, our Group had suffered a loss before tax of RM1.50 million as compared to a profit before tax of
RM0.40 million in the previous year mainly due to lower production volume and lower selling price achieved during the current financial year
and the production of wood pellets at the end of the financial year is facing some initial production issues.

ANTICIPATED KNOWN RISKS OR STRATEGIES TO MITIGATE SUCH RISKS
Competition Risk
The Group’s core business is subject to various competitive challenges posted by competitors, ranging from marketing efficiencies to product
quality. Any of these factors may negatively impact the Group’s profitability. To remain competitive, we intend to improve our productivity,
further improve on the quality of our products and export to new markets, which in turn will improve our sales and profitability.

Foreign Exchange And Price Risks.
Our Group’s products are mainly exported to foreign markets, which will directly be exposed to exchange rates and price fluctuations that may
have effects to the revenue of our Group. We will closely monitor exchange rates fluctuations of key foreign markets and refine pricing strategy
for our products, in addition to improving production efficiencies, thereby increasing the Group’s profit margin accordingly.

Credit Risk
Our financial performance and position are dependent on the credit worthiness of our customers and we normally grant them very short credit
periods and substantial part of customers is trading on cash basis. In the event of significant delay or default in payment by our customers, it
may adversely affect the Group’s financial position and results should there be any impairment made for the bad or doubtful debts. As part of
credit risk management, we normally request for cash on delivery for new customers and we will assess their credit standing before granting
any credit terms.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT
Possible Trend and Outlook
Our Board expects the timber market outlook to remain challenging under current global economic conditions, volatility of exchange rates
of key foreign markets against Malaysia Ringgit, coupled with intense competition. We will continue to focus on existing core business of
manufacturing of moulding and priming timber products and trading of sawn timber, veneer, plywood and wood pellet. We expect wood pellet
manufacturing, which has just commenced in fourth quarter 2017, will contribute positively towards the Group’s business performance in the
long run.
Despite the challenging market conditions and outlook, we are optimistic that the Group will deliver better financial performance in future
financial years, leveraging on our strong relationship with key customers and also our strengths in business development to achieve business
growth in our core markets.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of BTM Resources Berhad (“the Company”) recognises the importance of implementing high standards
of corporate governance in the Company for the purposes of enhancing business prosperity of the Group, comprising the Company and its
subsidiaries, with corporate accountability towards realizing the long-term aspiration of the Group, apart from safeguarding the interest of its
shareholders and assets of the Group. In adopting corporate governance practices, the Board is mindful of the five (5) pillars of transparency,
accountability, ethical culture, sustainability and financial performance.
As such, the Board seeks to embed in the Group a culture that is aimed at delivering balance between conformance requirements with the need
to deliver long-term strategic imperatives through performance, without compromising on personal or corporate ethics and integrity.
Following the introduction of the new Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (“MCCG”) by the Securities Commission of Malaysia on 26 April
2017, the Board is cognizant of the growing level of expectation for proper corporate governance and will take such steps as are necessary to
strengthen its existing governance practices throughout the Group.
This Statement provides an overview of the Company’s application of the Principles set out in the MCCG for the financial year under review
and up to the date of this Statement. The details on how the Company has applied each Practice as set out in the MCCG are disclosed in the
Corporate Governance Report, which is available for viewing on the Company’s website at www.btmresources.com.my

PRINCIPLE A – BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS
I

Board’s Roles and Responsibility
The Board is collectively responsible to the Company’s shareholders for the long-term success of the Group via its overall strategic
direction, its values and governance. The Board is led by experienced and knowledgeable Board members who provide the Company with
the core competencies and leadership necessary for the Group to meet its business objectives and goals.
All members of the Board are aware of their responsibility to take decisions objectively which promote the success of the Group for the
benefits of shareholders and other stakeholders. Although the Board has yet to formalize a Board Charter streamlining its remit, the roles
and responsibilities of the Board and its members are set out below:
The Board
The Board is responsible for proper governance and stewardship of the Group, which include providing strategic business direction,
development and control of the Group and initiatives to embrace governance responsibilities according to the MCCG and statutes. In
discharging its fiduciary and governance responsibilities, and in lieu of a formalized Board Charter, the Board has discharged the following
roles and responsibilities:
•

Reviewing and approving of corporate strategies and plans, monitoring their implementations through the annual budget and
financial plans;

•

Overseeing and monitoring the conduct and performance of the Company’s and Group’s businesses;

•

Overseeing the process for identifying principal risks and putting in place appropriate control systems, monitoring and reporting
mechanism to effectively monitor and manage these risks;

•

Appointing and assessing the performance of the Executive Directors and overseeing succession plans for the Senior Management team;

•

Overseeing the development and implementation of a shareholder communication policy for enhancing and protection of the
reputation of the Group;

•

Reviewing and overseeing the adequacy and the integrity of the management information and control system of the Group; and

•

Establishing a corporate culture which engenders ethical conduct and behaviour.

Apart from the above roles, the Board has reserved the following items for its deliberation and decision to ensure the direction and control
of the Company are in its hands:
•

Acquisition of Business and Investments;

•

Divestments and Disposals of Business and Investments;

•

Overseas Equity Venture;

•

Corporate Finance and Proposals;

•

Terms of key or main agreements not within the ordinary course of business;

•

Acquisition and Disposal of Properties;

•

Acquisition and Disposal of Fixed assets, other than Properties, amounting up to RM2,000,000 and above; and

•

Bank borrowing and finance arrangements.
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(cont’d)

To assist in the discharge of its stewardship role, the Board has delegated and conferred some of its authority and powers to the two
(2) Executive Directors and certain Board Committees, namely the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Risk Management Committee. Whilst the Board Committees are entrusted with the responsibility to oversee specific aspects of
the Company’s affairs in accordance with their respective terms of reference as approved by the Board and to report to the Board
their findings and recommendations, the Board has delegated the following responsibilities to the Executive Directors, comprising the
Managing Director and an Executive Director:
•

Overall responsibility for the business units and day-to-day management of the Group, organisational effectiveness and
implementation of Board policies, strategies and decisions;

•

The development (in conjunction with the Board) and implementation of short, medium and long term corporate strategies for the
Group, preparing business plans and reports with Senior Management and reporting or presenting to the Board on current and
future initiatives;

•

Providing leadership, supervision and control in managing a team of Senior Management Executives responsible for all functions
contributing to the success of the Group;

•

Overseeing that the Group has the appropriate risk management practices and policies in place;

•

The assessment of business opportunities which are of potential benefits to the Group;

•

Bringing material and other relevant matters to the attention of the Board in a timely manner;

•

Overseeing shareholders’ communications;

•

Appointing and, where appropriate, removing Senior Management, including the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary,
with the approval of the Board;

•

Evaluating the performance of Senior Management Executives;

•

Overseeing that the objectives as standards of performance of the Company are understood by the Management and employees;

•

Overseeing that the operational planning and control system are in place;

•

Monitoring performance results, where necessary;

•

Overseeing that the Group’s Financial Reports are drawn up in accordance with the relevant accounting standards and comply with
all requirements of Bursa Malaysia Main Market Listing Requirements and the Companies Act 2016;

•

Directing and monitoring all aspects business operations in a cost effective manner;

•

Effectively overseeing the human resource needs of the Group and key positions in the Group’s management structures, including
succession planning and talent retention are adequately addressed;

•

Overseeing the Group’s corporate identity, products and services are of acceptable standards and reflective of the market
environment in which the Group operates in; and

•

Assisting the Non-Executive Chairman in providing quality and timely information flows to the Board for establishing the agenda for
Board and Committee meetings.

In discharging their responsibilities, the Executive Directors can delegate and assign appropriate functions and responsibilities to the
Senior Management personnel while retaining overall control and responsibility.
The Chairman of the Board, namely Y. Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ (Dr) Abdul Aziz bin Abdul Rahman, who is an Independent Non-Executive
Director, has been entrusted by the Board to:
•

lead the Board, facilitate effective contribution by all Directors at Board meetings, ensure that no individual Board member dominates
discussions and that appropriate discussions and opinions amongst members of the Board are forthcoming;

•

represent the Board at shareholders’ meeting by chairing General Meetings of shareholders and represent the Board in public
relations exercises and other events relating to the Group;

•

oversee the efficient organization and conduct of the Board, including the setting of agenda for Board meetings, in consultation with
the Executive Directors;

•

ensure all Directors receive accurate, timely and quality information to enable them to discharge their duties. All directors are
entitled to request additional information where they consider such information necessary to make informed decisions;

•

ensure new Directors receive a full, formal and tailored induction on joining the Board. The letter of appointment should set out the
Director’s estimated time commitment;

•

ensure that the Directors continually update their skills, knowledge and familiar with the Company’s operations so as to fulfil their
roles both on the Board and Board Committees;

•

promotes constructive and respectful relations between Directors, and between the Board and Management; and

•

consider the views of shareholders, which are to be communicated to the Board as a whole and that governance and strategy issues
are discussed with major shareholders.
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(cont’d)

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive, in this case, the Managing Director are well segregated. Accordingly, the Board believes that
such division of power and responsibilities helps to ensure a balance in that that no one person in the Board has unfettered powers to make
any major decisions for the Company unilaterally
The Board has adopted a Code of Ethics and Conduct for Company Directors to enhance the standards of Corporate Governance and Behaviour
as a guide for the Directors and key management personnel.
However, the Board has yet to develop a whistle-blower policy and procedures document that serves as an avenue for employees in the Group
to raise concerns related to possible breach of business conduct, non-compliance with laws and regulatory requirements as well as other
malpractices.
The Board members have full access to the Company Secretaries, who are qualified to act under Section 235 of the Companies Act 2016, to
provide advisory services to the Board, particularly on corporate governance issues and compliance with the relevant policies and procedures,
laws and regulatory requirements, in addition to administrative matters.
Board Meetings
For the financial year under review, the Board convened five (5) meetings and attendances of Directors are as follows:
			
Name		

No. of Board
Meetings attended

Percentage of
Attendance (%)

1. Y. Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ (Dr) Abdul Aziz bin Abdul Rahman
		 Chairman and Senior Independent Director

5

100

2. Y. Bhg. Dato’ Seri Yong Tu Sang
		 Managing Director

5

100

3. Mr. Choong Show Tong
		 Independent Non-Executive Director

5

100

4. Y. Bhg. Datuk Hj. Mohamed Iqbal bin M.M. Mohamed Ganey
		 Independent Non-Executive Director

5

100

5. Madam Yong Emmy
		 Non-Executive Non-Independent Director

5

100

6. Mr. Yong Hin Siong
		 Executive Director

4

80

Continuous Professional Development
The Board acknowledges the importance of continuous education and training programmes for its members to enable effective discharge of its
responsibilities and to be apprised on the changes to regulatory requirements and the impact such regulatory requirements have on the Group.
The Group’s Company Secretaries would often circulate the relevant guidelines on statutory and regulatory requirements from time to time to
and for the Board’s reference.
All Directors have completed the Mandatory Accreditation Programme as required by the Main Market Listing Requirements (“Listing
Requirements”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa”). During the financial year under review, the trainings attended by the Directors
included briefings, seminars, workshops and conferences. Details of the training programmes attended/ participated by the Directors are as
follows:
Directors		

Training/Seminar/Conference/Workshop

Mr. Choong Show Tong

• Audit Risk Management Procedures

				

• Company Law 2016

				

• National Tax Conference 2017

				

• Seminar Percakapan Kebangsaaan 2017

Y. Bhg. Datuk Hj Mohamed Iqbal Bin M.M. Mohamed Ganey

• Updates on Companies Act 2016 and its implications to Directors

Although the other Directors of the Company did not manage to attend any training during the financial year under review, they kept abreast with
corporate and regulatory requirements through dissemination of updates and notices from Bursa and also by reading current affairs materials
and professional journals. Going forward, all Directors will attend training that is relevant to their positions as well as their role as Directors of
the Company.
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II

BOARD COMPOSITION
The Board currently consists of seven (7) members, comprising two (2) Executive Directors, three (3) Independent Non-Executive
Directors, one (1) Non-Independent Non-Executive Director and one (1) Alternate Director (being alternate to the Non-Independent NonExecutive Director). The composition of Independent Non-Executive Directors in the Board, which accords with Practice 4.2 of the MCCG
(i.e. half the Board should be made up of Independent Non-Executive Directors), exceeds the requirements as set out in Bursa’s Listing
Requirements, which stipulate that at least two (2) Directors or one-third (1/3) of the Board, whichever is higher, must be independent.
The Independent Non-Executive Directors provide the necessary checks and balances in the Board’s exercise of their functions by
facilitating an independent evaluation of the Board’s decisions and decision-making process.
The Executive Directors are complemented by the experience and independent views of the Independent Non-Executive Directors who are
professionals in the field of law, banking and finance, and accounting. The Board members possess a fair range of skills and experience
in business development and management, law, banking and finance, accounting, administration and public relation. The mixed skills and
experience are vital towards directing and supervising the Group’s overall business activities in light of the increasing challenging economic
and operating environment in which the Group operates. The profile of each Director is set out on pages 7 to 11 of the Annual Report.
The Nomination Committee (“NC”) is entrusted by the Board with the following responsibilities:
•

review regularly, and at least once a year, the structure, size and composition of the Board and make recommendations to the Board
on any changes that may, in their view, be beneficial to the Company as well as review its members’ composition to improve on
gender diversity;

•

review the required mix of skills, experience and core competencies which Non-Executive Directors bring to the Board;

•

implement a process, to be carried out annually, to assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, committee of the Board and
the contribution of individual Directors;

•

identify and recommend suitable candidates to the Board when vacancies arise; and

•

recommend to the Board those Directors retiring by rotation and election at the Annual General Meeting of the Company

During the year and up to the date of this Statement, the NC convened 2 meetings, attended by all the members of the Committee. The NC
assessed and was satisfied with the performance of the 2 Directors who will be retiring by rotation. Accordingly, the NC recommended to
the Board for the 2 Directors to be re-elected at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company to be held in May 2018.
Practice 4.2 of the MCCG provides that “the tenure of an Independent Non-Executive Director does not exceed a cumulative term limit
of nine (9) years. Upon completion of the nine (9) years, an Independent Non-Executive Director may continue to serve on the Board as a
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director. If the Board intends to retain an Independent Non-Executive Director beyond nine (9) years, it
should justify and seek annual shareholders’ approval. If the Board continues to retain the Independent Non-Executive Director after the
twelfth (12th) year, the Board should seek annual shareholders’ approval through a two-tier voting process”.
The Company has on its Board two (2) Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Y. Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ (Dr) Abdul Aziz bin Abdul
Rahman and Mr. Choong Show Tong, who have served as Independent Directors for more than twelve (12) years as at end of the financial
year under review. The Board has assessed their suitability to continue as Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company for the
ensuing year and, accordingly, has recommended for their continuance via the two-tier voting process at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company scheduled in May 2018. The justifications by the Board for their continuance as Independent Non-Executive Directors are set
out in the Notice of AGM.
Although the Board has not formalized in writing a Board Diversity Policy, it has always reviewed diversity in the Board and, for the
financial year under review, the following were observed by the Board:
•

diversity in the Boardroom is an essential factor in ensuring an effective and well-functioning Board;

•

the Board should comprise Directors from a diverse background – based on their profiles in the Annual Report, it can be seen that
the current Directors possess diverse background, skills and experience;

•

Directors’ age ranges from 38 years to 85 years;

•

one Board member is female and her alternate is also a female; and

•

the Directors are drawn from different ethnic, cultural and social-economic background and are sufficiently diverse to ensure that
different viewpoints are considered in the decision-making process.

The Board does not have a specific policy for setting targets for women, ethnic or age composition on the Board. Evaluation of suitability
of candidates is based on the candidates’ competency, character, time availability, integrity and experience in meeting the Company’s
needs. The Board constantly advocates fair and equal participation and opportunity for all individuals of the right calibre.
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III

REMUNERATION
The Board has established a Remuneration Committee (“RC”) which comprises two (2) Independent Non-Executive Directors and the Managing
Director. It is the practice of the RC to review the existing remuneration packages of Executive Directors and recommend to the Board any
changes thereto. Whilst the Board has yet to formalize in writing policies and procedures pertaining to Directors and Senior Management of
the Group, the remuneration packages of Executive Directors would normally take into account the individual Director’s performance and
experience, including the Director’s responsibilities for the Group. The Board is aware of the need to formalise in writing pertinent policies
and procedures on the remuneration of Directors and Senior Management and will take measures to document the same for uploading on the
Company’s website. As for Directors’ fees and benefits, the Board will recommend for shareholders’ approval at the AGM of the Company.
The Executive Directors and Alternate Director are paid salaries and allowances while the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors
comprises solely fees. The Board ensures that the remuneration for Independent Non-Executive Directors do not conflict with their
obligation to bring objectivity and independent judgement on matters discussed at Board meetings.
The aggregate remuneration of Directors received from the Company and on Group basis for the financial year ended 31 December 2017
is as follows:

		Received from Company
		
Name of Directors
				

Salaries
(RM’000)

Fees
(RM’000)

Others
(RM’000)

Total
(RM’000)

		Executive Directors				
		

Y. Bhg. Dato’ Seri Yong Tu Sang

		

Mr. Yong Hin Siong

240.0

-

153.0

393.0

87.6

-

19.0

106.6

				
		Non-Executive Directors				
		Independent				
		

Y. Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ (Dr) Abdul Aziz bin Abdul Rahman

-

30.0

-

30.0

		

Mr. Choong Show Tong

-

30.0

-

30.0

		

Y. Bhg. Datuk Haji Mohamed Iqbal bin M.M. Mohamed Ganey

-

30.0

-

30.0

		Non-Independent 				
		

Madam Yong Emmy

		

Madam Yong Ellen (Alternate to Madam Yong Emmy)

		Total		

-

30.0

-

30.0

75.6

-

68.0

143.6

403.2

120.0

240.0

763.2

The RC and the Board are of the view that disclosing the top 5 Senior Management’s remuneration on a named basis in bands of
RM50,000 according to salaries, bonuses, benefits-in-kind and other emoluments would be disadvantageous to the Group’s business
interest, given the highly competitive conditions in the industry the Group operates where poaching of executives is commonplace.
As an Alternative, the RC and the Board believe the disclosure of Senior Management’s remuneration, that includes the top 5 key
Senior Management, in the audited financial statements are adequate as it complies with the requirements of Paragraph 17 of MFRS
124 “Related Party Disclosures”. It is the Board’s practice to structure the compensation and benefits packages for Group’s Senior
Management competitively in order to attract, motivate and retain talents.

PRINCIPLE B – EFFECITVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
I

AUDIT COMMITTEE
In assisting the Board to discharge its duties on financial reporting, the Board has established an Audit Committee, comprising three (3) members,
all of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors, with Y. Bhg Datuk Hj Mohamed Iqbal Bin M.M. Mohamed Ganey as the Committee Chairman.
The composition of the Audit Committee, including its roles and responsibilities as well as a summary of its activities carried out for the
financial year under review, are set out in the Audit Committee Report on pages 23 of this Annual Report. One of the key responsibilities
of the Audit Committee in its specific terms of reference is to ensure that the financial statements of the Group and Company comply with
applicable financial reporting standards in Malaysia and provisions of the Companies Act 2016. Such financial statements comprise the
quarterly financial report announced to Bursa and the annual statutory financial statements.
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The Board understands its role in upholding the integrity of financial reporting by the Company. Accordingly, the Audit Committee, which assists
the Board in overseeing the financial reporting process of the Company, will be developing a policy on the types of non-audit services permitted
to be provided by the external auditors and/or their affiliates, including the need to obtain the Audit Committee’s approval for such services.
This is to enhance the process the Audit Committee adopts in assessing the suitability, objectivity and independence of the external auditors set
out under Practice 8.3 of the MCCG. In addition, to apply Practice 8.2 of the MCCG, the Audit Committee will also be developing a policy that
requires a former key audit partner to observe a cooling-off period of at least two (2) years before being appointed as a member of the Audit
Committee. Both these policies, once approved by the Board, will be included in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.
II

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK
The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound system of risk management and internal control of the Group that provides
reasonable assurance on effective and efficient business operations, compliance with laws and regulations as well as internal procedures and
guidelines.
The Board has established a Risk Management Committee, comprising the same members as the Audit Committee, to assist the Board in
reviewing the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the system of risk management and internal control in the Group. The Risk Management
Committee does this via the deployment of an independent outsourced internal audit function, namely Baker Tilly Monteiro Heng Governance
Sdn Bhd, that conducts internal audit based on an internal audit plan approved by the Audit Committee. Findings raised from internal audit are
presented directly to the Audit Committee, including the remedial measures and action plans agreed by Management to address the matters so
highlighted. For more details of the Internal Audit function, refer to the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control which is included
in the Company’s 2017 Annual Report as well as the Corporate Governance Report that is made available on the Company’s website at www.
btmresources.com.my
Details of the Group’s Risk Management initiatives, activities carried out for the financial year under review and reporting processes are set out
in the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control included in this Annual Report.

PRINCIPLE C – INTEGRITY IN CORPORATE REPORTING AND MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS
I

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS
The Board recognizes the importance of being transparent and accountable to the Company’s stakeholders and acknowledges the continuous
communication between the Company and stakeholders would facilitate mutual understanding of each other’s objectives and expectations. As
such, the Board consistently ensures the supply of clear, comprehensive and timely information to stakeholders via various disclosures and
announcements, including quarterly and annual financial results, which provide investors with up-to-date financial information of the Group. All
these announcements and other information about the Company are available on the Company’s website at www.btmresources.com.my which
shareholders, investors and the public may access.
In addition, the Directors also ensure that engagement with shareholders occurs at least once a year during the AGM to better understand their
needs and obtain their feedback.

II

CONDUCT OF GENERAL MEETINGS
The AGM is the principal forum for shareholder dialogue, allowing shareholders to review the Group’s performance via the Company’s Annual
Report and pose questions to the Board for clarification.
The notice for the 23rd AGM held on 30 May 2017 was issued by the Company on 28 April 2017, effectively giving shareholders 31 clear
days to review the annual report for any questions they might wish to raise. At the AGM, all the Directors (including the chair of the Board
Committees) were present in person to engage directly with, and were accountable to, the shareholders for their stewardship of the Company.
During the AGM, shareholders participated in deliberating resolutions being proposed or on the Group’s operations in general. The Directors
and Senior Management appropriately responded to all questions raised and provided clarification as required by the shareholders.
The Board has not adopted electronic voting as the number of shareholders turning up for the AGM was relatively small and the voting for
resolutions was expediently carried out by traditional balloting, supervised by an independent scrutineer.
The Corporate Governance Overview Statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board dated 20 April 2018.
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT
The Board of Directors of the Company (“the Board”) has the overall responsibility of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ (“the Group”)
sustainability matters which are organised into 3 categories, namely economic, environmental and social. This sustainability statement discloses
material sustainability issues and impacts arising from the activities of the Group.
As this is the Company’s first sustainability statement, we are still in the midst of developing necessary framework and laying the foundation
for Group’s sustainability activities and therefor, certain information reported may not be comprehensive. However, the Board endeavours to
improve the disclosures in the coming years.
SCOPE
The scope of reporting mainly covers the Group’s manufacturing and trading business of the Group.
This sustainability statement is to be read in conjunction with the rest of the Company’s Annual Report, which highlights other financial and
non-financial aspect of our business.
GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
Sustainability is embedded in our organisational approach and is led from the top where the Board od the highest authority accountable for
the Group’s sustainability performance. The Board will oversee the Group’s operations by taking into account of economic, environmental and
social risks and opportunities in setting the strategic direction of the Group and also ensure the integration of sustainability practices into the
Group’s operations.
Currently, the management team (“MT”) led by the Managing Director is responsible in managing material sustainability matters in line with
established policies and practices, implementing measures and actions.
MATERIALITY SUSTAINABILITY MATTERS
Material sustainability issues were identified by the MT through feedbacks by various stakeholders, particularly the employees and the customers
of the Group. From the MT’s findings 4 material issues emerged to be high priority indicates under social and environmental are summarised
as follows :-

1.

No

Sustainability Issues

Category

1

Ethical business conduct

Social

2

Products and services responsibility to customers

Social

3

Employee benefits and engagement

4

Energy and waste managements

Social
Environmental

Ethical Business Conduct
Over the years, our consistent adherence to ethical business practices have earned the trust of our customers, suppliers, employees,
shareholders and other various stakeholders.
We promote integrity, implement responsible and ethical business policies and practices in all aspect of our operations through good
corporate governance. We also conduct our operations with honesty, integrity and openness, and with respect for human rights and
interest of our employees.
Directors and employees of the Group are required to comply with the relevant laws, rules and regulations which applicable to our Group
business. For any known malpractices or wrongdoings, the Group provides an avenue for whistleblowing for employees as well as the
general public. This implies that we take a very strong stand against any bribery, corruption and improper activities in our business
operations.

2.

Products and Services Responsibility to Customers
The Group’s long term sustainable business is built on the trust and confidence from customers offering good quality products and
services with competive pricing have been our Group’s tradition.
To promote our effects towards prioritising on quality and sustainable products, we sources responsibility and apply control systems to
ensure our products meet the highest standards of quality and safety. We have high expectations’ on suppliers for their products and
services.
In ensuring effective deliverables, our marketing personnel is constantly in touch with the customers to ensure that we are able to meet
customers’ demand quickly and fairly as possible, to deliver our products on time as well as to seek solutions to resolve customer
concerns, if any.
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT
(cont’d)

3.

Employee Benefits and Engagement
Our employees are the backbone of our operations and are directly responsible for all our business activities. To retain them, we offer
attractive remuneration and benefits for our employees. In addition, we also offer competitive benefits to attract and retain the best talent
in the Group. Our employees enjoy various employee benefits such as maternity leave, social security fund, medical benefits, workman
compensation, life and accident insurance etc.
Employee engagement is an important driver to performance and organisational success. The Head of Departments will engage with
employees on an ongoing basis to address their needs and material issues are raised in the management meeting for deliberation.
Additionally, we have established a series of engagement initiatives which include festival celebrations, outdoor activities, annual dinner
and annual trips, aimed at promoting and fostering employee integration and teamwork.

4.

Energy And Waste Management
We, understand that the environmental impacts to our business are relatively small compared to companies involved in other industries.
Nonetheless, we take responsibility for managing our environmental impacts seriously.
Environmental impacts to our Group’s business are primarily energy usage and raw materials consumption. We continuously strive to
improve our energy savings as well as reduction of raw materials consumption and to achieve so, we have made the following efforts :a)

Continuing maintenance and replacement of electrical equipment and light fittings to maximise energy efficiency.

b)

Ongoing reminders to all employees to switch off the lighting, water dispenses, air conditioning or other electrical appliances in the
office and factory when they are not in used.

c)

Reduce raw materials consumption by encouraging the employees to utilised the off-cuts or short-length timber to finger-joint to a
longer length timber for moulding and priming timber products to minimise waste.

MOVING FORWARD
The Board recognises that embedding sustainability into the Group’s business is a continuous and evolving practices in which the Board will
strive to enhance the practice to be in lone with the guidelines provided by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The Board acknowledges the
amount of effort and dedication showed by the Management Team and all employees have displayed their desire to improve on the sustainability
of the Group.
The Board and the Management Team look forward to bring greater disclosures of sustainability matters in future reports.

23

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
Composition, Meetings and Attendance
The Audit Committee (“AC”) comprises of 3 members, two of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors and the AC held 5 meetings in
2017, 4 meetings were held at the meeting room of the Company at No. 35-3, Jalan PJU 1/41, Dataran Prima, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor
Darul Ehsan and one meeting was held at meeting room Arcadia 1, Level 3, Hotel Armada, Lot 6, Lorong Utara C, Section 52, 46200 Petaling
Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan.
A summary of the AC members and their attendance records at the AC meetings held during the financial year are as follows:No.

Name

1.

Tan Sri Dato’ (Dr) Abdul Aziz Bin Abdul Rahman

Designation

Attendance

Chairman

5/5

2.

Mr. Choong Show Tong

Member

5/5

3.

Madam Yong Emmy

Member

5/5

On 1 March 2018, Datuk Haji Mohamed Iqbal Bin M.M. Mohamed Ganey, an Independent Non-Executive Director is appointed as Chairman
of the AC, replacing Tan Sri Dato’ (Dr) Abdul Aziz Bin Abdul Rahman, who will remain on the AC as a member. Madam Yong Emmy, a NonExecutive Director ceased to be a member of the AC on 1 March 2018.
Summary of Activities
In discharging its functions and duties, the AC has carried out the following activities during the financial year ended 31 December 2017:
1.

Reviewed and discussed the audit plan presented by the external auditors and ensured the scope of audit was adequate;

2.

Reviewed internal audit plan proposed by the outsourced internal auditors;

3.

Reviewed audit findings and recommendations from both external and outsourced internal auditors and ensure timely corrective actions
were duly implemented by management;

4.

Reviewed and ensure the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems.

5.

Reviewed and discussed the Group’s unaudited quarterly results together with the relevant notes and made recommendations to the
Board of Directors for approval.

6.

Reviewed the annual financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries together with the external auditors’ report and discussed
various audit and accounting issues;

7.

Considered and recommended the re-appointment and remuneration of the external auditors;

8.

Reviewed related party transactions entered by the Company and its subsidiaries and to approve related party transactions above the
threshold of RM100,000.

Internal Audit Function
The Group has appointed Messrs Baker Tilly Monteiro Heng Governance Sdn Bhd (“Internal Auditors”) to provide outsourced internal audit
function of the Group. The Internal Auditors reports directly to the Audit Committee and the internal audit function is independent of the activities
or operations of other operating units. The main role of the Internal Audit function is to provide the Audit Committee with reasonable assurance
of the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes of the Group.
The risk-based internal audit activities were carried out based on risk-based internal audit plan presented by the Internal Auditors during the
financial year under review:
1.

Reviewed of Corporate Governance practices adopted by the Group to comply with Malaysian Code of Corporate Governance 2017 ;

2.

Follow-up review of last Audit Report for a subsidiary on sales and delivery controls and billing related credit controls ;

3.

Attended AC meetings to table and discuss IA plan for financial year ended 31 December 2017 ; and

4.

Issuance of IA reports and presentation of audit findings and recommendations for improvement and corrective action taken by
Management in AC meetings.

The cost of internal audit services rendered by the Internal Auditors in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to RM 15,500.
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
INTRODUCTION
The Board of Directors of BTM Resources Berhad (“the Board”) is pleased to provide the Statement On Risk Management and Internal Control
(“SORMIC”) of the Group, pursuant to Paragraph 15.26(b) of Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa”)
and guided by the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control: Guidelines for Directors of Public Listed Issuers (“Guidelines”) issued by
Bursa, which outlines the processes to be adopted by the Board of Directors in reviewing adequacy and effectiveness of risk management and
internal control system of the Group.
This SORMIC outlines the processes that have been implemented to ensure adequacy and integrity of the system of risk management and internal
control of the Group during the financial year ended 31 December 2017 and it has been prepared in compliance with Main Market Listing
Requirements of Bursa.
The Audit Committee (“AC”) being the delegated committee of the Board, is responsible for the preparation of the SORMIC in accordance with the
Guidelines. Set out below is the SORMIC which has been prepared in accordance with the Guidelines.

BOARD’S RESPONSIBILITY
The Board has an overall responsibility in maintaining a sound system of risk management and internal control within the Group and to continuously
review and evaluate its adequacy and integrity. The risk management and internal control system is designed to identify, evaluate and manage
risks that may hinder the achievement of the Group’s objectives, rather than eliminate these risk. Therefore, the system can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement of financial reporting, fraud or loss, and this is achieved through preventive,
detective and corrective measure designed in the system.
The Board has established appropriate control structure and process for identifying, evaluating, monitoring and managing significant risks that
may affect the achievement of business objectives. The control structure and process which have been instituted throughout the organization are
updated and reviewed periodically to suit changes in business environment and this on-going process has been in place for the whole financial
year under review and up to the date of approval of this statement for inclusion in the annual report.

KEY PROCESSES
The Board regards risk management as part of business operations and involves an on-going process for identifying, evaluating, managing and
reviewing any changes in the significant risks that may hinder the Group in achieving its business objectives. Management of respective business
and functional units of the Group is involved in the risk management process in identifying and managing significant risks impacting the
achievement of business objectives of the Group.
Management implements the Board’s policies and procedures on risk management by identifying and addressing the risks faced by the Group as
part of their routine functions and through review of such risks at regular management meetings chaired by managing/executive directors.
Unresolved matters at management level will be brought to be attention of the Board for discussion. The Group’s internal audit function provides
further independent assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system.
The following are key areas of governance which defines the values, ethics and conduct of the Group and policies and procedures in place to
ensure a sound system of internal control is maintained within the Group.

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
The Board provides business direction and oversight to the Group and management. The Board is supported by a number of Board Committees
namely Audit Committee (“AC”), Nomination Committee (“NC”) and Remuneration Committee (“RC”). Each committee has formal defined terms
of reference and responsibilities and report on activities of each committee is presented to the Board on a regular basis.
There is a clearly defined organisational structure aligned to the operational requirements of the business of the Group, which provides levels of
authority limits, accountability and responsibility of respective job functions of management.
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(cont’d)

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND INTERNAL AUDIT
The Group has outsourced the internal audit function to an independent professional firm which assists the AC to review the key business
processes, check compliance with policies / procedures set by the Board, and evaluate effectiveness of risk management, internal control and
governance processes established by the Board through execution of approved internal audit plan. The AC oversees the function of Internal
Auditor, its independence, scope of work and resources.
The annual audit plan prepared by internal auditor is reviewed and approved by the AC. Significant audit findings and areas of improvement are
reported to the AC and communicated to management on a timely basis. Follow-up audits will be conducted to assess implementation of
corrective action plans to address internal control lapses which have been identified. Further details on the activities of the AC during the year
are set out in the AC Report.

HUMAN CAPITAL
Talent plays a critical role in enabling the Group to achieve its business objectives. Succession planning is in place to ensure the Group has a
strong management team vital to maintain the quality of the Group’s products whilst retaining the clients’ confidence.
The Group has established procedures and guidelines for human capital development and training, recruitment and performance appraisals to
enhance staff competency and productivity.

INSURANCE
The Group has in place adequate insurance coverage of a range of insurable business risks, including property risk to appropriate levels, which
are determined upon consultation with insurance brokers.

ANNUAL BUDGET
Budgets are prepared on an annual basis by all operating business units and presented to the Board for approval. The Group’s performance is
tracked and measured against the approved budget on a quarterly basis. The actual quarterly results are reviewed by the Audit Committee and
the Board against the budget to identify and address significant variances so that corrective actions can be taken to improve the achievement of
budgeted results and eventually the Group’s business objectives as a whole.

REVIEW OF THIS STATEMENT BY EXTERNAL AUDITORS
As required by Paragraph 15.23 of the Bursa Securities Main Market Listing Requirements, the external auditors have reviewed this Statement
on Risk Management and Internal Control. Their limited assurance review was performed in accordance with Audit and Assurance Practice
Guide(“AAPG”) 3 (2018) issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. APPG 3 (2018) does not require external auditors to form an opinion
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system of the Group.

CONCLUSIONS
The Board has received assurance from the Managing Director and Financial Controller that the risk management and internal control system
adopted by the Group is operating adequately and effectively, in all material aspects, based on their observations of routine business operations
of the Group.
The Board is pleased to report for the financial year under review and up to the date of this report that internal control system and risk
management practices of the Group are able to meet the objectives of the Group and to facilitate good corporate governance. There was no
material failure or weakness that would have a material adverse impact on the results of the Group for the period under review and up to the date
of this report that would require a separate disclosure in the Group’s annual report or financial statements.
This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board dated 20 April 2018.
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ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION
a)

Share Buy Back
During the financial year under review, the company did not seek any shareholders approval to buy-back its own shares

b)

Options, Warrants or Convertible Securities Exercised
During the year under review, no Warrants 2009/2019 has been exercise and the total number of Warrants 2009/2019 remained
unexercised are 19,985,593 units. As for Warrants 2014/2024, a total of 3,192,200 units have been exercised and converted to ordinary
shares and the total number of Warrants 2014/2024 remained unexercised are 26,295,146 units.

c)

American Depository Receipt (“ADR”) or Global Depository Receipt (“GDR”) Programme
The Company did not sponsor any ADR or GDR programme during the financial year.

d)

Imposition of Sanctions and / or Penalties
There were no public sanctions and/or penalties imposed on the company and its subsidiaries, Directors or Management by any regulatory
bodies during the financial year.

e)

Non- Audit Fees
Non-Audit fees amounting to RM 4,500 incurred for services in relation to review of Corporate Governance Overview Statement and
Statement of Risk Management and Internal Control (“SORMIC”) rendered by external auditors to the Company for the financial year ended
31 December 2017.

f)

Variation in Results
There were no material variation between the audited results for the year ended 31 December 2017 and unaudited results for the quarterly
year ended 31 December 2017 of the Group. Explanation and reconciliation are not required for variation of less than 10%.

g)

Profit Estimate, Forecast or Guarantee
The Company did not announce any profit estimate, forecast or Guarantee during the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

h)

Related Party Transaction
A list of significant related party transactions is set out in Note 31 of the Financial Statement Section of this Annual Report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The directors submit herewith their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended
31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the Company consist of investment holding and the provision of management services. The principal activities of the
subsidiary companies and other details of the subsidiary companies are set out in Note 6 to the financial statements.
There have been no significant changes in these activities during the financial year.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
		
		
Loss before taxation
Taxation
Loss for the year
Loss for the year attributable to:
- Owners of the Company
- Non-controlling interest
		

Group
RM

Company
RM

(1,497,500)
670,230
(827,270)

(837,368)
120,000
(717,368)

(820,892)
(6,378)
(827,270)

(717,368)
(717,368)

DIVIDENDS
No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since the end of the previous financial year.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS
There were no material transfers made to or from reserves or provisions accounts during the year other than those disclosed in the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Upon the commencement of the Companies Act 2016 ("Act") on 31 January 2017, which abolished the concept of authorised share capital and
par value of share capital, the Company's share premium of RM424,700 became part of the Company's share capital as of that date pursuant
to the transitional provision set out in Section 618(2) of the Act. Consequently, the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company became
RM25,485,217 comprising 125,302,588 ordinary shares as at 31 January 2017. Notwithstanding and pursuant to Section 618(3) of the Act,
the Company may, within twenty-four months upon commencement of the Act, use the amount standing to the credit of the share premium
account for the purposes provided for under that section of the Act. The issued and paid-up share capital of the Company was increased to
RM26,560,988 comprising 128,494,788 ordinary shares arising from the conversion of 3,192,200 Warrants 2014/2024 into 3,192,200 new
ordinary shares at the execrise price of RM0.20 each satisfied in cash and the transfer of attributable warrant reserve of RM437,331 from
warrant reserve account upon conversion of the aforesaid warrants during the financial year. The movements in the issued and paid-up share
capital of the Company during the financial year are further detailed in Note 13 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The names of the directors in office during the financial year and during the period from the end of the financial year to the date of this report are :Tan Sri Dato' (Dr) Abdul Aziz Bin Abdul Rahman (Chairman)
Dato' Seri Yong Tu Sang (Managing Director)
Yong Emmy
Choong Show Tong
Datuk Haji Mohamed Iqbal Bin M.M. Mohamed Ganey
Yong Ellen (alternate director to Yong Emmy)
Yong Hin Siong
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
(cont’d)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings, the interests of the directors in office at the end of the financial year in shares and
warrants of the Company during the financial year are as follows :As at
1.1.2017

Number of ordinary shares
<----- During the financial year ----->		
Acquired
Disposed

As at
31.12.2017

Dato’ Seri Yong Tu Sang
- direct
- indirect *

12,339,081
22,204,299

-

-

12,339,081
22,204,299

Yong Emmy
- direct

12,096,000

-

-

12,096,000

Yong Ellen
- direct
- indirect #

108,300
5,610,100

-

-

108,300
5,610,100

Number of Warrants 2009/2019
<----- During the financial year ----->		
Acquired
Disposed

As at
31.12.2017

As at
1.1.2017
Dato’ Seri Yong Tu Sang
- indirect *

252,425

-

(252,211)

214

Yong Emmy
- direct

146,359

-

(146,359)

-

214

-

-

214

Number of Warrants 2014/2024
<----- During the financial year ----->		
Acquired
Disposed

As at
31.12.2017

Yong Ellen
- direct

As at
1.1.2017
Dato’ Seri Yong Tu Sang
- direct
- indirect *

2,290,421
2,121,146

-

-

2,290,421
2,121,146

Yong Emmy
- direct

1,225,600

-

-

1,225,600

Yong Ellen
- direct
- indirect #

228,880
1,440,000

-

-

228,880
1,440,000

* Deemed interest by virtue of shares and warrants held by his spouse and children.
# Deemed interest by virtue of shares and warrants held by her spouse.
The details of the Warrants 2009/2019 and Warrants 2014/2024 are disclosed in Notes 13 and 17 to the financial statements respectively.
By virtue of their interests in the shares of the Company, Dato' Seri Yong Tu Sang and Yong Emmy are deemed to be interested in the shares
of all its subsidiary companies to the extent that the Company has an interest.
Other than as disclosed, no other directors in office at the end of the financial year held any interest in shares and warrants of the Company
and shares of its subsidiary companies.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS
As at the end of the financial year and during the year, there did not subsist any arrangement to which the Company was a party, whereby the
directors or their nominees might acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate other than any benefit that may accrue to the directors arising from the warrants.
Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive any benefits (other than a benefit included
in the aggregate amount of remuneration received or due and receivable by the directors as disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements) by
reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or his nominees or with a firm of which he is a member or
with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest other than by virtue of transactions entered into in the ordinary course of business.
No indemnity was given to nor was there any insurance effected for the directors and officers of the Group and of the Company during the
financial year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
(cont’d)

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION
a) Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable steps :i)

to ascertain that action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of provision for doubtful debts, and
have satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and adequate provision had been made for doubtful debts; and

ii) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their values as shown in the accounting records in the ordinary course
of business have been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.
b) As at the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances :i)

which would render the amount written off for bad debts and provision made for doubtful debts in the Group and the Company
inadequate to any substantial extent;

ii) which would render the values of current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading;
iii) which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets and liabilities of the Group and of the Company
misleading or inappropriate; and
iv) not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements of the Group and of the Company which would render any amount
stated in the financial statements misleading.
c) As at the date of this report, there does not exist :i)

any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year which secures the
liabilities of any other person; and

ii) any contingent liability in respect of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year.
d) In the opinion of the directors :i)

no contingent or other liabilities have become enforceable or are likely to become enforceable, within the period of twelve months after the
end of the financial year which will or may affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations when they fall due;

ii) the results of the Group’s and of the Company’s operations during the financial year were not substantially affected by any item,
transaction or event of a material and unusual nature; and
iii) no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the
date of this report which is likely to affect substantially the results of operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year
in which this report is made.

AUDITORS
a) Details of auditors' remuneration in respect of the Group and of the Company are set out in Note 25 to the financial statements. No
indemnity was given to nor was there any insurance effected for the auditors during the financial year.
b) The auditors, Messrs. Folks DFK & Co., have expressed their willingness to continue in office.
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors,
DATO’ SERI YONG TU SANG
Director

YONG HIN SIONG
Director
Date : 20 April 2018
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Section 251(2) of the Companies Act 2016)

We, DATO' SERI YONG TU SANG and YONG HIN SIONG, being two of the directors of BTM RESOURCES BERHAD, state that in the opinion of
the directors, the financial statements set out on pages 33 to 75 are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards and the provisions of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2017 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors dated 20 April 2018,

DATO’ SERI YONG TU SANG
Director

YONG HIN SIONG
Director
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STATUTORY DECLARATION

(Pursuant to Section 251(1)(b) of the Companies Act 2016)

I, CHEN KAR MUN, being the person primarily responsible for the financial management of BTM RESOURCES BERHAD, do solemnly and sincerely
declare that the accompanying financial statements together with the notes attached thereto, are to the best of my knowledge and belief,
correct.
And I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true, and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory
Declarations Act, 1960.
Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed CHEN KAR MUN at Kuala Lumpur in the Federal Territory this 20 April 2018.
CHEN KAR MUN
(MIA Membership No: 8964)
Before me,
Commissioner for Oaths
KAPT. (B) JASNI BIN YUSOFF
NO.: W465
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2017

					
				
Note

2017
RM

2016
RM

30,451,700

27,110,592

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment		

4

Prepaid lease payments		

5

362,836

401,308

					

30,814,536

27,511,900

Current Assets
Inventories		

8

7,242,697

7,555,564

Trade receivables		

9

1,294,385

1,344,910

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments		

10

677,768

731,334

Fixed deposits with licensed banks		

12

219,573

1,516,650

Cash and bank balances			

767,253

1,261,493

10,201,676

12,409,951

Total Assets			 41,016,212

39,921,851

					

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity Attributable To Owners Of The Company
Share capital		

13

26,560,988

25,060,517

Share premium		

14

-

424,700

Revaluation reserves		

15

19,024,859

16,377,545

Capital reserves		

16

531,845

531,845

Warrant reserve		

17

3,602,435

4,039,766

Accumulated losses			

(20,853,398)

(20,032,506)

					

28,866,729

26,401,867

Non-Controlling Interest			 (7,239)

(1,399)

Total Equity			 28,859,490

26,400,468

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Retirement benefit obligations		

18

1,985,245

1,736,261

Term loan (secured)		

19

2,938,910

3,904,840

Hire purchase creditors		

20

5,578

27,671

Deferred taxation		

21

192,000

165,000

5,121,733

5,833,772

22

2,433,467

1,793,501

Other payables and accruals			

1,891,221

1,704,274

Term loan (secured)		

19

1,215,343

1,068,746

Amount due to directors		

23

1,467,997

3,098,125

Hire purchase creditors		

20

24,961

21,065

					
Current Liabilities
Trade payables		

Taxation			
					

2,000

1,900

7,034,989

7,687,611

Total Liabilities			 12,156,722

13,521,383

Total Equity and Liabilities			 41,016,212

39,921,851

The notes on pages 41 to 75 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note
Revenue

2017
RM

2016
RM

24

12,762,592

15,939,357

Cost of sales		

(11,799,229)

(12,267,423)

Gross profit		

963,363

3,671,934

Other income		

2,314,734

1,383,583

Distribution expenses		

(720,945)

(768,426)

Administrative expenses		

(3,609,227)

(3,413,259)

Finance costs		

(445,425)

(469,460)

(Loss)/Profit before taxation

25

(1,497,500)

404,372

Taxation

26

670,230

(225)

(Loss)/Profit for the year		 (827,270)

404,147

Other comprehensive income :
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
- Revaluation of land and buildings		

3,348,307

-

- Attributable deferred tax		

(700,993)

-

				

2,647,314

-

-

201,198

2,647,314

201,198

Total comprehensive income for the year		1,820,044

605,345

- Actuarial gain on defined benefit obligations		
Total other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax		

(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company		
Non-controlling interest		

(820,892)

405,547

(6,378)

(1,400)

(827,270)

404,147

Owners of the Company		

1,826,422

606,745

Non-controlling interest		

(6,378)

(1,400)

1,820,044

605,345

				
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:

				
(Loss)/Earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company
Basic		

27(a)

(0.65 sen)

0.32 sen

Diluted

27(b)

(0.65 sen)

0.31 sen

The notes on pages 41 to 75 form an integral part of these financial statements.

					
					
					
					
					
					
Balance as at 1 January 2017
Effect of change to no par value
shares on 31 January 2017
Loss for the year			
Other comprehensive income:
Revaluation of land and building,
net of attributable deferred tax
Total comprehensive income for the year
Issuance of new shares from
conversion of Warrants 2014/2024
Subscription of shares in subsidiary companies
Balance as at 31 December 2017

					
					
					
					
					
					
Balance as at 1 January 2016
Profit for the year			
Other comprehensive income:
Actuarial gain on defined benefit obligations
Total comprehensive income for the year
Subscription of share in a subsidiary company
Balance as at 31 December 2016
4,039,766

201,198
606,745
(20,032,506)

201,198
606,745
26,401,867

(1,400)
1
(1,399)

(424,700)
-

-

424,700
-

-

The notes on pages 41 to 75 form an integral part of these financial statements.

1,075,771
26,560,988

19,024,859

2,647,314
2,647,314

-

531,845

-

-

(437,331)
3,602,435

-

-

(20,853,398)

(820,892)

(820,892)

638,440
28,866,729

2,647,314
1,826,422

(820,892)

538
(7,239)

(6,378)

(6,378)

<---------------------------- Attributable to Owners of the Company --------------------------->
<------------------ Non-distributable ----------------->
Share
Share
Revaluation
Capital
Warrant			
Noncapital
premium
reserves
reserves
reserve Accumulated
Total
controlling
(Note 13)
(Note 14)
(Note 15)
(Note 16)
(Note 17)
losses
equity
interest
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
25,060,517
424,700
16,377,545
531,845
4,039,766 (20,032,506)
26,401,867
(1,399)

531,845

638,440
538
28,859,490

2,647,314
1,820,044

(827,270)

Total
equity
RM
26,400,468

201,198
605,345
1
26,400,468

16,377,545

25,060,517

424,700

Total
equity
RM
25,795,122
404,147

<---------------------------- Attributable to Owners of the Company --------------------------->
<------------------ Non-distributable ----------------->
Share
Share
Revaluation
Capital
Warrant			
Noncapital
premium
reserves
reserves
reserve Accumulated
Total
controlling
(Note 13)
(Note 14)
(Note 15)
(Note 16)
(Note 17)
losses
equity
interest
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
25,060,517
424,700
16,377,545
531,845
4,039,766
(20,639,251) 25,795,122
405,547
405,547
(1,400)
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2017
RM

2016
RM

(1,497,500)

404,372

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments		

38,472

38,472

Allowance for impairment loss on other receivables		

42,114

-

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
(Loss)/Profit before taxation		
Adjustments for :-

Bad debt written off		

-

111

Depreciation		

1,063,306

861,096

Defined benefit cost		

248,984

239,684

Property, plant and equipment written off		

-

1

Waiver of interest on term loan		

-

(1,011,650)

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment		

-

(66,199)

Write back of allowance for impairment loss on unused plant		

(107,669)

-

Waiver of advances from a director		

(1,983,071)

-

Interest expense		

432,926

468,965

Interest income		

(25,217)

(167,851)

Operating (loss)/profit before working capital changes		

(1,787,655)

767,001

Decrease/(Increase) in inventories		

312,867

(2,550,441)

Decrease in trade receivables		

59,763

605,672

Decrease in other receivables, deposits and prepayments		

11,452

1,086,593

Increase in trade payables		

639,966

437,541

Increase/(Decrease) in other payables and accruals		

186,947

(138,925)

Increase in amount due to directors		

352,943

1,602,021

Cash (used in)/generated from operations		

(223,717)

1,809,462

Taxation paid		

(3,663)

(73,701)

Interest received		

15,979

113,798

Interest paid		

(3,354)

(1,905)

Net cash (used in)/from operating activities		

(214,755)

1,847,654

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment		

-

66,200

Purchase of property, plant and equipment		

(948,438)

(6,010,025)

Net cash used in investing activities		

(948,438)

(5,943,825)

538

1

Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of shares to non-controlling interest		
Proceeds from issuance of shares arising from conversion of Warrants 2014/2024		

638,440

-

Repayment of term loans		

(819,333)

(908,096)

Term loan interest paid		

(427,728)

(463,673)

Payment of hire purchase liabilities		

(18,197)

(23,533)

Hire purchase interest paid		

(1,844)

(3,387)

Net cash used in financing activities		

(628,124)

(1,398,688)

Net Decrease In Cash And Cash Equivalents		

(1,791,317)

(5,494,859)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year		

2,778,143

8,273,002

986,826

2,778,143

Cash And Cash Equivalents At End Of Year [Note 28(b)]		

The notes on pages 41 to 75 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note

2017
RM

2016
RM

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment		

4

7,618,848

7,573,282

Subsidiary companies		

6

1,282,255

1,281,695

8,901,103

8,854,977

					
Current Assets
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments		

10

69,577

27,956

Amount due from subsidiary companies		

11

21,359,464

20,816,781

Fixed deposits with licensed banks		

12

-

1,062,720

Cash and bank balances			

144,854

40,695

21,573,895

21,948,152

Total Assets			 30,474,998

30,803,129

					

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity Attributable to Owners of The Company
Share capital		

13

26,560,988

25,060,517

Share premium		

14

-

424,700

Revaluation reserves		

15

4,293,896

4,198,896

Warrant reserve		

17

3,602,435

4,039,766

Accumulated losses			

(6,136,094)

(5,418,726)

Total Equity			 28,321,225

28,305,153

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Retirement benefit obligations		

18

455,384

411,309

Hire purchase creditors		

20

5,578

27,671

Deferred taxation		

21

80,000

95,000

540,962

533,980

257,672

194,806

					
Current Liabilities
Other payables and accruals			
Hire purchase creditors		

20

24,961

21,065

Amount due to directors		

23

1,330,178

1,748,125

					

1,612,811

1,963,996

Total Liabilities			 2,153,773

2,497,976

Total Equity and Liabilities			 30,474,998

30,803,129

The notes on pages 41 to 75 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note
Revenue

2017
RM

2016
RM

24

396,444

396,444

Other income		

337,543

98,532

Administrative expenses		

(1,569,183)

(1,492,397)

Finance costs		

(2,172)

(3,271)

Loss before taxation

25

(837,368)

(1,000,692)

Taxation

26

120,000

-

(717,368)

(1,000,692)

- Revaluation of land and buildings		

200,000

-

Attributable deferred tax		

(105,000)

-

				

95,000

-

-

20,525

Total comprehensive loss for the year		 (622,368)

(980,167)

Loss for the year		
Other comprehensive income:
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

- Actuarial gain on defined benefit obligations		

The notes on pages 41 to 75 form an integral part of these financial statements.

25,060,517

Total comprehensive loss for the year		

Balance as at 31 December 2016		

-

Loss for the year			-

The notes on pages 41 to 75 form an integral part of these financial statements.

424,700
1,075,771
26,560,988

Revaluation of land and building, net of attributable deferred tax		

Total comprehensive loss for the year		

Effect of change to no par value shares on 31 January 2017		

Issuance of new shares from conversion of Warrants 2014/2024		

Balance as at 31 December 2017		

-

-

(424,700)

-

-

424,700

Other comprehensive income :

4,198,896

-

-

-

4,198,896

4,039,766

-

-

-

4,039,766

4,293,896

-

-

95,000

95,000

-

4,198,896

3,602,435

(437,331)

-

-

-

-

4,039,766

<----------------- Non-distributable ----------------->
Share
Revaluation
Warrant
premium
reserve
reserve
(Note 14)
(Note 15)
(Note 17)
RM
RM
RM

424,700

-

25,060,517

Balance as at 1 January 2017		

						
					Share
					 capital
					
(Note 13)
					RM

-

Actuarial gain on defined benefit obligations		

-

-

Loss for the year			-

Other comprehensive income:

424,700

<----------------- Non-distributable ----------------->
Share
Revaluation
Warrant
premium
reserve
reserve
(Note 14)
(Note 15)
(Note 17)
RM
RM
RM

25,060,517

Balance as at 1 January 2016		

						
					Share
					 capital
					
(Note 13)
					RM

(6,136,094)

-

-

(717,368)

-

(717,368)

(5,418,726)

Accumulated
losses
RM

(5,418,726)

(980,167)

20,525

(1,000,692)

(4,438,559)

Accumulated
losses
RM

28,321,225

638,440

-

(622,368)

95,000

(717,368)

28,305,153

Total
equity
RM

28,305,153

(980,167)

20,525

(1,000,692)

29,285,320

Total
equity
RM
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2017
RM

2016
RM

(837,368)

(1,000,692)

Depreciation		

156,037

154,653

Defined benefit cost		

44,075

36,732

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Loss before taxation		
Adjustments for :-

Interest expense		

1,844

2,873

Interest income		

(7,543)

(98,532)

Waiver of advances from a director		

(300,000)

-

Operating loss before working capital changes		

(942,955)

(904,966)

Increase in other receivables, deposits and prepayments		

(41,621)

(1,396)

Increase in amount due from subsidiary companies		

(542,683)

(6,104,070)

Increase in other payables and accruals		

62,866

26,959

(Decrease)/Increase in amount due to directors		

(117,947)

762,021

Cash used in operations		

(1,582,340)

(6,221,452)

Interest received		

7,543

98,532

Net cash used in operating activities		

(1,574,797)

(6,122,920)

Investment in subsidiary companies		

(560)

(3)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment		

(1,603)

(9,530)

Net cash used in investing activities		

(2,163)

(9,533)

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of shares arising from conversion of Warrants 2014/2024		

638,440

-

Payment of hire purchase liabilities		

(18,197)

(21,943)

Hire purchase interest paid		

(1,844)

(2,873)

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities		

618,399

(24,816)

Net Decrease In Cash And Cash Equivalents		
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year		
Cash And Cash Equivalents At End Of Year [Note 28(b)]		

The notes on pages 41 to 75 form an integral part of these financial statements.

(958,561)

(6,157,269)

1,103,415

7,260,684

144,854

1,103,415
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION
BTM Resources Berhad is a public limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia. The Company is listed on the Main
Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
The registered office of the Company is located at Level 2, Tower 1, Avenue 5, Bangsar South City, 59200 Kuala Lumpur.
The principal place of business of the Company is located at No. 101, 3rd Floor, Wisma Kam Choon, Jalan Kampung Tiong, 20100 Kuala
Terengganu, Terengganu Darul Iman.
The principal activities of the Company consist of investment holding and the provision of management services. The principal activities
of the subsidiary companies are set out in Note 6 to the financial statements.
The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM").
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the directors
on 20 April 2018.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Basis of Preparation
		The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards ("MFRSs"), International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") and the provisions of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.
The financial statements of the Group and of the Company are prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise
indicated in the summary of significant accounting policies.
The accounting policies applied by the Group are consistent with those applied in the previous financial year other than the
application of the amendments to MFRSs adopted as disclosed in Note 2.2 below, where applicable.
2.2 Adoption of Amendments to MFRSs
		

During the financial year, the Group has adopted the following amendments to MFRSs issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards
Board ("MASB") which are effective for accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2017 :-

		
			
			

Amendments to MFRS 107 - Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to MFRS 112 - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to MFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities Classified as "Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle"

The adoption of the above amendments to MFRSs did not result in any changes to the Group's accounting policies and their initial
application where applicable have no significant impact on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company other than as
described below :Amendments to MFRS 107 - Disclosure Initiative
		

The Amendments to MFRS 107 require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in the entity's liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which the attributable cash flows are reflected as cash flows
from financing activities in the entity's statement of cash flows.
The Group's liabilities arising from financing activities consist of term loan and hire purchase financing as disclosed in Notes 19
and 20 respectively. A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of these liabilities for the current year is provided
in Note 28(a). The Group has not provided comparative information for the prior period in accordance with the transitional provision
of the Amendments. Apart from the additional disclosure in Note 28(a), the initial application of the Amendments has no financial
impact on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company.

2.3 New MFRSs and Amendments to MFRSs and IC Interpretations That Are In Issue But Not Yet Effective and Have Not Been Early Adopted
		

The Group has not early adopted the following new MFRSs and amendments to MFRSs and IC Interpretations that have been issued
by the MASB but are not yet effective :-

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
		
MFRS 9, Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 issued in July 2014)
		
MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
		
Clarifications to MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
		
Amendments to MFRS 2 - Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
		
Amendments to MFRS 128 - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures Classified as "Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2014 						
2016 Cycle"
		
Amendments to MFRS 140 - Transfers of Investment Property
		
IC Interpretation 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
2.3 New MFRSs and Amendments to MFRSs and IC Interpretations That Are In Issue But Not Yet Effective and Have Not Been
Early Adopted (cont’d)
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
MFRS 16, Leases
Amendments to MFRS 128 - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
Amendments to MFRS 9 - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
Amendments to MFRS 3 and MFRS 11 - Previously Held Interest in a Joint Operation,
Amendments to MFRS 112 - Income Tax Consequences of Payments on Financial Instruments classified as Equity, and
Ammendments to MFRS 123 - Borrowing Cost Eligible for Capitalisation, Classified as "Annual Improvements to MFRSs
2015 -2017 Cycle "
IC Interpretation 23, Uncertainty Over Income Tax Treatments

		
		

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined by MASB
Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

		'The Group will adopt the above new MFRSs and amendments to MFRSs and IC interpretations that are applicable when they
become effective. The main features of the significant new standards and amendments and their possible impact on the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company upon initial application based on assessments to-date are set out below :a)
			

MFRS 9, Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 issued in July 2014)
The Standard replaces earlier versions of MFRS 9 and introduces a package of improvements which includes a classification
and measurement model, a single forward-looking ‘expected loss’ impairment model and a substantially-reformed approach
to hedge accounting.

		

The key enhancements of MFRS 9 are :

		

•

Under MFRS 9, all recognised financial assets are required to be subsequently measured at either amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI") or fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") on the basis of both an entity's
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. These
requirements improve and simplify the approach for classification and measurement of financial assets as the numerous
categories of financial assets under MFRS 139 had been replaced.

		

•

Most of the requirements in MFRS 139 for classification and measurement of financial liabilities were carried forward unchanged
to MFRS 9, except for the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL. Under MFRS 139, the entire amount of
the change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as FVTPL is presented in profit or loss. However, MFRS 9 requires
that the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability's own credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable
to a financial liability's credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

		•

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, MFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit
loss model under MFRS 139. Under MFRS 9, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised. Instead, an entity always accounts for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

		•

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms currently available in
MFRS 139 i.e. fair value hedges, cash flow hedges and hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation. MFRS 9 incorporates
a new hedge accounting model that aligns the hedge accounting more closely with an entity's risk management activities. The
new hedge accounting model has also expanded the scope of eligibility of hedge items and hedging instruments respectively.

		

The new requirements on classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities under MFRS 9 are not
expected to have any impact on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company. However, the Group expects
the application of the new expected credit losses impairment on its financial assets to result in additional allowance for
impairment losses for these items in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
2.3 New MFRSs and Amendments to MFRSs and IC Interpretation That Are In Issue But Not Yet Effective and Have Not Been
		
Early Adopted (cont’d)
		b)

MFRS 15 and Clarifications to MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

			

MFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. MFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including MFRS 111, MFRS 118 and the related
IC Interpretations when it becomes effective.

		

The core principle of MFRS 15 is that an entity recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. An entity recognises revenue in accordance with that core principle by applying the following steps :-

			

Step 1 Identify the contract(s) with a customer

			

Step 2 Identify the performance obligations in the contract

			

Step 3 Determine the transaction price

			

Step 4 Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

			

Step 5 Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

		

Under MFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied i.e. when 'control' of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer. MFRS 15 also requires more
extensive disclosures.
The Clarifications to MFRS 15 clarify how certain principles should be applied in:-

			

i)

Identifying whether performance obligations are distinct;

			

ii)

Determining whether an entity is a principal or an agent; and

			

iii)

Assessing whether revenue from a licence of intellectual property is recognised over time or at a point in time.

		

		c)

The Group does not expect the application of the new revenue recognition model to result in any significant impact on the
financial statements of the Group and of the Company as the current recognition policy for the income of the Group and of the
Company continue to be appropriate under MFRS 15.
MFRS 16, Leases

			MFRS 16 will replace the existing standard on Leases, MFRS 117 when it becomes effective. Currently under MFRS 117, a
lease is classified either as a finance lease or an operating lease based on the extent to which risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of the leased asset lie with the lessor or the lessee. A lessee recognises the asset and liability arising from a
finance lease but not an operating lease. MFRS 16 eliminates the distinction between finance leases and operating leases for
lessees. Under the new standard, a lessee is required to recognise the assets and liabilities in respect of all leases, except for
short-term leases of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. At the commencement of a lease, a lessee recognises
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability. The lessee will be required to separately recognise the depreciation
on the right-of-use asset and interest expense on the lease liability. Lessor accounting remained substantially unchanged from
the current accounting under MFRS 117.
		The Group has yet to complete its assessment of the potential impact of the initial application of MFRS 16 on the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company. It is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect until a detailed
review has been completed.
		Other than as described above, the initial application of the other standards, amendments and interpretations is not expected
to have any significant impact on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company.
2.4 Basis of Consolidation
		The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. The financial statements
of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting date as the Company. The consolidated financial statements are prepared
using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group :
		

•

has power over the entity;

		

•

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity; and

		

•

has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

		

The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of controls listed above.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
2.4 Basis of Consolidation (cont'd)
		Consolidation of a subsidiary begins from the date the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary.
In preparing consolidated financial statements, intra-group balances and transactions and the resulting unrealised profits are
eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised losses are eliminated on consolidation and the relevant assets are assessed for impairment.
The consolidated financial statements reflect external transactions and balances only. When necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to ensure conformity with the Group's accounting policies. The total comprehensive income
of a subsidiary is attributed to the Group and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.
Changes in the Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received by the Group is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
If the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary and non-controlling
interests will be derecognised at their carrying amounts at the date when control is lost. Any investment retained in the former
subsidiary is recognised at its fair value at the date when control is lost. The resulting difference between the amounts derecognised
and the aggregate of the fair value of consideration received and investment retained is recognised as gain or loss in profit or loss
attributable to the Group.
2.5 Business Combinations
		

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of an
acquiree is measured at fair value which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred, liabilities
incurred, equity interests issued and contingent consideration given. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as an expense in the
periods in which the costs are incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at
their acquisition-date fair values, except for non-current assets (or disposal group) that are classified as held for sale which shall
be measured at fair value less costs to sell.

		Goodwill is measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previously held equity interest over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The excess of the Group's interest in the net amounts of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previously held equity interest is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
		Non-controlling interests represent that portion of profit or loss and net assets of a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly,
to the Group. For each business combination, non-controlling interests are measured either at their fair value at the acquisition date
or at the non-controlling interests' proportionate share of the subsidiary's identifiable net assets. Non-controlling interests in the
net assets of consolidated subsidiaries comprised the amount of non-controlling interests at the date of original combination and
their share of changes in equity since the date of combination.
		In a business combination achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and
the resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
2.6 Goodwill on Consolidation
		Goodwill arising on the acquisitions of subsidiaries is recognised as an asset and carried at cost as established at the acquisition
date less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill from acquisition
date is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating unit ("CGU") or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination in which the goodwill arose. The test for impairment of goodwill on consolidation is in accordance with
the Group's accounting policy for impairment of non-financial assets. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
a subsequent period.
Where goodwill forms part of a CGU or groups of CGUs and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on
disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation and
the portion of the CGU retained.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
2.7 Share Capital
		Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Distributions to holders of ordinary shares are debited directly to equity and dividends
declared at or before the end of the reporting period are recognised as liabilities. Costs directly attributable to equity transactions
are accounted for as a deduction, net of tax, from equity.
2.8 Property, Plant and Equipment
		Items of property, plant and equipment are initially stated at cost. Cost initially recognised includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Land and buildings are subsequently carried at their revalued amounts, being the fair
value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
Revaluation is made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its
carrying amount. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the
asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. All other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.
		If the carrying amount of land and buildings is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the
same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the
decrease previously expensed. A decrease in the carrying amount arising on a revaluation is recognised to profit or loss to the extent
that it exceeds the credit balance held in the revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.
		Freehold land and capital work-in-progress or unused plant are not depreciated. All other property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on the straight-line basis so as to write off the cost or valuation of the assets to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives. Depreciation on capital work-in-progress or unused plant commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
		Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and their useful lives unless it is reasonably
certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease terms. The annual depreciation rates used are as follows :		

Buildings

5% to 6%

			

Plant and machinery

10% to 15%

			

Office equipment, furniture and fittings

20% to 33 1/3%

			Factory renovation

5%

			Motor vehicles

20%

		The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,
where expectations differ from previous estimates. Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment in accordance with
the Group's accounting policy for impairment of non-financial assets as disclosed in Note 2.9.
		An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the net carrying amount is recognised in profit or
loss and the unutilised portion of the revaluation surplus on that item is taken directly to retained profits.
2.9 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
		The carrying amounts of non-financial assets (other than inventories and deferred tax assets) are reviewed for impairment at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated to determine the amount of impairment loss. For goodwill, intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life and intangible assets that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated at the end of each reporting
period or more frequently when indicators of impairment are identified.
		An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or a cash generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount.
A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or group of assets. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs (or groups of CGUs) are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units (or groups of units) and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the units (or groups of units) on a pro rata basis.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
2.9 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets (cont'd)
		The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
		An impairment loss is charged to the profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount. Any
impairment loss of a revalued asset is recognised in other comprehensive income for that asset to the extent that the impairment
loss does not exceed the amount held in the revaluation surplus account.
		Impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period. An impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill is reversed
if, and only if, there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment
loss was recognised. The carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided
that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill
is recognised to the profit or loss unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case, such reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.
2.10 Hire Purchase and Finance Lease Arrangements and Operating Leases
		A lease is recognised as a finance lease if it transfers substantially to the Group all the risks and rewards incident to ownership of
the leased assets. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
Assets acquired under hire purchase arrangements are recognised and measured in a similar manner as finance leases.
		a)

Assets Acquired under Hire Purchase and Finance Lease Arrangements

			

Assets acquired under hire purchase and finance lease arrangements are stated at the amounts equal at the inception of the
arrangement to the lower of their fair values and the present values of the minimum hire purchase or lease payments.

			The corresponding obligations are taken up as hire purchase or finance lease liabilities. Hire purchase or lease payments are
apportioned between the outstanding liabilities and finance charges which are charged to profit or loss over the period of the hire
purchase/lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liabilities for each period.
		

The depreciation policy of property, plant and equipment acquired under hire purchase and finance lease arrangements are
consistent with the Group's depreciation policy as set out in Note 2.8 above.

		b)

Operating Lease

			

Operating lease payments are recognised as expenses in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the period of the relevant leases.

2.11 Investment in Subsidiary Companies
		Investments in subsidiary companies are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. The investments are reviewed for
impairment in accordance with the Group's accounting policy for impairment of non-financial assets.
2.12 Investment in Club Membership
		

Investment in club membership is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
The investment in club membership is reviewed for impairment in accordance with the Group's accounting policy for impairment of
non-financial assets.

2.13 Inventories
		

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value with cost determined on the weighted average cost basis. Cost include
the actual cost of logs and other raw materials, direct labour and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less distribution expenses and all other estimated costs to completion.

2.14 Provisions
		

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal and constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of provision is measured at
the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the amount
of a provision due to passage of time is recognised as finance cost.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
2.15 Taxation
		Tax expense is the aggregate amount of current and deferred taxation. Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income
or expense in profit or loss except to the extent that the taxes relate to items recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity or a business combination.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the
end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at end of the reporting period between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities and the amounts attributed to those assets and liabilities for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and unabsorbed tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the assets can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realised.
Tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period are used to determine deferred tax.
2.16 Foreign Currencies
		a)
			

b)

Functional and Presentation Currency
The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is also the Company's functional currency.
Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

			

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recorded in the functional currencies using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date of the transactions. Non-monetary items that
are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

		

Exchange differences arising from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the translation of foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

		

Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for
the period except for the differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains or losses
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income. Exchange differences arising from such non-monetary items are
recognised directly to other comprehensive income.

2.17 Employee Benefits
		i)
			

ii)

Short-Term Benefits
Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions, paid annual and sick leave and non-monetary benefits are
recognised as an expense or included in the costs of assets, where applicable, in the period in which the associated services
are rendered by the employees of the Group.
Defined Contribution Plans

			The Group provides post-employment benefits by way of contribution to defined contribution plans operated by the relevant
authorities at the prescribed rates.
		

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

		

The Group's contributions to define contribution plans are recognised as an expense in the period to which the contributions
relate or included in the costs of assets, where applicable.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
2.17 Employee Benefits (cont'd)
		iii)
			

Defined Benefit Plans
Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefits plans other than defined contribution plans and under which the pension
benefits payable to employees are usually determined by reference to employee's earning and/or length of service.

			The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit final salary plan for eligible employees.
			The liability recognised in the statement of financial position is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
reporting date.
			The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined on a triennial basis by independent qualified actuaries using
the Projected Unit Credit Method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimate
of the amount of benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods using interest
rate of high quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid and
that have terms of maturity approximating the terms of the Company's obligations.
			Actuarial gains or losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.
			Past service cost is the change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from a plan amendment or
curtailment. Past service cost is recognised as an expense in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment or curtailment.
			The Company recognises the components of defined benefit cost as follows :
			•
			
•
			
•

current service cost, past service cost and gains or losses on curtailment and settlement to profit or loss;
net interest on the net defined liability to profit or loss; and
remeasurement of the net defined liability in other comprehensive income.

			Net interest on the net defined liability is determined by multiplying the net defined liability by the discount rate used in
determining the present value of defined benefit obligation, both as determined at the start of the annual reporting period,
taking into account of any changes in the net defined liability during the period as a result of contribution and benefit
payments.
iv)

Termination Benefits

			Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date, or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits at the
earlier of (i) when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (ii) when the Group recognises costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of MFRS 137, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
		

Termination benefits falling over more than twelve (12) months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present
value.

2.18 Revenue Recognition
		

Revenue is recognised upon delivery and acceptance of goods by customers and rendering of services.
Rental income is recognised on an accrual basis over the period of tenancy.

2.19 Borrowing Costs
		

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, production or preparation of assets until they are ready
for their intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.

2.20 Cash and Cash Equivalents
		

Cash and cash equivalents in the statements of cash flows comprise cash and bank balances, deposits with licensed banks and
short term investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, reduced by bank overdrafts. The statements of cash flows are prepared using the indirect method.

		Cash and cash equivalents (other than bank overdrafts) are categorised and measured as loans and receivables in accordance with
the policy set out in Note 2.21(a).
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
2.21 Financial Assets
		

The Group recognises all financial assets in its statement of financial position when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

		Classification and measurement
		Financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction costs.
Financial assets are classified into specified categories namely financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity
investments, loans and receivables or available-for-sale financial assets depending on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and are determined at the time of initial recognition. The Group classified its financial assets as follows :(a)
			

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Trade receivables, loans and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.

			Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, and through
the amortisation process.
Regular way purchase or sale of financial assets
		Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised using trade date accounting. Trade date
accounting refers to :		•

the recognition of an asset to be received and the liability to pay for it on the trade date which is the date the Group commits
itself to purchase or sell an asset; and

•

derecognition of an asset that is sold, the recognition of any gain or loss on disposal and the recognition of a receivable from
the buyer for payment on the trade date.

		Impairment of financial assets
		The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset, other than
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, is impaired. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when objective
evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the assets and that the loss event had a negative
effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be reliably estimated. Losses expected as a result of future events,
no matter how likely, are not recognised. For quoted equity instrument, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
investment below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
An amount of impairment loss in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate i.e. the effective rate computed at initial recognition. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through an allowance
account. The amount of loss is recognised in profit or loss.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account to the extent that the carrying amount of the financial asset does not
exceed its amortised cost had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of reversal
is recognised in profit or loss.
		Derecognition of a financial asset
		
The Group derecognises a financial asset when, and only when, the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or it transfers the financial asset without retaining control or substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset to another party.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
2.22 Financial Liabilities
		

The Group recognises all financial liabilities in its statement of financial position when, and only when, the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

		Classification and measurement
		Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus in the case of financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs.
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other financial liabilities. The
Group classified its financial liabilities as follows :(a)

Other financial liabilities

			All financial liabilities, other than those categorised as fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Other financial liabilities of the Group include trade and other payables and bank
borrowings.
			A gain or loss on other financial liabilities is recognised in profit or loss when the financial liabilities are derecognised and
through the amortisation process.
Derecognition of a financial liability
		A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation specified in the contract is extinguished. When an
existing financial liability is exchanged with the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, they are accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and a new financial liability is
recognised. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
2.23 Financial Guarantee Contracts
		

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, net of transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial guarantee contracts are amortised to profit or loss using the straight-line method over the
contractual period or, when there is no specified contractual period, recognised in profit or loss upon discharge of the guarantee.
When settlement of a financial guarantee contract becomes probable, an estimate of the obligation is made in accordance with
MFRS 137, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. If the carrying amount of the financial guarantee is lower than
the obligation estimated, the carrying value is adjusted to the obligation amount and accounted for as a provision.

2.24 Earnings Per Share
		

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the financial year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year, net of treasury shares held.
Diluted earnings per share is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding, net of treasury shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.25 Operating Segments
		

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses, including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the Group. Operating segment results
are reviewed by the chief operating decision maker i.e. the Group Managing Director who makes decision about resources to be
allocated to the segments and to assess their performance and for which discrete financial information is available.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards and International Financial
Reporting Standards requires management to exercise their judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and
which may have significant effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. It also requires the use of accounting estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the results reported for the reporting period and that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Although these judgements and estimates are
based on the management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may differ.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont'd)
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
a)
		

Significant judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies
In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, the management are of the opinion that
any instances of application of judgement are not expected to have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements, apart from those involving estimations which are dealt with below.

b)
		

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.
i)

			

ii)
			

iii)
			

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses impairment of property, plant and equipment, investments in subsidiary companies and other investments
when the events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets may not be recoverable. In
assessing such impairment, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated using the latest available fair value after taking
into account the costs to sell or expected value in use of the relevant assets.
Impairment losses of receivables
The Group evaluates the allowance for impairment losses based on an assessment of the recoverability of receivables.
Allowances are applied to receivables where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. In assessing the extent of irrecoverable debts, the management has given due consideration to all pertinent
information relating to the ability of the debtors to settle debts. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of the receivables.
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unabsorbed tax losses, unutilised capital allowances and other deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses, capital allowances
and other deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Management's judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based on the assessment on the probability of the availability of future taxable
profits. The total carrying amount of deferred tax assets recognised on unabsorbed tax losses, unutilised capital allowances
and other deductible temporary differences of the Group and the Company at the end of the reporting period are RM2,954,793
(2016 : RM2,242,411) and RM429,728 (2016 : RM405,123) respectively.
The unrecognised unabsorbed tax losses, unutilised allowances and other deductible temporary differences are disclosed
under Note 21(b) and the unrecognised deferred tax assets in connection thereto at the end of the reporting period are
estimated at RM8,820,097 (2016 : RM9,159,619) and RM691,508 (2016 : RM597,144) for the Group and the Company
respectively.

iv)
			

v)
			

Retirement benefit obligations
The Group’s retirement benefit obligations for eligible employees were measured by an actuarial valuation using the Projected
Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method. According to this method, several statistical information and assumptions are used
to determine the expense and liability. Statistical information is principally related to demographic assumptions such as
mortality, employee turnover and early retirement. The assumptions are mainly discount rate and future salary increase rate.
In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group considers the interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the
related retirement benefit obligations. All these assumptions are disclosed in Note 18.
Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Group reviews annually the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment based on various factors such as
level of usage and business plans. The estimated useful lives are as disclosed in Note 2.8. Changes in the expected level
of usage and business plan could impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore future
depreciation charges could be revised.
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7,400,000
540,000
7,940,000

-

7,940,000

Group 2017
Cost/Valuation
At beginning of year
Reclassification		
Additions			
Revaluation			
Transfer			
At end of year		

Accumulated depreciation
At beginning of year
Reclassification		
Charge for the year
Revaluation			
At end of year		

Accumulated impairment loss
At beginning of year
Write back of impairment loss
At end of year		
Net book value		

11,996,854

2,995,714
715,714
(3,711,428)
-

12,900,000
(903,146)
11,996,854

43,146

1,756
2,078
(3,834)
-

39,112
7,843
(3,809)
43,146

4,474,066

56,634
56,634

4,530,700
4,530,700

8,500
8,500
5,688,845

11,084,026
239,739
11,323,765

11,883,288
90,989
5,046,833
17,021,110

57,235

2,256,733
25,355
2,282,088

2,308,711
30,612
2,339,323

175,329

1,344,424
19,780
1,364,204

1,421,533
118,000
1,539,533

66,356

11,505
(1,756)
4,006
13,755

119,223
(39,112)
80,111

8,217,492
(107,669)
8,109,823
9,869

-

8,227,492
(107,800)
8,119,692

-

-

8,768,739
818,994
(9,587,733)
-

					
<------------ At valuation -----------> <------------------------------------------------- At cost ----------------------------------------------->
										 Office
										
equipment,				
Capital
					
Freehold
Freehold
Factory
Freehold
Plant and
furniture
Motor
Factory
Unused
work in
					
land
building
renovation
building
machinery and fittings
vehicles
renovation
plant
progress
					
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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8,225,992
(107,669)
8,118,323
30,451,700

17,692,402
1,063,306
(3,715,262)
15,040,446		

53,028,986
948,438
(366,955)
53,610,469

Total
RM
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7,400,000
7,400,000

-

7,400,000

Group 2016
Cost/Valuation
At beginning of year
Additions			
Disposals			
Write off			
At end of year		

Accumulated depreciation
At beginning of year
Charge for the year
Disposals			
Write off			
At end of year		

Accumulated impairment loss
At beginning /end of year
Net book value		
9,904,286

2,280,000
715,714
2,995,714

12,900,000
12,900,000

8,500
790,762

11,258,012
104,724
(278,710)
11,084,026

12,062,137
99,862
(278,711)
11,883,288

51,978

2,235,174
21,559
2,256,733

2,279,624
29,087
2,308,711

77,109

1,388,609
13,880
(58,065)
1,344,424

1,479,599
(58,066)
1,421,533

107,718

6,286
5,219
11,505

92,786
26,437
119,223

8,217,492
10,000

-

8,227,492
8,227,492

8,768,739

-

2,914,100
5,854,639
8,768,739

					
<------- At valuation ------>
<------------------------------------------- At cost ----------------------------------------->
								
Office
								equipment,				 Capital
					
Freehold
Freehold
Plant and
furniture
Motor
Factory
Unused
work in
					
land
building
machinery
and fittings
vehicles
renovation
plant
progress
					
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D)

8,225,992
27,110,592

17,168,081
861,096
(278,710)
(58,065)
17,692,402

47,355,738
6,010,025
(278,711)
(58,066)
53,028,986

Total
RM
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4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont’d)
				
<------------At valuation ----------->
<------ At cost ------>
							 Office equipment,
					
Freehold
Freehold
motor vehicle,
					
land
building
furniture and fittings
					
RM
RM
RM

Total
RM

Company 2017
Cost/Valuation
At beginning of year

5,000,000

3,000,000

1,443,276

9,443,276

Additions			

-

-

1,603

1,603

Revaluation			

(300,000)

(100,000)

-

(400,000)

At end of year		

4,700,000

2,900,000

1,444,879

9,044,879

At beginning of year

-

450,000

1,419,994

1,869,994

Charge for the year

-

150,000

6,037

156,037

Revaluation			

-

(600,000)

-

(600,000)

At end of year		

-

-

1,426,031

1,426,031

4,700,000

2,900,000

18,848

7,618,848

5,000,000

3,000,000

1,433,746

9,433,746

-

-

9,530

9,530

5,000,000

3,000,000

1,443,276

9,443,276

At beginning of year

-

300,000

1,415,341

1,715,341

Charge for the year

-

150,000

4,653

154,653

Accumulated depreciation

Net book value
Company 2016
Cost/Valuation
At beginning of year
Additions			
At end of year		
Accumulated depreciation

At end of year		

-

450,000

1,419,994

1,869,994

Net book value		

5,000,000

2,550,000

23,282

7,573,282

a)

The property, plant and equipment of a subsidiary company with a net carrying amount of RM17,808,150 (2016 : RM15,295,541)
as at 31 December 2017 are subject to fixed and floating charges to secure a term loan facility for the subsidiary company as
disclosed in Note 19.

b)

The freehold land and buildings of the Group and of the Company have been revalued by the directors on 31 December 2017 based
on their open market values as ascertained through an independent valuation carried out by professional valuers on that date. As at 31
December 2016, the freehold land and building of the Group and of the Company are stated at valuation by the directors based on their
open market values as ascertained by professional valuers in 2013.

		The fair values of the freehold land and building of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2017 are RM19,980,000 and
RM7,600,000 respectively. In the assessment of the fair values, the sales prices of comparable properties in the locality are adjusted for
factors which affect value such as the size of the properties. The most significant input into this valuation is price per square foot.
		The Group uses the following level of fair value hierarchy for determining the fair values of the freehold land and buildings of the
Group and of the Company :Level 1 :

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets.

Level 2 :

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 :

Inputs for the asset that are not based on observable market data.

		The fair values of the freehold land and buildings as at the end of the reporting period are determined in accordance with Level 2
of the fair value hierarchy.
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4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont’d)
c)

Had the freehold land and buildings of the Group been carried under the cost model, the carrying amount as at 31 December 2017,
would have been RM2,920,000 (2016 : RM2,920,000) and RM1,439,879 (2016 : RM1,569,620) respectively.
Had the freehold land and building of the Company been carried under the cost model, the carrying amount as at 31 December 2017,
would have been RM2,120,000 (2016 : RM2,120,000) and RM1,110,627 (2016 : RM1,180,041) respectively.

d)

The titles to all freehold land of the Company and a subsidiary company with a total net carrying amount as at 31 December 2017 of
RM7,940,000 (2016 : RM7,400,000) have yet to be registered in the name of the Company and the subsidiary company as at the
end of the reporting period. The transfers of these titles to the Company and the subsidiary company are in progress as at the date
of this report.

e)

Property, plant and equipment of the Group and of the Company include the following assets acquired under hire purchase arrangements :-

						
					
Cost
					
RM
		Group 2017
		Motor vehicles
174,613

Accumulated
depreciation
RM

Net book
value
RM

Current year
depreciation
RM

174,612

1

-

		Group 2016
		Motor vehicles

213,611

213,609

2

-

		Company 2017
		Motor vehicle

174,613

174,612

1

-

		Company 2016
		Motor vehicle

174,613

174,612

1

-

f)

The unused plant refers to a Woodwaste Fired Cogeneration System boiler plant acquired by a subsidiary company which has yet
to be installed. The directors had reviewed the carrying amount of the asset for impairment given that there was no immediate
plan for use of the asset and its limited potential for sale in the market. Based on their review, the directors had assessed the
recoverable amount of the asset to be its scrap value of RM10,000. The scrap value was based on an indicative offer determined
in accordance with Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy whereby the most significant input was the sale value per metric ton of scrap
metal. Accordingly, the asset had been impaired to its estimated recoverable amount of RM10,000. During the current financial
year, certain parts of the unused plant with cost amounting to RM107,800 were used for the construction of a plant and machinery
of a fellow subsidiary company.

5. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
				
				
				
				

GROUP
Short term leasehold land
2017
2016
RM
RM

		
Cost
		 At beginning/end of year		

795,000

795,000

		 At beginning of year		

393,692

355,220

		 Charge for the year		

38,472

38,472

		 At end of year		

432,164

393,692

		
Net carrying amount at end of year		362,836

401,308

		 Accumulated Amortisation

a)

Prepaid lease payments have been reclassified from property, plant and equipment as a result of the adoption of FRS 117, Leases
in 2007. In accordance with the transitional provisions of FRS 117, the unamortised revalued amount of leasehold lands have been
retained as the surrogate carrying amount of prepaid lease payments.

b)

The leasehold land are amortised on a straight line basis over the period of their respective lease term ranging from 12 to 27 years.
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6. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
				
				
				

COMPANY
2017
RM

2016
RM

		 Unquoted shares, at cost		

19,874,113

19,873,553

		 Accumulated impairment losses		

(18,591,858)

(18,591,858)

				

1,282,255

1,281,695

a) Details of the subsidiary companies
		

Details of the subsidiary companies, all of which have their place of incorporation and principal place of business in Malaysia are as follows :Equity Interest (%)

			
		
		
		

Name of Company

2017

2016

Principal Activities

Besut Tsuda Industries Sendirian Berhad
100.00 100.00 Investment holding, logging, sawmilling and trading of
			
sawn timber and logs

		
Syarikat Maskayu Sawmill Sdn. Bhd.
99.99
99.99 Logging, sawmilling, and trading of sawn timber and logs
					
(presently dormant)
		
		
		

Besut Tsuda Wood Products Sdn. Bhd.
100.00 100.00 Kiln-drying operations, timber moulding and manufacturing
(held indirectly through Besut Tsuda			
of finger jointed timber and lamination boards
Industries Sendirian Berhad)

		

BTM Marketing & Trading Sdn. Bhd.

100.00

100.00

Trading of sawn timber and plywood

		
BTM Biomass Products Sdn. Bhd.
100.00 100.00 Manufacturing and sale of wood pellets
					
(commence production during the year)
		
		

BTM Capital Sdn. Bhd.
(previously known as
BTM Gourmet Sdn. Bhd.)

100.00

100.00

Dormant

		
BTM Open Road Auto Sdn. Bhd.
51.0
50.00 Intended to venture into motor vehicle dealership
					
business (presently dormant)
		
BTM Western Power Green Energy Sdn. Bhd.
51.0
- Intended to invest, construct, operate and manage a
					 waste to energy power generation plant (presently dormant)
		BTM Open Road Auto Sdn. Bhd. has issued and paid-up share capital of RM2 comprising 2 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each as at the
end of the previous year. The Company's beneficial interest of 50% in the previous year represented by 1 ordinary share of RM1.00
was held in trust by a director on behalf of the Company. The holding of this ordinary share was transferred to the Company in the
current financial year. The Company's equity interest in the subsidiary company was increased to 51% following the subscription of
additional 50 ordinary shares at the issue price of RM1.00 each in the subsidiary company during the current financial year.
		During the current financial year, the Company has on 22 November 2017 acquired a 51% equity interest in BTM Western Power
Green Energy Sdn. Bhd. through the subscription of 510 ordinary shares at the issue price of RM1.00 each in the subsidiary company.
b) Non-controlling interest in subsidiary companies
		

The Company's non-wholly owned subsidiary companies namely BTM Open Road Auto Sdn. Bhd. and BTM Western Power Green
Energy Sdn. Bhd. do not have non-controlling interest which are material to the Group as at the reporting date as they are presently
dormant.

7. INVESTMENT IN CLUB MEMBERSHIP
				
				
				

GROUP/COMPANY
2017
2016
RM
RM

		 Golf club membership, at cost		

40,000

40,000

		 Less : Allowance for impairment loss		

(40,000)

(40,000)

-

-
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8. INVENTORIES
				
				
				

GROUP
2017
RM

2016
RM

		
At cost :		

Raw material		

74,298

-

		

Logs and sawn timber		

974,715

1,150,453

		

Manufactured timber products		

5,616,171

5,992,983

		

Consumables stores		

327,330

395,701

		

Manufactured wood pellets		

233,868

-

		

Others		

-

112

7,226,382

7,539,249

				
		
At net realisable value :		

Logs and sawn timber		

				

16,315

16,315

7,242,697

7,555,564

Inventories amounting to RM6,934,531 (2016 : RM7,555,452) have been pledged as securities to a licensed bank for a term loan facility
granted to a subsidiary company.

9. TRADE RECEIVABLES
				
				
				

GROUP
2017
RM

2016
RM

		 Trade receivables		

1,304,413

1,354,938

		 Less : Allowance for impairment loss		

(10,028)

(10,028)

				

1,294,385

1,344,910

a)
The currency exposure profile of trade receivables is as follows :				
				
				
		

Ringgit Malaysia		

		

United States Dollar		

				
b)
The ageing analysis of trade receivables as at end of the reporting period is as follows :				
				
				

GROUP
2017
RM

2016
RM

952,357

1,220,396

352,056

134,542

1,304,413

1,354,938

GROUP
2017
RM

2016
RM

		

Past due 1 - 30 days		

-

25,609

		

Past due 31 - 120 days		

97,883

3,293

		

Past due more than 120 days		

845,443

847,322

		

Balance past due but not impaired		

943,326

876,224

		

Balance past due more than 120 days and impaired		

10,028

10,028

		

Balance neither past due nor impaired		

351,059

468,686

		

Total trade receivables		

1,304,413

1,354,938

		

The normal credit term of trade receivables is 30 days (2016 : 30 days).

		Trade receivables that are not impaired are considered to be creditworthy and are able to settle their debts.
		Trade receivables are individually determined to be impaired when they have defaulted on their settlements and are deemed to be
unable to fulfill their obligations to settle.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security for the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period.
During the financial year, the Group did not renegotiate the terms of any trade receivables.
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9. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)
c)

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has significant concentration of credit risk arising from the exposure to the amounts
owing by the related parties as disclosed in Note 31(c)(iii) to the financial statements. The total amount owing by related parties
represents approximately 62% (2016 : 79%) of the total trade receivables. The amounts due and repayments from these related
parties are closely monitored to ensure credit limits and terms are complied with.

d)
The movements of allowance for impairment loss during the year are as follows :				
				
				

GROUP
2017
RM

2016
RM

10,028

31,258

		

At beginning of year		

		

Bad debts written off during the year		

-

		

At end of financial year		

10,028

(21,230)
10,028

10. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
						
		
		

GROUP		COMPANY

2017 		
RM		

2016
RM

2017		
RM		

2016
RM

Other receivables and deposits		

486,418		

698,536

19,750		

131,600

Less : Allowance for impairment losses		

(48,333)		

(118,069)

-		

(111,850)

			

438,085		 580,467

19,750		

19,750

Prepayments		

239,683		 150,867

49,827		

8,206

			

677,768		 731,334

69,577		

27,956

The movements of allowance for impairment loss during the year are as follows :						
		
		
At beginning of year		

GROUP		
COMPANY

2017 		
RM		

2016
RM

118,069		

118,069

Allowance for impairment losses		

42,114		

Bad debt written off 		

(111,850)		

At end of year		

48,333		

2017		
RM		

2016
RM

111,850		

111,850

-

-		

-

-

(111,850)		

-

118,069

-		

111,850

11. AMOUNT DUE FROM SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
The amount due from subsidiary companies are interest-free, unsecured and are repayable on demand. The amount is stated net of
impairment loss of RM13,846,313 (2016 : RM13,846,313).

12. FIXED DEPOSITS WITH LICENSED BANKS
The effective interest rates and maturity profile of the fixed deposits with licensed banks of the Group as at the end of the financial year
range from 2.80% to 3.31% (2016 : 2.80% to 3.45%) per annum and 1 to 12 months (2016 : 1 to 12 months) respectively. In respect
of the Company, the effective interest rates and maturity profile of the fixed deposits with licensed banks as at the end of the previous
financial year is 2.80% per annum and 1 month respectively.
Fixed deposits of the Group amounting to RM219,573 (2016 : RM212,584) in the name of a subsidiary company are pledged to a licensed
bank as securities for a term loan facility granted to the subsidiary company.
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13. SHARE CAPITAL
							

GROUP/COMPANY

					
					

2017 		
RM		

2016
RM

Authorised :500,000,000 ordinary shares of RM0.20 each				
							
		
		

-		
100,000,000

GROUP/COMPANY

2017		
2016
Number		 Number

2017 		
RM		

2016
RM

Issued and fully paid :Ordinary shares
At beginning of year		

125,302,588 		 125,302,588

25,060,517		

25,060,517

Effect of change to no par value shares on
31 January 2017		

-		

-

424,700		

-

3,192,200		

-

1,075,771		

-

128,494,788 		 125,302,588

26,560,988		

25,060,517

Issuance of new shares from conversion of
Warrants 2014/2024 (Note 17)		
At end of year		

The new Companies Act 2016 ("Act") which became effective from 31 January 2017 abolished the concept of authorised share capital
and par value of share capital. Section 74 of the Act provides that all shares issued before or upon commencement of the Act shall have
no par or nominal value. In accordance with the transitional provision under Section 618(2) of the Act, any amount standing in the credit
of the share premium account shall become part of the share capital. Notwithstanding, the share premium amount can be utilised for
purposes as set out in Section 618(3) of the Act within 24 months upon commencement of the Act. Pursuant to the aforesaid, the share
premium of RM424,700 as disclosed in Note 14 was transferred to the share capital account and formed part of the share capital of the
Company upon commencement of the Act on 31 January 2017. The change to no par value shares has no effect on the number of ordinary
shares in issue of the Company.
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote
per share without restrictions and rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets.
Warrants 2009/2019
These warrants which were issued as free detachable warrants together with a rights issue of ordinary shares in 2009 carry the entitlement,
at any time from the issue date on 21 December 2009 up to the close of business at 5.00 p.m. in Malaysia on the maturity date of 20
December 2019 ("Exercise Period"), to subscribe for one new ordinary share in the Company at the exercise price of RM0.94 which shall
be satisfied in cash. Any warrant not exercised during the Exercise Period will lapse and thereafter cease to be valid for any purpose.
Warrants 2009/2019 are constituted by the Deed Poll dated 16 November 2009.
The total number of Warrants 2009/2019 that remained unexercised are as follows :				
				
				
		 At beginning/end of year		

GROUP/COMPANY
2017
2016
Number
Number
19,985,593
19,985,593

14. SHARE PREMIUM
										
										
										
		 At beginning of year				
		 Effect of change to no par value shares on 31 January 2017 (Note 13)			
		 At end of year					
.

GROUP/COMPANY
2017
2016
RM
RM
424,700
424,700
(424,700)
424,700
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15. REVALUATION RESERVES
						
		
		

GROUP		COMPANY

2017 		
RM		

2016
RM

At beginning of year		

16,377,545		

16,377,545

Revaluation surplus during the year		

3,348,307		

Transfer to deferred taxation (Note 21)		

(700,993)		

At end of year		

19,024,859		

2017		
RM		

2016
RM

4,198,896		

4,198,896

-

200,000		

-

-

(105,000)		

-

16,377,545

4,293,896		

4,198,896

Revaluation reserves represent surplus net of tax arising from revaluation of land and building under property, plant and equipment.

16. CAPITAL RESERVES
								
GROUP
					
					
At beginning/end of year					

2017		
RM		
531,845		

2016
RM
531,845

The above represents net surplus on the revaluation of the Group's short term leasehold land in 2006, recategorised as capital reserve
on transition to MFRS framework.

17. WARRANT RESERVE
GROUP/COMPANY
								
				
				
At beginning of year		
Transfer to share capital upon conversion of Warrants 2014/2024 (Note 13)		
At end of year		

2017
RM
4,039,766
(437,331)
3,602,435

2016
RM
4,039,766
4,039,766

The warrant reserve represents the fair value allocated to the outstanding 26,295,146 (2016 : 29,487,346) free detachable Warrants
2014/2024 issued together with a rights issue of ordinary shares by the Company in 2014. The fair value allocated to each of the
Warrants 2014/2024 as at their issuance date is RM0.137 which has been ascertained through an independent valuation performed by
professional valuers using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The fair value determined is in accordance with Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy as defined in Note 4(b) which is based on observable inputs including the Company's share prices and volatility of the share
prices over a trading period and market risk free rate of return.
The Warrants 2014/2024 carry the entitlement, at any time from the issue date on 24 October 2014 up to the close of business at 5.00
p.m. in Malaysia on the maturity date of 23 October 2024 ("Exercise Period"), to subscribe for one new ordinary share in the Company at
the exercise price of RM0.20 which shall be satisfied in cash. Any warrant not exercised during the Exercise Period will lapse and thereafter
cease to be valid for any purpose.
Warrants 2014/2024 are constituted by the Deed Poll dated 12 September 2014.
The movements in the number of Warrants 2014/2024 that remained unexercised are as follows :			
				
				
At beginning of year		
Warrants converted into new ordinary shares during the year (Note 13)		
At end of year		

GROUP/COMPANY
2017
2016
Number
Number
29,487,346
29,487,346
(3,192,200)
26,295,146
29,487,346

18. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
						
		
		
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligations

GROUP		COMPANY

2017 		
RM		
1,985,245		

2016
RM

1,736,261

2017		
RM		
455,384		

2016
RM
411,309
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18. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont'd)
a)

Provision for employees' retirement benefit obligations was determined by an independent actuarial valuation using the Projected
Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method and was made to cover estimated obligations for payment of retirement benefits to employees. The
valuation was performed as at 31 December 2016. These benefits are payable upon reaching the age of retirement, on retirement
due to medical grounds or upon death in respect of employees who have served continuously for a period of ten (10) or more years.

		The movements in the present value of unfunded defined benefit obligations during the year are as follows :						
		
		
		At beginning of year		
		

GROUP		COMPANY

2017 		
RM		

2016
RM

1,736,261		1,697,775

2017		
RM		

2016
RM

411,309		 395,102

Defined benefit cost recognised in

		

profit or loss [Note 18(b)]		

		

Actuarial gain arising from remeasurements

248,984		

239,684

44,075		

36,732

		

due to :-

		

- Changes in financial assumptions		

-		

(21,318)

-		

(3,393)

- Experience adjustments		

-		

(179,880)

-		

(17,132)

-		

(201,198)

-		

(20,525)

		
		

Actuarial gain recognised in other

		

comprehensive income		

		At end of year		
b)

1,985,245		1,736,261

The amount of defined benefit cost recognised in profit or loss of the Group and of the Company can be analysed into the following
components :-

						
		
		
		

455,384		 411,309

Current service cost		

GROUP		COMPANY

2017 		
RM		
159,401 		

2016
RM
156,422

2017		
RM		
22,089		

2016
RM
22,662

		Past service cost		

-		

4,857

-		

-

		Interest cost		

89,583		

78,405

21,986		

14,070

248,984		 239,684

44,075		

36,732

					
c)

The significant actuarial assumptions used for determination of the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows :-

						

GROUP		COMPANY

		
		

2017 		
%		

2016
%

2017		
%		

2016
%

		Discount rate		

5.40		

5.40

5.40		

5.40

		Salary increment rate		

4.50		

4.50

4.50		

4.50

The discount rate is determined based on the values of AA rated corporate bond yields with 3 to 15 years of maturity.
d)

A sensitivity analysis of the effects of changes to the significant actuarial assumptions [as disclosed in Note 18(c)] on the defined
benefit obligations as at the end of the year, with all other assumptions remain constant is as follows :-

						
		
		

GROUP		COMPANY

2017 		
RM		

2016
RM

2017		
RM		

2016
RM

		Discount rate
		 1% increase		

(141,414)		 (131,403)

(21,430)		 (22,887)

		1% decrease		

165,781		 153,276

23,156		

24,886

		1% increase		

175,122		 144,143

25,376		

22,789

		 1% decrease		

(151,880)		 (125,915)

		
		Salary increment rate
(23,846)		 (21,420)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in defined benefit obligations as the change
in assumptions unlikely would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
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19. TERM LOAN (SECURED)
							
GROUP
				
					

2017		

2016

RM		

RM

Amount due within one year (included under current liabilities)				

1,215,343		

1,068,746

Amount due more than one year (included under non-current liabilities)			

2,938,910		

3,904,840

Outstanding principal at year end					

4,154,253		

4,973,586

The above term loan granted by Small Medium Enterprise Development Bank Malaysia Berhad to a subsidiary company resulted from
the restructuring of two previous outstanding loans. The restructured term loan shall be repayable over 60 equal monthly instalments
commencing after the formalisation of a Supplemental Facility Agreement executed with the lending bank which was stamped on 24
February 2016. The first monthly instalment payment for the restructured term loan commenced on 29 February 2016 based on a written
advice from the bank on 25 February 2016.
Outstanding interest of RM1,011,650 accrued on the restructured term loan due to delay in the formalisation of the supplemental facility
agreement and included in other payables as at 31 December 2015 was waived in the previous year as disclosed in Note 25.
The Group's term loan is secured by :a)

First fixed charge over land and buildings of a subsidiary company;

b)

A debenture creating first fixed and floating charges on all present and future assets of the subsidiary company;

c)

Unconditional and irrevocable corporate guarantee from the Company;

d)

Unconditional and irrevocable joint and several guarantee from a director and past directors of the subsidiary company; and

e)

Assignment of monies in sinking fund account in which an amount equivalent to five per cent from each export proceeds is to be deposited.

Interest charged on the term loan is at the rate of 8.85% (2016 : 8.85%) per annum.

20. HIRE PURCHASE CREDITORS
							

GROUP/COMPANY

					
					

2017		
RM		

2016
RM

Future minimum payments:Payable within one year					
Payable more than one year					
								
Future finance charges					
Present value					

25,776		

22,908

5,621		

28,529

31,397 		
(858)		
30,539		

51,437
(2,701)
48,736

Payable within one year
(included under current liabilities)					

(24,961)		

(21,065)

5,578		

27,671

Payable more than one year
(included under non-current liabilities)					

21. DEFERRED TAXATION
						
		
		

GROUP		COMPANY

2017 		
RM		

2016
RM

2017		
RM		

2016
RM

At beginning of year		

165,000		

165,000

95,000		

95,000

Recognised in profit or loss (Note 26)		

(673,993)		

-

(120,000)		

-

Recognised in other comprehensive income (Note 15)

700,993		

-

105,000		

-

At end of year		

192,000		

165,000

80,000		

95,000
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21. DEFERRED TAXATION (cont'd)
a)

The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised in the financial statements during the financial year
are as follows:							 Recognised
					
At
Recognised
in other
					
beginning
in profit comprehensive
At end
					
of year
or loss
income
of year
					
RM
RM
RM
RM
		Group 2017
		Deferred tax liabilities :		

Revaluation of land and building

		

Accelerated capital allowances

					

2,404,959

(297,487)

700,993

2,808,465

2,452

335,876

-

338,328

2,407,411

38,389

700,993

3,146,793

(294,919)

294,919

-

-

		Deferred tax assets :		

Excess of depreciation over capital allowances

		

Unutilised capital allowances

		

Unabsorbed tax losses

(473,827)

(442,593)

-

(916,420)

(1,473,665)

(564,708)

-

(2,038,373)

					

(2,242,411)

(712,382)

-

(2,954,793)

					

165,000

(673,993)

700,993

192,000

2,541,986

(137,027)

-

2,404,959

		Group 2016
		Deferred tax liabilities :		

Revaluation of land and building

		

Accelerated capital allowances

					

2,184

268

-

2,452

2,544,170

(136,759)

-

2,407,411

(341,918)

46,999

-

(294,919)

		Deferred tax assets :		

Excess of depreciation over capital allowances

		

Unutilised capital allowances

		

Unabsorbed tax losses

(1,165,834)

692,007

-

(473,827)

(871,418)

(602,247)

-

(1,473,665)

					

(2,379,170)

136,759

-

(2,242,411)

					

165,000

-

-

165,000

498,988

(94,538)

105,000

509,450

		Company 2017
		Deferred tax liabilities :		

Revaluation of land and building

		

Accelerated capital allowances

					

1,135

(857)

-

278

500,123

(95,395)

105,000

509,728

(12,755)

(287)

-

(13,042)

		Deferred tax assets :		

Unutilised capital allowances

		

Unabsorbed tax losses

(392,368)

(24,318)

-

(416,686)

					

(405,123)

(24,605)

-

(429,728)

					

95,000

(120,000)

105,000

506,428

(7,440)

-

498,988

350

785

-

1,135

506,778

(6,655)

-

500,123

80,000					

		Company 2016
		Deferred tax liabilities :		

Revaluation of land and building

		

Accelerated capital allowances

					
		Deferred tax assets :		

Unutilised capital allowances

		

Unabsorbed tax losses

(11,160)

(1,595)

-

(12,755)

(400,618)

8,250

-

(392,368)

					

(411,778)

6,655

-

(405,123)

					

95,000

-

-

95,000
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21. DEFERRED TAXATION (cont’d)
b)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items which are available for set-off against future taxable profit :-

						
		
		
		

Other deductible temporary differences		

		Unutilised capital allowances		

GROUP		COMPANY

2017 		
RM		
1,985,163 		

2016
RM

1,736,273

106,302		

2017		
RM		
455,384		

23,737

2016
RM
411,309

-		

-

		Unabsorbed tax losses		

31,265,942		
33,012,068

2,425,900		2,076,793

		Unutilised reinvestment allowances		

3,393,000		3,393,000

-		

					

36,750,407		
38,165,078

2,881,284		2,488,102

-

22. TRADE PAYABLES
The normal credit terms for trade payables range from 30 days to 90 days (2016 : 30 days to 90 days).
The currency exposure profile of trade payables is as follows:				
				
				
		 Ringgit Malaysia		
		 United States Dollar		
				

GROUP
2017
RM

2016
RM

2,328,927

1,793,501

104,540

-

2,433,467

1,793,501

23. AMOUNT DUE TO DIRECTORS
The amount due to directors are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand. Repayment is expected to be in cash.

24. REVENUE
Revenue of the Company relates to management fees and rental income. Revenue of the Group represents revenue from the sale of
timber products and wood pellets at invoiced value net of returns and discounts and rental income. All intra-group transactions have been
eliminated in arriving at the revenue of the Group.
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25. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
						
		
					

GROUP		COMPANY

2017 		
RM		

2016
RM

2017		
RM		

2016
RM

This is stated after charging :Auditors' remuneration
- statutory audit
current year 		

69,500		

63,000

24,000		

23,000

underprovision in prior year		

500		

2,300

1,000		

-

- other services		

4,500		

4,500

4,500		

38,472

-		

-

42,114		

-

-		

-

-		

111

-		

-

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments		

38,472		

Allowance for impairment loss on other receivables
Bad debt written off		

4,500

Interest expense :- hire purchase		
- term loans		
- others			

1,844		

3,387

1,844		

2,873

427,728		 463,673

-		

-

-		

-

3,354		

1,905

Depreciation		

1,063,306		 861,096

Defined benefit cost		

248,984		 239,684

156,037		 154,653

Directors' fees		

120,000		 120,000

120,000		 120,000

643,224		

640,224

463,612		

462,112

Property, plant and equipment written off		

-		

1

-		

-

Realised foreign exchange loss		

10,390		

-

-		

-

Rental of plant equipment		

9,761		

16,972

-		

-

48,960		

48,960

48,960		

48,960

44,075		

36,732

Executive directors' salaries, bonuses and
other emoluments
- directors of the Company		

Rental of premises
- belonging to a director		
And crediting :Rental income		
Interest income		

252,444		 252,444
25,217		 167,851

156,444		 156,444
7,543		

98,532

Waiver of advances from a director		

1,983,071		

-

300,000		

-

Waiver of interest on term loan (Note 19)		

-		

1,011,650

-		

-

107,669		

-

-		

-

-		

66,199

-		

-

Write back of allowance for impairment loss on
unused plant		
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Management fees
- subsidiary companies		

-		

-

240,000		 240,000

Employee information :Employee benefits expense		

4,880,783		

4,834,221

904,662		

845,178

Included in the employee benefits expense are contributions made to the Employees Provident Fund of directors and employees of the
Group and of the Company amounting to RM323,354 and RM76,464 (2016 : RM304,935 and RM71,280) respectively.
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26. TAXATION
						
GROUP		COMPANY
		
2017 		
2016
2017		
		
RM		
RM
RM		
Current Malaysian taxation		
2,000		
1,900
-		
Under/(Over) provision of income tax in prior year
1,763		
(1,675)
-		
Transfer from deferred taxation (Note 21)		
(673,993)		
(120,000)		
					
(670,230)		
225
(120,000)		
a)
b)

2016
RM
-

The statutory income tax rate attributable to the Group and the Company is 24% (2016 : 24%).
Reconciliations of tax (income)/expense applicable to (loss)/profit before taxation at the statutory tax rate to the tax (income)/expense
at the effective tax rate of the Group and of the Company are as follows:-

						
GROUP		COMPANY
		
2017 		
2016
2017		
2016
					
RM		
RM
RM		
RM
		
(Loss)/Profit before taxation		
(1,497,500)		
404,372
(837,368)		
(1,000,692)
		
Taxation at the rate of 24% (2016 : 24%)
		
Tax effects of expenses not deductible for
		
tax purposes		
		
Tax effects of income not subject to tax		
		
Under/(Over) provision of taxation in prior year
		
Deferred tax assets not recognised for the year
		
Realisation of deferred tax assets not
		
recognised in prior year		
					
c)

(359,400)		

97,049

(200,968)		

(240,166)

124,745		
(28,058)		
1,763		
150,295		

157,451
(12,973)
(1,675)
351,394

61,398		
-		
-		
19,570		

64,953
175,213

(559,575)		
(591,021)
(670,230)		
225

-		
(120,000)		

-

The following are estimated unutilised capital and reinvestment allowances and unabsorbed tax losses which subject to agreement
with the Inland Revenue Board, are available for set-off against future taxable income :-

						
GROUP		
COMPANY
		
2017 		
2016
2017		
2016
					
RM		
RM
RM		
RM
		Unutilised reinvestment allowances		
3,393,000		3,393,000
-		
		Unutilised capital allowances		
3,945,646		1,998,066
54,340		 53,147
		Unabsorbed tax losses		
39,738,166		
39,146,035
4,162,053		3,711,660
					
47,076,812		
44,537,101
4,216,393		3,764,807
d)

The Group's tax savings arising from the utilisation of brought forward unabsorbed tax losses for set-off against the current year's
taxable income amounted to approximately RM9,411 (2016 : RM13,356).
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27. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
a)
		

Basic
The basic (loss)/earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company is calculated based on the Group's loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of RM820,892 (2016 : profit for the year RM405,547) divided by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year of 126,267,331 (2016 : 125,302,588).

b)
		

Diluted
For the purpose of calculating diluted (loss)/earnings per share, the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year have been adjusted for the dilutive effects of
all potential ordinary shares arising from the assumed exercise of the Warrants 2014/2024.

						
		GROUP
		
		
2017		
					
RM		
		
		

(Loss)/Profit attributable to owners of the Company
[used to determine diluted (loss)/earnings per share]				

		

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue				

		

Effect of dilution from assumed exercise of Warrants 2014/2024			

(820,892)		

2016
RM
405,547

126,267,331		 125,302,588
-		

6,084,690

		

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue				

		

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (sen)					

126,267,331 		 131,387,278

		

Warrants 2009/2019 are not considered in the computation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the current and previous
financial years as their exercise price exceeded the weighted average share price during those periods and hence, have no dilutive
effect on (loss)/earnings per share.

(0.65)		

0.31

Warrants 2014/2024 are not considered in the computation of diluted loss per share for the current financial year as the loss per
share on the assumed exercise of the warrants is anti-dilutive and hence, the diluted loss per share for the current financial year is
the same as basic loss per share.
Ordinary share transactions that occurred after the end of the current financial year and that would have changed significantly the
number of ordinary shares outstanding at the end of the financial year if those transactions had occurred before the end of the
financial year are as described in Note 35.

28. NOTES TO STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
a)
		

Liabilities arising from financing activities
Changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes, during the financial

year are analysed in the reconciliation below :								Hire Purchase
							Term Loan
Financing		
Total
		Group				
RM
RM		
RM
		
At 1 January 2017				
4,973,586
48,736		
5,022,322
		
Repayment of term loan				
(819,333)
-		
(819,333)
		
Payment of hire purchase financing				
(18,197)		
(18,197)
		
Net changes in cash flows				
(819,333)
(18,197)		
(837,530)
		
At 31 December 2017				
4,154,253
30,539		
4,184,792
b)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

						
GROUP		COMPANY
		
2017 		
2016
2017		
2016
					
RM		
RM
RM		
RM
		
Cash and bank balances		
767,253		
1,261,493
144,854		
40,695
		
Fixed deposits with licensed banks		
219,573		
1,516,650
-		
1,062,720
					
986,826		2,778,143
144,854		1,103,415
		As disclosed in Note 12, fixed deposits amounting to RM219,573 (2016 : RM212,584) in the name of a subsidiary company have
been pledged to a licensed bank as securities for a term loan facility granted to the subsidiary company and hence, are not available
for general use.
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29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
						
		GROUP
		
		
2017		
					
RM		

2016
RM

Authorised and contracted for :Purchase of plant and machinery					

164,328		

280,769

30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
						
		GROUP
		
		
2017		
					
RM		
Bank guarantee - secured					

100,000		

2016
RM
100,000

COMPANY

				

						
2017		2016
		
Limit of		 Outstanding
Limit of		 Outstanding
		
facility		 amount
facility		 amount
		
RM		
RM
RM		
RM
Corporate guarantee given to a bank for a term loan
facility granted to a subsidiary company		
5,881,682		
4,154,253
5,881,682		
4,973,586

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other
party or one party controlled both.
a)
		

Transactions and year-end outstanding balances with subsidiary companies
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiary companies during the financial year are as follows :-

						
		COMPANY
		
		
2017		
					
RM		
		

Management fees charged to subsidiary companies				

240,000		

2016
RM
240,000

The year-end outstanding balances with the subsidiary companies are as disclosed in the statement of financial position of the
Company and their terms and conditions are as disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements.
b)
		

Transactions with a director, Dato' Seri Yong Tu Sang
Transactions between the Company and its director, Dato' Seri Yong Tu Sang during the financial year are as follows :-

						
GROUP		COMPANY
		
2017 		
2016
2017		
					
RM		
RM
RM		

2016
RM

		

Rental of premises payable to director		

48,960		

48,960

48,960		

48,960

		

Waiver of advances by director		

1,983,071		

-

300,000		

-

c)

Transactions and year-end outstanding balances with other related parties

i)
			

Related party relationships exist between the Group and the undermentioned companies in which a director of the Company and
certain family members of the director have substantial financial interest :-

			

(i)

Gimzan Plywood Sdn. Bhd.

			

(ii)

Seri Indah Enterprise Sdn. Bhd.

			

(iii)

BTM Timber Industries Sdn. Bhd.

			

(iv)

SPPT Development Sdn. Bhd.

			

(v)

Sung Lee Timber Trading Sdn. Bhd.

			

(vi)

Oversea Timber Supplies Sdn. Bhd.

			

(vii)

Seri Indah Resort Sdn. Bhd.
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (cont’d)
c)

Transactions and year-end outstanding balances with other related parties (cont'd)

		ii)

Details of significant transactions between the Group and other related parties during the year are as follows :-

						
		GROUP
		
		
2017		
					
RM		

2016
RM

			Income
			
Sales of logs, sawn and moulding timber
			
BTM Timber Industries Sdn. Bhd.				
			
Oversea Timber Supplies Sdn. Bhd.				
			
Seri Indah Resort Sdn. Bhd.					
			
Gimzan Plywood Sdn. Bhd.					
			
Sales of lamination and board timber
			
Oversea Timber Supplies Sdn. Bhd.				
			Services
			
BTM Timber Industries Sdn. Bhd.				
			
Oversea Timber Supplies Sdn. Bhd.				
			Others
			
Gimzan Plywood Sdn. Bhd.					

937		
655,353		
122		
4,684		

1,584,840
364
-

2,613,689		

4,948,723

1,947		
116,747		

15,504
127,636

-		

1,807

2,292,500		
552,361		

2,099,510
711,958

80,310		

-

496,410		

279,720

115,716		
11,463		

120,538
44,643

1,162		

139

			Expenditure
			
Purchases of logs and sawn timber
			
BTM Timber Industries Sdn. Bhd.				
			
Oversea Timber Supplies Sdn. Bhd.				
			
Purchases of sawdust, waste product and shaving
			
BTM Timber Industries Sdn. Bhd.				
			Purchases of veneer
			
Gimzan Plywood Sdn. Bhd.					
			Services
			
Seri Indah Enterprise Sdn. Bhd.					
			
BTM Timber Industries Sdn. Bhd.				
			Others
			
Seri Indah Resort Sdn. Bhd.					
			

Utilities necessary for the operation of a subsidiary company's factory were supplied through Gimzan Plywood Sdn. Bhd. for

			the year. The cost of the utilities supply estimated at RM291,000 (2016 : Nil) has been waived by Gimzan Plywood Sdn. Bhd..
		iii)

Amounts due from/(to) other related parties at year end included in the statement of financial position are as follows :-		

						
GROUP
		
		
2017		
					
RM		

2016
RM

			
			
			
			

Included in trade receivables :Gimzan Plywood Sdn. Bhd.					
Oversea Timber Supplies Sdn. Bhd.				
Sung Lee Timber Trading Sdn. Bhd.				

814,117		
-		
-		

839,259
227,074
3,815

			
			

Included in other receivables :Gimzan Plywood Sdn. Bhd.					

135,587		

87,265

			
			
			
			

Included in trade payables :Sung Lee Timber Trading Sdn. Bhd.				
Oversea Timber Supplies Sdn. Bhd.				
BTM Timber Industries Sdn. Bhd.				

28,194		
4,256		
974,433		

32,010
489,445

			
			
			
			

Included in other payables :BTM Timber Industries Sdn. Bhd.				
Gimzan Plywood Sdn. Bhd.					
Seri Indah Enterprise Sdn. Bhd.					

-		
-		
1,383		

8,665
61,152
5,988

			

No expense has been recognised during the year in respect of bad or doubtful debts due from the other related parties.
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (cont’d)
d)

Key management personnel compensation

		Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the Group and of the Company either directly or indirectly. The key management personnel of the Group and of the Company
include all the directors and senior management personnel of the Company and their remuneration for the year are as follows :						
GROUP		
COMPANY
		
2017 		
2016
2017		
		
RM		
RM
RM		
		 Short-term benefits		

892,700		 888,200

2016
RM

723,600		 720,600

		Post-employment benefits
		

- Contribution to Employees Provident Fund

					

79,920		

79,920

972,620		 968,120

69,408		

69,408

793,008		 790,008

32. SEGMENT INFORMATION
a)

Operating Segment

		The Group activities are primarily conducted within a single industry segment comprising the logging, sawmilling, trading in sawn
timbers, plywood and logs, timber moulding and manufacturing of finger-jointed timber and wood pellet and its operations are located
wholly in Malaysia. As such, the operating revenue and results of this segment is reflected in the Group's statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. The segment assets and liabilities are as presented in the Group's statement of financial position.
b)

Geographical Information

		Revenue and non-current assets information in respect of the Group based on the geographical location of customers and non-current
assets respectively are as follows :						
2017		
2016
				
Non-current			
Non-current
		
Revenue		 assets
Revenue		 assets
		
RM		
RM
RM		
RM
		 Malaysia		

6,378,490		30,814,536

		 Australia		

1,397,672		

-

3,313,035		

-

		 Korea			

2,086,844		

-

1,148,287		

-

		 Philippines		

1,983,931		

-

308,573		

-

		 Thailand		

704,411		

-

-		

-

211,244		

-

-		

-

		 Singapore		
					

12,762,592		
30,814,536

11,169,462		27,511,900

15,939,357		
27,511,900

c)
Major Customers
		Revenue from transactions with major customers who individually accounted for 10 percent or more of Group's revenue are
summarised below :								
REVENUE
		
		
2017		
2016
					
RM		
RM
		Customer A					 3,269,042		6,273,923
		Customer B					 1,983,931		 308,573
		Customer C					 1,724,590		1,148,287
		Customer D					 1,318,673		2,488,271
		Customer E					

-		2,103,244

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one enterprise and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another enterprise.
Financial assets of the Group include fixed deposits, cash and bank balances and trade and other receivables. In respect of the Company,
financial assets include amount due from subsidiary companies.
Financial liabilities of the Group include trade and other payables and bank borrowings.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)
a)
		

Categories of Financial Instruments
The financial instruments of the Group and of the Company are categorised as follows :2017 Financial Assets as per Statements of Financial Position

						
GROUP		COMPANY
		
Carrying		
Loans and
Carrying		
Loans and
		
amount		
receivables
amount		
receivables
		
RM		
RM
RM		
RM
		Trade receivables		

1,294,385		1,294,385

-		

-

		Other receivables and deposits		

438,085		 438,085

19,750		

19,750

		

Amount due from subsidiary companies		

-		

-

21,359,464		

21,359,464

		

Fixed deposits with licensed banks		

219,573		

219,573

-		

-

		Cash and bank balances		

767,253		 767,253

					

2,719,296		2,719,296

144,854		 144,854
21,524,068		
21,524,068					

		2017 Financial Liabilities as per Statements of Financial Position
						
GROUP		COMPANY
				Other financial			Other financial
				liabilities			 liabilities
		
Carrying		 measured at
Carrying		 measured at
		
amount		amortised cost
amount		amortised cost
		
RM		
RM
RM		
RM
		Trade payables		

2,433,467		2,433,467

		Other payables and accruals		

1,891,221		1,891,221

257,672		 257,672

		Amount due to directors		

1,467,997		1,467,997

1,330,178		1,330,178

		Term loan		

4,154,253		4,154,253

-		

-

30,539		

30,539

		Hire purchase creditors		
					

30,539		

30,539

9,977,477		9,977,477

-		

-

1,618,389		1,618,389

		2016 Financial Assets as per Statements of Financial Position
						
GROUP		COMPANY
		
Carrying		
Loans and
Carrying		
Loans and
		
amount		
receivables
amount		
receivables
		
RM		
RM
RM		
RM
		Trade receivables		

1,344,910		1,344,910

		Other receivables and deposits		

580,467		 580,467

		

Amount due from subsidiary companies		

		

Fixed deposits with licensed banks		

-		

-

19,750		

19,750

-		

-

20,816,781		

20,816,781

1,516,650		

1,516,650

1,062,720		

1,062,720

		Cash and bank balances		

1,261,493		1,261,493

					

4,703,520		4,703,520

40,695		

40,695

21,939,946		
21,939,946

		2016 Financial Liabilities as per Statements of Financial Position
						
GROUP		COMPANY
				Other financial			Other financial
				liabilities			 liabilities
		
Carrying		 measured at
Carrying		 measured at
		
amount		amortised cost
amount		amortised cost
		
RM		
RM
RM		
RM
		Trade payables		

1,793,501		1,793,501

		Other payables and accruals		

1,704,274		1,704,274

194,806		 194,806

		Amount due to directors		

3,098,125		3,098,125

1,748,125		1,748,125

		Term loan		

4,973,586		4,973,586

		Hire purchase creditors		
					

48,736		

48,736

11,618,222		
11,618,222

-		

-

-		

-

48,736		

48,736

1,991,667		1,991,667
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)
b)

Financial Risk Management

		The Group's activities expose it to certain financial risks, including currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, market risk and
liquidity and cash flow risks. The Board of Directors have formulated a financial risk management framework with the principal
objectives of minimising the Group's exposure to risks and/or costs associated with the financing, investing and operating activities
of the Group.
Various risk management policies are established for observation in the day-to-day operations for the controlling and management
of the risks associated with the deployment of financial instruments by the Group.
		i)
			

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss attributable to default on obligations by parties contracting with the Group. The Group's
main exposure to credit risk is in respect of its trade receivables.

		

Credit risk arises when sales are made on deferred credit terms. The Group seeks to control credit risk by setting counterparty
limits and ensuring that sales of products are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. The Group considers the
risk of material loss in the event of non-performance by a financial counterparty to be unlikely.

		

Analysis of the ageing of the Group's trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period that are past due but not impaired
are disclosed in Note 9(b).

		

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is represented by the carrying amount of the
financial assets recognised in the statement of financial position.

		

None of the Group's financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements.

		

The Group's management considers that all the financial assets of the Group that are neither past due nor impaired at the end
of the reporting period are of good credit quality. The credit risk for deposits, cash and bank balances is considered negligible,
since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.
ii)

			

Currency Risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk as a result of the foreign currency transactions entered into in currencies other than its
functional currency.

			The Group monitors the risk arising from foreign exchange exposure from time to time and will formulate appropriate strategies
should the risk become material. The Group does not speculate in foreign currency derivatives.
			The Group's foreign currency exposure profiles of trade receivables and trade payables have been disclosed under Note 9(a)
and Note 22 to the financial statements respectively.
		Currency risk sensitivity analysis
		

A 10 percent strengthening or weakening of the foreign currencies against the RM at the end of the reporting period would
have increased or decreased respectively the profit or loss and equity by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes
that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

								
GROUP
		
		
2017		
					
RM		
			
United States Dollar					
24,752 		
iii)
			

2016
RM
13,454

Interest Rate Risk
The Group has interest rate risk in respect of its deposits with licensed banks and bank borrowings.

			The Group's term loan is subject to interest based on floating rate while its deposits with licensed banks and hire purchase
financing are subject to interest based on fixed rates.
			Market interest rates movements are monitored with a view to ensuring that the most competitive rates are secured and where
appropriate interest bearing instruments and borrowings arrangements are restructured or reduced.
		Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis
			The Group's profit or loss and equity are sensitive to the change in the market interest rate as at the end of the reporting
period due to its floating rate term loan. An increase in the market interest rate would have unfavourable effects on the profit
or loss and equity of the Group. A reasonably possible increase of 50 basis points in the market interest rate as at the end of
the reporting period would reduce the Group's profit or loss for the year then ended and equity of the Group as at that date by
RM20,771 (2016 : RM24,868). This sensitivity analysis assumes that all other risk variables remain constant.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)
b)

Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

		iv)

Market Risk

			

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market prices.

		

v)

The Group's main market risk exposure is in respect of currency and interest rates fluctuations and which are discussed under
the respective risk headings.
Liquidity and Cash Flow Risk

			

Liquidity or funding risk is the risk of the inability to meet commitments associated with financial instruments while cash flow
risk is the risk of uncertainty of future cash flow amount associated with a monetary financial instrument.

		

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
business, the Group aims at maintaining flexibility in its funding requirements through a mix of equity capital, external
borrowings and supplies credit.

		Maturity analysis
			

The maturity profile of the Group's and the Company's financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period based on
undiscounted contractual payments are as follows :-

				
<-------------- Maturity Profile ------------->
					 More than
					
one year
					
and less			
				
Less than
than five
More than		
				
one year
years
five years
Total
				
RM
RM
RM
RM

Effective
interest
rate
%

			Group 2017
			
Trade payables
			
Other payables and accruals
			
Term loan
			
Hire purchase creditors
			
Amount due to directors
			
			Group 2016
			Trade payables
			
Other payables and accruals
			Term loan
			Hire purchase creditors
			
Amount due to directors

2,433,467
1,891,221
1,496,475
25,776
1,467,997

3,367,071
5,621
-

-

2,433,467
1,891,221
4,863,546
31,397
1,467,997

8.85
5.24
-

1,793,501
1,704,274
1,496,475
22,908
3,098,125

4,614,130
28,529
-

-

1,793,501
1,704,274
6,110,605
51,437
3,098,125

8.85
5.24
-

			Company 2017
			
Other payables and accruals
			
Hire purchase creditor
			
Amount due to directors

257,672
25,776
1,330,178

5,621
-

-

257,672
31,397
1,330,178

5.24
-

			Company 2016
			
Other payables and accruals
			Hire purchase creditor
			
Amount due to directors

194,806
22,908
1,748,125

28,529
-

-

194,806
51,437
1,748,125

5.24
-

c)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

		

i)

The carrying amounts of fixed deposits, cash and bank balances, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables
approximate their fair values due to the relatively short term nature of these financial instruments.

		

ii)

The carrying amount of balances with subsidiary companies approximate their fair values due to their repayable on demand
settlement terms.

		

iii)

The fair values of term loan and hire purchase creditors approximate their carrying amounts.
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34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The main objective in managing capital is to maintain an optimal capital structure and to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern so as to maintain market confidence and sustain future business development. The Group manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
The Group monitors capital using debt to equity ratio, which is total borrowings divided by total equity. The debt-to-equity ratios at the
reporting dates were as follows :													GROUP
		
		
2017		
								
RM		

2016
RM

Total borrowings (Note 19)					

4,154,253 		

4,973,586

Total equity						

28,866,729		

26,401,867

Debt-to-equity ratio					

0.14		

0.19

There were no changes in the Group's approach to capital management during the financial year.

35. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR / SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
a)

On 22 April 2016, the Company had announced that its wholly owned subsidiary company, BTM Marketing & Trading Sdn Bhd
("BTMMT") had entered into a Shares Sale Agreement ("SSA") with Rozana Binti Hussin ("the Vendor") for the acquisition of 60
ordinary shares of RM1.00 each representing 60% of the total issued and paid-up share capital of Zulikha Murni Sdn Bhd ("ZMSB")
from the Vendor for a total cash consideration of RM800,000. ZMSB will be involved in telecommunication towers business through
the project known as "Pembinaan Menara Pintar - Projek Monopoles SWIFT (Security Wifi Integrated Federal Tower Community
Hub)" on at least 300 plots of land measuring 3,000 square feet on each plot by way of Temporary Occupation Licences ("TOL")
within Daerah Petaling granted by the Selangor State Government for an intial term of at least 21 years. The SSA had not been
completed during the year pending the issuance of the TOL land. Subsequent to the end of the year, BTMMT had sent a notice of
termination dated on 16 April 2018 to the Vendor to terminate the SSA due to non-fulfilment of the condition precedent.

b)

On 17 April 2017, the Company announced that it has on 14 April 2017 entered into a Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU")
with China Western Power International Pte Ltd ("China Western Power") and Sichuan No. 2 Electric Power Construction Company
("Sichuan Power") which set out the parties' intentions to set up a Municipal Waste to Energy Plant (“WtE Plant”) with a capacity of
not less than 1,000 tons/day in the State of Malacca, Malaysia (hereinafter referred to as “the Power Generation Project”), subject
to approval of the relevant authorities.

		China Western Power is a company incorporated in Singapore while Sichuan Power is a company incorporated in Sichuan, The
People's Republic of China.
		Under the MOU, the parties shall jointly invest in securing the Power Generation Project via a Special Purpose Vehicle ("SPV") to be
established by the parties or their respective related companies. The present estimated total investment for the Power Generation
Project is RM435 million for a WeE Plant.
		The Company's obligation is to secure a waste disposal concession of not less than 25 years from the Government of Malacca and
suitable tipping fee and power purchase agreement. In addition, the Company is also required to identify, propose and procure a
suitable site for the Wte Plant.
		The obligations of China Western Power and Sichuan Power are to procure the entire funding cost for the engineering, procurement,
construction and commissioning of the Power Generation Project and also all technology development cost related to the project.
		On 27 November 2017, the Company announced that its subsidiary company, BTM Western Power Green Energy Sdn. Bhd.
("BTMWP") has on 25 November 2017 entered into a Heads of Agreement ("HOA") with SEPCO Electric Power Construction
Corporation ("SEPCO") with the intention to award the Engineering, Procurement, Construction and Commissioning with Finance
("EPC+F") contract for the WtE Plant in the state of Melaka to SEPCO.
		The HOA remains effective until a formal EPC+F Contract containing the detailed terms and conditions including inter-alia duration,
cost of the Project is entered into between the parties, at a date to be determined later upon receiving the necessary approvals from
the relevant authorities for the Power Generation Project.
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35. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR / SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (cont'd)
c)

		

On 28 November 2017, the Company announced that it proposed to undertake a private placement of up to ten percent (10%) of
the issued shares of the Company to investors to be identified ("Proposed Private Placement"). The Proposed Private Placement is
in accordance with the general mandate pursuant to Section 75 and 76 of the Companies Act 2016 obtained from the shareholders
of the Company at its last Annual General Meeting held on 30 May 2017. The Company had obtained the approval of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad ("Bursa Securities") vide its letter dated 28 December 2017 for the listing of the new ordinary shares under the
Proposed Private Placement on the Main Market of Bursa Securities.
The Company has carried out two Private Placements as follows :-

		i)

On 13 February 2018, 7,849,400 ordinary shares were issued at an issue price of RM0.22 per share for a total cash
consideration of RM1,726,868.

		ii)

On 16 April 2018, 5,000,000 ordinary shares were issued at an issue price of RM0.15 per share for a total cash consideration
of RM750,000.

The abovementioned shares were listed and quoted on the Main Market of Bursa Securities on 13 February 2018 and 16 April 2018
respectively.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
BTM RESOURCES BERHAD (Incorporated in Malaysia)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of BTM RESOURCES BERHAD, which comprise the statements of financial position as at 31 December
2017 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity
and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 33 to 75.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as
at 31 December 2017, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities
We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants ("By-Laws") and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants ("IESBA Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of
the Group and of the Company for the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements of
the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters

Our audit approach to address the key audit matters

1.

Valuation of inventories

Our audit approach included the following:

Refer to Notes 2.13 and 8 to the financial

•

statements.
The

Group

Attended inventory counts performed by the management to determine the
existence of inventories and assessed their completeness.

held

significant

balance

•

Reviewed the management’s costing methodology and performed re-

of inventories with carrying value of

computation of the costing of selected sample of inventories to determine the

RM7,242,697 as at 31 December 2017. The

accuracy of the valuation of inventories.

inventories are valued at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. The risk of a decline

•

management to identify any obsolete or slow moving inventories which required

in the net realisable value of the inventories
below cost due to obsolescence or declining
market demand and any significant error in

evaluation for write-down to their net realisable values.
•

inventories recognised in the financial statements.

the inventories may have a material impact
will affect the financial results of the Group.

Assessed the management's basis in analysing and determining inventory
obsolescence and conclude on the adequacy of the amount of write-down of

application of the costing methodology for
on the carrying value of inventories, which

Reviewed the listing of inventories and made appropriate inquiries of the

•

Assessed the net realisable values of major categories of inventories by
checking selected samples to sales made subsequent to year end.
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Key audit matters

Our audit approach to address the key audit matters

2.

Impairment of trade receivables

Our audit approach included the following:

Refer to Notes 3(b)(ii), 9, 31(c)(iii) and 33(b)(i) to the

•

financial statements.

Assessed the recoverability of past due debts, in particular those of
related parties, which were not impaired taking cognizance of the age

The carrying amount of trade receivables of the Group,

of debts, payment trends and any past occurrence of bad debts from

net of allowance for impairment loss, amounted to

the customers.

RM1,294,385 as at 31 December 2017. A significant
portion of approximately 62% of the gross amount of trade
receivables comprised balances due form related parties.
Balance of trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired amounted to RM943,326. Significant judgement
by management based on pertinent information regarding
customers' creditworthiness and ability to settle debts

•

Performed inquiries of the management regarding actions taken to
recover overdue debts and mitigate exposure to bad debts.

•

Verified the balances by requesting and receiving confirmations on
a sample basis including for related parties and those with past due
debts, and checked subsequent receipts for these balances to the
latest practicable date.

is required in estimating the impairment loss on trade
receivables.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the Company and our auditors’ report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also :•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's and the Company's internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s or the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group or the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Other Matters
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

FOLKS DFK & CO.
FIRM NO. : AF 0502
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
NG ENG KIAT
NO : 01064/03/2019J
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT
Kuala Lumpur
Date : 20 April 2018
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
As at 30TH MARCH 2018

Class of Share 			
Paid-up capital			
Total number of issued shares		
Voting Rights			
Number of Shareholders		

: Ordinary share
: RM27,425,825
: 136,344,188 ordinary shares
: One vote per share
: 1,351

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDERS
Range of Shareholdings		
1 - 99		
100 - 1000		
1,001 -10,000		
10,001 - 100,000		
100,001 - 6,817,209		
6,817,209 and above (*)		
TOTAL		

No. of Holders
11
389
432
419
96
4
1,351

% Over Total Shareholders
0.81
28.79
31.98
31.01
7.11
0.30
100.00

No. of Shares
296
272,414
2,356,177
16,752,763
74,307,458
42,655,080
136,344,188

%
0.20
1.73
12.29
54.50
31.28
100.00

Note:
* 5% of issued and paid-up Share Capital

LIST OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 30 MARCH 2018
DIRECTORS
Dato’ Seri Yong Tu Sang
Yong Emmy
Ng Ah Heng
Tan Sri Datuk Seri Mohd Hussin Bin Abd Hamid

Direct			Indirect
No. of Shares		
%
No. of Shares		
%
(1)
12,339,081		
9.05
27,814,399		20.40
(2)
12,096,000		
8.87
28,057,480		20.58
(3)
9,999,999		
7.33
30,153,481		22.12
(4)
8,220,000		
6.03
1,458,400		 1.07

DIRECTORS AND THEIR SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 30 MARCH 2018
DIRECTORS
Dato’ Seri Yong Tu Sang
Yong Emmy
Yong Ellen (Alternate to Yong Emmy)
Yong Hin Siong
Tan Sri Dato’ (Dr) Abdul Aziz Bin Abdul Rahman
Choong Show Tong
Datuk Haji Mohamed Iqbal Bin M.M. Mohamed Ganey

Direct			 Indirect
No. of Shares		
%
No. of Shares		
(1)
12,339,081		
9.05
27,814,399		
(2)
12,096,000		
8.87
28,057,480		
(5)
108,300		
0.08
40,045,180		
(6)
-		
40,153,480		
-		
-		
-		
-		
-		
-		

Note :
(1) Deemed interest by virtue of shares held by his spouse, children and son-in-law.
(2)		Deemed interest by virtue of share held by her parent, sister and brother-in-law.
(3)		Deemed interest by virtue of share held by her spouse, children and son-in-law.
(4) Deemed interest by virtue of shares held by his child.
(5)		Deemed interest by virtue of shares held by her parents, sister and spouse.
(6)		Deemed interest by virtue of shares held by his parents, sisters and brother-in-law.

%
20.40
20.58
29.37
29.45
-
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
(cont’d)
As at 30TH MARCH 2018

LIST OF THIRTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS:
No

Name of Shareholders

No. of Shares Held

Percentage

1.

Yong Tu Sang

12.339,081

9.05

2.

Yong Emmy

12,096,000

8.87

3.

Ng Ah Heng

9,999,999

7.33

4.

RHB Capital Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Tan Sri Mohd Hussin Bin Abd Hamid

8,220,000

6.03

5.

Yeo Keng Choong

6,803,300

4.99

6.

Modern Mode Sdn Bhd

6,307,757

4.63

7.

Confirmed Uptrend Sdn Bhd

6,286,400

4.61

8.

RHB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Tham Kaam Siong

6,020,400

4.42

Tan Kha Luong

5,610,100

4.11

10. Saham Terbilang Sdn Bhd

5,354,701

3.93

11. Tambah Mulia Holdings Sdn Bhd

5,009,000

3.67

12. Paling Masyhur Sdn Bhd

4,348,000

3.19

13. Affin Hwang Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Yong Siew Yee

3,272,000

2.40

14. Liang Chong Wai

2,700,000

1.98

15. AllianceGroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Leng Kok Fun

1,528,000

1.12

16. RHB Capital Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Abdul Malik Bin Mohd Hussin

1,458,400

1.07

17. Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Yeo Chia Hui

711,000

0.52

18. Kong Tian Ming

662,000

0.49

19. Open Road Asia Sdn Bhd

596,100

0.44

590,000

0.43

21. Cimsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Ng Geok Wah

500,000

0.37

22. Open Road Asia Sdn Bhd

464,900

0.34

23. Zainul Abideen Bin Fazle Abbas

440,000

0.32

24. Wong Wai Hoe

430,000

0.32

25. Har Yong Fong

419,500

0.31

26. Amerjeet Singh A/L Naib Singh

392,300

0.29

27. Kuppusamy A/L Arimuthu

377,100

0.28

28. Halim Bin Mohamad

350,000

0.26

29. Kenneth Lam Man Chung

320,000

0.23

30. Public Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Seow Sea Kiang

306,500

0.22

103,912,538

76.21

9.

20. RHB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Chai Seong Min

Total
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ANALYSIS OF WARRANT A HOLDINGS
As at 30TH MARCH 2018

Warrant A 2009/2019
No. of Warrants A 2009/2019		

: 19,985,593

Class of Securities		

: Warrants A 2009/2019

ANALYSIS OF WARRANT A HOLDERS
Size of Warrant Holdings		

No. of Warrant Holders

Percentage %

No. of Warrants

Percentage %

Less than 100		

47

10.13

2,084

0.01

100 - 1,000		

116

25.00

31,115

0.16

1,001 - 10,000		

108

23.27

531,273

2.66

10,001 - 100,000		

143

30.82

5,955,903

29.80

100,001 and below 5%		

49

10.56

12,147,718

60.78

5% and above		

1

0.22

1,317,500

6.59

TOTAL		

464

100.00

19,985,593

100.00

DIRECTORS’ WARRANT A HOLDINGS AS AT 30 MARCH 2018
Direct			Indirect
Name of Directors

No. of Warrant A

%

No. of Warrant A

%

-

-

(1)

428

-

214

-

(2)

214

-

Dato’ Seri Yong Tu Sang

-

-

(3)

428

-

Yong Hin Siong

-

-

(4)

428

-

Yong Emmy
Yong Ellen

(1)

Deemed interest by virtue of warrant held by her sister and brother in-law.

(2)

Deemed interest by virtue of warrant held by her spouse.

(3)

Deemed interest by virtue of warrant held by his children.

(4)		Deemed interest by virtue of warrant held by his sisters and brother in-law.

SUBSTANTIAL WARRANT A HOLDERS AS AT 30 MARCH 2018
Direct			Indirect
Name of Warrant A Holders
Mohd Faizal Bin Hamdan @ Jamaludin

No. of Warrant A

%

No. of Warrant A

%

1,317,500

6.59

-

-

83

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

ANALYSIS OF WARRANT A HOLDINGS
(cont’d)
As at 30TH MARCH 2018

LIST OF THIRTY LARGEST WARRANT A HOLDERS:
No. Name of Warrant A holders

No. of Warrant A Held

Percentage

1,317,500

6.59

1.

Mohd Faizal Bin Hamdan @ Jamaludin

2.

Yeo Keng Choong

835,651

4.18

3.

Ho Kah Heng

600,000

3.00

4.

Cheah Swee Keat

564,000

2.82

5.

Roslinah Binti Omar

541,900

2.71

6.

Ng Choo Hin

534,600

2.67

7.

Yap Kin Thai

500,000

2.50

8.

Mohd Dzulkarnine Bin Ismail

483,400

2.42

9.

Lau Fui Seng

476,400

2.38

10. Maybank Securities Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Mohamad Rafie Bin Baharudin (Margin)

400,000

2.00

11. Mohamad Fuad Bin Abdullah Bada

372,500

1.86

12. Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Wong Kee Gwo

300,000

1.50

13. Ooi Poh Nam

300,000

1.50

14. Chan Sang

298,214

1.49

15. Kamaruzaman Bin Mat Shik

266,700

1.33

16. Sambasivam A/L Petchimuthu

258,629

1.29

17. Gan Eng Ann

250,000

1.25

18. Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Kwan Wing Hien

250,000

1.25

19. Siti Hafsha Binti Lokman

217,300

1.09

20. Yap Mun Aik

210,000

1.05

21. Azizi Bin Alias

204,200

1.02

22. Lee Thiam Hock

203,200

1.02

23. Khor Chei Yong

200,000

1.00

24. Khor Chin Thye

200,000

1.00

25. Muzri Bin Muhammad

196,000

0.98

26. Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Abu Mawan Bin Daiman

194,100

0.97

27. Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Karen Chua Siew Joo @ Chua Siew Zoo

182,341

0.91

28. Tee Chai Lok

175,088

0.88

29. Low Tian Heng

171,451

0.86

30. Abdullah Bin Ab. Hamid

170,000

0.85

10,873,174

54.41

Total
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ANALYSIS OF WARRANT B HOLDINGS
As at 30TH MARCH 2018

Warrant B 2014 / 2024
No. of Warrants B 2014 / 2024		

: 26,295,146

Class of Securities		

: Warrants B 2014 / 2024

ANALYSIS OF WARRANT B HOLDERS
Size of Warrant Holdings		

No. of Warrant Holders

Percentage %

No. of Warrants

Percentage %

Less than 100		

33

100 - 1,000		

43

12.74

1,764

0.01

16.60

25,742

0.10

1,001 - 10,000		

81

31.27

330,759

1.25

10,001 - 100,000		

75

28.96

2,973,512

11.31

100,001 and below 5%		

19

7.34

7,750,046

29.47

5% and above		

8

3.09

15,213,323

57.86

TOTAL		

259

100.00

26,295,146

100.00

DIRECTORS’ WARRANT B HOLDINGS AS AT 30 MARCH 2018
Direct			Indirect
Name of Directors

No. of Warrant B

%

Dato’ Seri Yong Tu Sang

2,290,421

Yong Emmy

1,225,600

Yong Ellen
Yong Hin Siong

No. of Warrant B

%

8.71

(1)

3,561,146

13.54

4.66

(2)

4,625,967

17.59

228,880

0.87

(3)

5,622,687

21.38

-

-

(4)

5,851,567

22.25

SUBSTANTIAL WARRANT B HOLDERS AS AT 30 MARCH 2018
Direct			Indirect
Name of Warrant B Holders

No. of Warrant B

%

No. of Warrant B

%

Confirmed Uptrend Sdn. Bhd.

2,795,900

10.63

-

-

Modern Mode Sdn. Bhd.

2,560,349

9.74

Dato’ Seri Yong Tu Sang

2,290,421

8.71

Tan Sri Datuk Seri Mohd Hussin Bin Abd Hamid

2,032,000

7.73

Tan Kha Luong

1,440,000

5.48

Saham Terbilang Sdn Bhd

1,374,933

Tham Kaam Siong

1,361,320

Tambah Mulia Holdings Sdn Bhd

1,358,400

-

-

3,561,146

13.54

261,200

0.99

-

-

5.23

-

-

5.18

-

-

5.17

-

-

(1)

Deemed interest by virtue of Warrant B held by his spouse, children and son-in-law.

(2)

Deemed interest by virtue of Warrant B held by her parents, sister and brother-in-law.

(3)

Deemed interest by virtue of Warrant B held by her parents, spouse and sister.

(4)

Deemed interest by virtue of Warrant B held by his parents, sisters and brother-in-law.

(5)

Deemed interest by virtue of Warrant B held by his child

(1)

(5)
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ANALYSIS OF WARRANT B HOLDINGS
(cont’d)
As at 30TH MARCH 2018

LIST OF THIRTY LARGEST WARRANT B HOLDERS:
No. Name of Warrant B holders

No. of Warrant B Held

Percentage

1.

Confirmed Uptrend Sdn Bhd

2,795,900

10.63

2.

Modern Mode Sdn Bhd

2,560,349

9.74

3.

Yong Tu Sang

2,290,421

8.71

4.

RHB Capital Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Tan Sri Mohd Hussin Bin Abd Hamid

2,032,000

7.73

5.

Tan Kha Luong

1,440,000

5.48

6.

Saham Terbilang Sdn Bhd

1,374,320

5.23

7.

RHB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Tham Kaam Siong

1,361,320

5.18

8.

Tambah Mulia Holdings Sdn Bhd

1,358,400

5.17

9.

Yong Emmy

1,225,600

4.66

10. Yeo Keng Choong

1,150,000

4.37

11. Lim Siew Lee

1,100,000

4.18

12. Ng Ah Heng

666,666

2.54

13. Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Tan Chin How

551,100

2.10

14. Teoh See Cheng

350,000

1.33

15. Cho Han Woon

306,000

1.16

16. Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Kiew Tik Wei

270,000

1.03

17. RHB Capital Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Abdul Malik Bin Mohd Hussin

261,200

0.99

18. Chin Nguk Moi

255,000

0.97

19. Maybank Securities Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Heng Poh Suan

229,200

0.87

20. Yong Ellen

228,880

0.87

21. Cheah Seng Lai

209,000

0.79

22. Cheah Keng Toh

198,300

0.75

23. Ku Kok Kit

180,000

0.68

24. Ang Chen Hong

172,100

0.65

25. Cheah Swee Keat

134,700

0.51

26. Chok Chew Lan

132,300

0.50

27. Chong Chee Ming

130,000

0.49

28. Liang Chong Wai

100,000

0.38

29. Tan Wah Young

100,000

0.38

99,900

0.38

23,263,269

88.47

30. Lau Jun Tuck @ Lau Chin Tack
Total
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LIST OF PROPERTIES
				
		
						
Approx.
						
Age of
Location		Tenure
Description
Land Area
Building
			

Net Book
Value as at
31.12.2017
RM

BTM Resources Berhad
No. 101, Jalan Kampung Tiong
20100 Kuala Terengganu

Freehold
		

5 ½ Storey
Office Building

385 sq.m

19 years

7,600,000

				

Terengganu Darul Iman
		
Besut Tsuda Industries Sdn Bhd
Lot No :- 002995		

30 year’s

Vacant

9.014

Mukim of Pengkalan Nangka		

leasehold

Industrial

Hectare

District of Besut		

expiring on

Land

Terengganu Darul Iman		

26/10/2018

-

16,248

-

346,588

24 years

12,280,220

Syarikat Maskayu Sawmill Sdn Bhd
Lot No :- 11966		

60 year’s

Vacant

0.998

Mukim of Kuala Nerus		

leasehold

Industrial

Hectare

Kuala Terengganu		

expiring on

Land

Terengganu Darul Iman		

29-11-2033

Besut Tsuda Wood Products Sdn Bhd
Lot No :- 1654		

Freehold

Mukim of Tanggol			

Factory

4.005

Buildings

Hectare

District of Hulu Terengganu			

Kiln-dried

Terengganu Darul Iman			

chambers, office

				

erected thereon.

(303962-T)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

PROXY FORM
I/We _______________________________________________________________________________________ ____
(Block Letters)

of __________________________________________

_____

being a Member / Members of BTM Resources Berhad hereby appoint _____________________________________________
_____________________

___

(NRIC No.) ___________

of

_

or failing him/her____________
_

_

(NRIC No.) _____

__

of ________________

_____

as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Twenty-Fourth Annual General Meeting of BTM Resources Berhad to be
held at the Latitude 1.01, Level 1, Hotel Armada, Lot 6, Lorong Utara C, Section 52, 46200 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan on
Wednesday, 30th May 2018 at 11.30 a.m. and any adjournment thereon for/against the resolution(s) to be proposed thereat.
No.

AGENDA

1.

Receive Accounts and Report

No.
2.
3.

RESOLUTION		
Approval of Directors’ Fees
Resolution 1
Re-election of Directors :Mr Choong Show Tong
Resolution 2
Mr Yong Hin Siong
Resolution 3
Re-appointment of Auditors :Messrs Folks DFK & Co.,
Resolution 4
Continuing in Office for Tan Sri Dato’ (Dr) Abdul Aziz Bin Abdul Rahman as
an Independent Non-Executive Director
Resolution 5
Continuing in Office for Mr. Choong Show Tong as
an Independent Non-Executive Director
Resolution 6
Approval of Directors to allot and issue shares pursuant to section 75 and
76 of the Companies Act, 2016
Resolution 7

4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

Proposed Shareholders Mandate

FOR

AGAINST

Resolution 8

Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate boxes on how you wish your vote to be cast on the Resolutions specified in the Notice
of Meeting. Unless voting instructions are indicated in the space above, the proxy will vote as he/she thinks fit.
Number of shares

CDS A/C No.

Date

Signature

Notes : i)
ii)
iii)
iv)
v)
vi)
vii)

Only depositors whose name appear in the Record of Depositors as at 22nd May 2018 (General Meeting Record of Depositors) be regarded as members and entitled to attend, speak and
vote at the meeting.
A member entitled to attend the meeting may appoint another person as his proxy to attend and vote in his stead at the meeting and such proxy shall have the same right as the member
he represents including the right to vote on a show of hands and on a poll and to demand a poll.
A proxy may but need not be a member.
Where the member of the Company appoints two or more proxies, the appointments shall be invalid unless the member specifies the proportion of his shareholding to be represented by
each proxy.
If the appointer is a corporation, the proxy should be executed under its common seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.
Where a member of the Company is an Exempt Authorised Nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus
account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the Exempt Authorised Nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.
The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at HMC Corporate Services Sdn Bhd, Level 2, Tower 1, Avenue 5, Bangsar South City, 59200
Kuala Lumpur not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Please fold here

Stamp

BTM RESOURCES BERHAD
Level 2, Tower 1, Avenue 5, Bangsar South City
59200 Kuala Lumpur

Please fold here

(303962-T)

The
The
All the thr ee (
The

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
STOCK CODE
COMPANY NAME
FINANCIAL YEAR

: 7188
: BTM Resources Berhad
: December 31, 2017

OUTLINE:
SECTION A – DISCLOSURE ON MALAYSIAN CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Disclosures in this section are pursuant to Paragraph 15.25 of Bursa Malaysia Listing
Requirements.
SECTION B – DISCLOSURES ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES PERSUANT
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GUIDELINES ISSUED BY BANK NEGARA MALAYSIA
Disclosures in this section are pursuant to Appendix 4 (Corporate Governance Disclosures)
of the Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by Bank Negara Malaysia. This section is
only applicable for financial institutions or any other institutions that are listed on the Exchange
that are required to comply with the above Guidelines.
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SECTION A – DISCLOSURE ON MALAYSIAN CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Disclosures in this section are pursuant to Paragraph 15.25 of Bursa Malaysia Listing
Requirements.
Intended Outcome
Every company is headed by a board, which assumes responsibility for the company’s
leadership and is collectively responsible for meeting the objectives and goals of the company.
Practice 1.1
The board should set the company’s strategic aims, ensure that the necessary resources are
in place for the company to meet its objectives and review management performance. The
board should set the company’s values and standards, and ensure that its obligations to its
shareholders and other stakeholders are understood and met.
Application

:

Applied

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

The Board is responsible for proper governance and stewardship of the
Group, which include providing strategic business direction,
development and control of the Group and initiatives to embrace
governance responsibilities according to the MCCG and statutes. In
discharging their fiduciary and governance responsibilities, the Board
has formalized a Board Charter that sets out the following roles and
duties of the Board:

Reviewing and approving of corporate strategies and plans,
monitoring their implementations through the annual budget
and financial plans;


Overseeing and monitoring the conduct and performance of
the Company’s and Group’s businesses;



Overseeing the process for identifying principal risks and
putting in place appropriate control systems, monitoring and
reporting mechanism to effectively monitor and manage these
risks;



Appointing and assessing the performance of the Executive
Directors and overseeing succession plans for the Senior
Management team;



Overseeing the development and implementation of a
shareholder communication policy for enhancing and
protection of the reputation of the BTM Group;



Reviewing and overseeing the adequacy and the integrity of the
management information and control system of the BTM
Group; and



Establishing a corporate culture which engenders ethical
conduct and behaviour.

2

Apart from the above roles, the Board has reserved the following items
for their deliberation and decision to ensure the direction and control
of the Company are in its hands:

Acquisition of Business and Investments;


Divestments and Disposals of Business and Investments;



Overseas Equity Venture;



Corporate Finance and Proposals;



Terms of key or main agreements not within the ordinary
course of business;



Acquisition and Disposal of Properties;



Acquisition and Disposal of Fixed assets, other than Properties,
amounting up to RM2,000,000 and above; and



Bank borrowing and finance arrangements.

To assist in the discharge of its stewardship role, the Board has
delegated and conferred some of its authority and powers to the two
(2) Executive Directors and certain Board Committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Risk Management Committee. Whilst the Board Committees are
entrusted with the responsibility to oversee specific aspects of the
Company’s affairs in accordance with their respective terms of
reference as approved by the Board and to report to the Board their
findings and recommendations, the Board has delegated the following
responsibilities to the Executive Directors, comprising the Managing
Director and an Executive Director:


Overall responsibility for the business units and da-to-day
management of the Group, organisational effectiveness and
implementation of Board policies, strategies and decisions;



The development (in conjunction with the Board) and
implementation of short, medium and long term corporate
strategies for the Group, preparing business plans and report
with Senior Management and reporting or presenting to the
Board on current and future initiatives;



Providing leadership, supervision and control in managing a
team of Senior Management Executives responsible for all
functions contributing to the success of the Group;



Overseeing that the Group has the appropriate risk
management practices and policies in place;



The assessment of business opportunities which are of
potential benefits to the Group;



Bringing material and other relevant matters to the attention of
the Board in a timely manner;



Overseeing shareholders’ communications;
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Appointing and, where appropriate, removing Senior
Management, including the Chief Financial Officer and the
Company Secretary, with the approval of the Board;



Evaluating the performance of Senior Management executives;



Overseeing that the objectives as standards of performance of
the Company are understood by the Management and
employees;



Overseeing that the operational planning and control system
are in place;



Monitoring performance results, where necessary;



Overseeing that the Group’s Financial Reports are drawn up in
accordance with the relevant accounting standards and comply
with all requirements of Bursa Malaysia Main Market Listing
Requirements and the Companies Act 2016;



Directing and monitoring all aspects business operations in a
cost-effective manner;



Effectively overseeing the human resource needs of the Group
and key positions in the Group’s management structures,
including succession planning and talent retention are
adequately addressed;



Overseeing the Group’s corporate identity, products and
services are of acceptable standards and reflective of the
market environment in which the Group operates in; and



Assisting the Non-Executive Chairman in providing quality and
timely information flows to the Board for establishing the
agenda for Board and Committee meetings.

In discharging their responsibilities, the Executive Directors can
delegate and assign appropriate functions and responsibilities to the
Senior Management personnel while retaining overall control and
responsibility.
Explanation for
departure

:

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:

4

Intended Outcome
Every company is headed by a board, which assumes responsibility for the company’s
leadership and is collectively responsible for meeting the objectives and goals of the company.
Practice 1.2
A Chairman of the board who is responsible for instilling good corporate governance practices,
leadership and effectiveness of the board is appointed.
Application

:

Applied

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

The Chairman of the Board, namely Y. Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ (Dr) Abdul Aziz
bin Abdul Rahman, who is an Independent Non-Executive Director, has
been entrusted by the Board to:

Explanation for
departure



lead the Board, facilitate effective contribution by all Directors at
Board meetings, ensure that no individual Board member
dominates discussions and that appropriate discussions and
opinions amongst members of the Board are forthcoming;



represent the Board at shareholders’ meeting by chairing General
Meetings of shareholders and represent the Board in public
relations exercises and other events relating to the Group;



oversee the efficient organization and conduct of the Board,
including the setting of agenda for Board meetings, in consultation
with the Executive Directors, chair Board meetings and ensure that
the Board acts in accordance with regulatory requirements on the
conduct of Director;



ensure all Directors receive accurate, timely and quality
information to enable them to discharge their duties. All directors
are entitled to request additional information where they consider
such information necessary to make informed decisions;



consider the views of shareholders, which are to be communicated
to the Board as a whole and that governance and strategy issue are
discussed with major shareholders.

:

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:
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Intended Outcome
Every company is headed by a board, which assumes responsibility for the company’s
leadership and is collectively responsible for meeting the objectives and goals of the company.
Practice 1.3
The positions of Chairman and CEO are held by different individuals.
Application

:

Applied

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

The Board Chairman is Y. Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ (Dr) Abdul Aziz bin Abdul
Rahman, an Independent Non-Executive Director, whilst the Managing
Director (Chief Executive) is Y. Bhg. Dato’ Seri Yong Tu Sang. Their roles
and responsibilities are well segregated.

Explanation for
departure

:

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:

6

Intended Outcome
Every company is headed by a board, which assumes responsibility for the company’s
leadership and is collectively responsible for meeting the objectives and goals of the company.
Practice 1.4
The board is supported by a suitably qualified and competent Company Secretary to provide
sound governance advice, ensure adherence to rules and procedures, and advocate adoption
of corporate governance best practices.
Application

:

Applied

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

The Company has 3 Company Secretaries, namely Mr. Chong Seok Tian,
(MIA 2502), Mary Margret A/P V. Pelly (LS 04402) and Wong Youn Kim
(MAICSA 7018778). All three are qualified under Section 235 of the
Companies Act 2016. Mr Chong is an in-house Company Secretary
whilst the other 2 are from an outsourced secretarial firm.
During the year under review, Mr Chong was in attendance for all the
Board and Board Committee meetings.

Explanation for
departure

:

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:
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Intended Outcome
Every company is headed by a board, which assumes responsibility for the company’s
leadership and is collectively responsible for meeting the objectives and goals of the company.
Practice 1.5
Directors receive meeting materials, which are complete and accurate within a reasonable
period prior to the meeting. Upon conclusion of the meeting, the minutes are circulated in a
timely manner.
Application

:

Applied

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

Notice of meeting, together with the relevant papers for the agenda, is
normally issued in time for the Directors to be apprised of the items to
be discussed. There is no policy specifying a set target of notification
period. Minutes of meeting taken by the Company Secretary are
communicated to the Chairman of meeting for any amendments before
circulating the Board members for confirmation.

Explanation for
departure

:

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:

8

Intended Outcome
There is demarcation of responsibilities between the board, board committees and
management.
There is clarity in the authority of the board, its committees and individual directors.
Practice 2.1
The board has a board charter which is periodically reviewed and published on the company’s
website. The board charter clearly identifies–
 the respective roles and responsibilities of the board, board committees, individual
directors and management; and
 issues and decisions reserved for the board.
Application

:

Applied

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

The Board has formalised a Board Charter, last revised in November
2017, setting out clearly the roles of the Board, Board Committees,
Executive Directors, Board Chairman and other members of the Board.
The Board Charter sets out the roles and responsibilities of the Board as
follows:

Reviewing and approving of corporate strategies and plans,
monitoring their implementations through the annual budget
and financial plans;


Overseeing and monitoring the conduct and performance of
the Company’s and Group’s businesses;



Overseeing the process for identifying principal risks and
putting in place appropriate control systems, monitoring and
reporting mechanism to effectively monitor and manager these
risks;



Appointing and assessing the performance of the Executive
Directors and overseeing succession plans for the Senior
Management team;



Overseeing the development and implementation of a
shareholder communication policy for enhancing and
protection of the reputation of the BTM Group;



Reviewing and overseeing the adequacy and the integrity of the
management information and control system of the BTM
Group; and



Establishing a corporate culture which engenders ethical
conduct and behaviour.

The Board has reserved the following items for their deliberation and
decision to ensure the direction and control of the Company are in its
hands:

Acquisition of Business and Investments;


Divestments and Disposals of Business and Investments;
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Overseas Equity Venture;



Corporate Finance and Proposals;



Terms of key or main agreements not within the ordinary
course of business;



Acquisition and Disposal of Properties;



Acquisition and Disposal of Fixed assets, other than Properties,
amounting up to RM2,000,000 and above; and



Bank borrowing and finance arrangements.

The roles and responsibilities of the Executive Directors are:


Overall responsibility for the business units and da-to-day
management of the Group, organisational effectiveness and
implementation of Board policies, strategies and decisions;



The development (in conjunction with the Board) and
implementation of short, medium and long term corporate
strategies for the Group, preparing business plans and report
with Senior Management and reporting or presenting to the
Board on current and future initiatives;



Providing leadership, supervision and control in managing a
team of Senior Management Executives responsible for all
functions contributing to the success of the Group;



Overseeing that the Group has the appropriate risk
management practices and policies in place;



The assessment of business opportunities which are of
potential benefits to the Group;



Bringing material and other relevant matters to the attention of
the Board in a timely manner;



Overseeing shareholders’ communications;



Appointing and, where appropriate, removing Senior
Management, including the Chief Financial Officer and the
Company Secretary, with the approval of the Board;



Evaluating the performance of Senior Management executives;



Overseeing that the objectives as standards of performance of
the Company are understood by the Management and
employees;



Overseeing that the operational planning and control system
are in place;



Monitoring performance results, where necessary;



Overseeing that the Group’s Financial Reports are drawn up in
accordance with the relevant accounting standards and comply
with all requirements of Bursa Malaysia Main Market Listing
Requirements and the Companies Act 2016;
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Directing and monitoring all aspects business operations in a
cost-effective manner;



Effectively overseeing the human resource needs of the Group
and key positions in the Group’s management structures,
including succession planning and talent retention are
adequately addressed;



Overseeing the Group’s corporate identity, products and
services are of acceptable standards and reflective of the
market environment in which the Group operates in; and



Assisting the Non-Executive Chairman in providing quality and
timely information flows to the Board for establishing the
agenda for Board and Committee meetings.

The roles and responsibilities of the Board Chairman are to:


lead the Board, facilitate effective contribution by all Directors at
Board meetings, ensure that no individual Board member
dominates discussions and that appropriate discussions and
opinions amongst members of the Board are forthcoming;



represent the Board at shareholders’ meeting by chairing General
Meetings of shareholders and represent the Board in public
relations exercises and other events relating to the Group;



oversee the efficient organization and conduct of the Board,
including the setting of agenda for Board meetings, in consultation
with the Executive Directors;



ensure all Directors receive accurate, timely and quality
information to enable them to discharge their duties. All directors
are entitled to request additional information where they consider
such information necessary to make informed decisions;



ensure new Directors receive a full, formal and tailored induction
on joining the Board. The letter of appointment should set out the
Director’s estimated time commitment;
 ensure that the Directors continually update their skills, knowledge
and familiar with the Company’s operations so as to fulfil their
roles both on the Board and Board Committees;


promotes constructive and respectful relations between Directors,
and between the Board and Management; and



consider the views of shareholders, which are to be communicated
to the Board as a whole and that governance and strategy issue are
discussed with major shareholders.

The Board Charter will be uploaded on the Company’s website in due
course.
Explanation for
departure

:
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Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:
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Intended Outcome
The board is committed to promoting good business conduct and maintaining a healthy
corporate culture that engenders integrity, transparency and fairness.
The board, management, employees and other stakeholders are clear on what is considered
acceptable behaviour and practice in the company.
Practice 3.1
The board establishes a Code of Conduct and Ethics for the company, and together with
management implements its policies and procedures, which include managing conflicts of
interest, preventing the abuse of power, corruption, insider trading and money laundering.
The Code of Conduct and Ethics is published on the company’s website.
Application

:

Applied

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

The Board has adopted a Code of Ethics and Conduct for Company
Directors to enhance the standards of Corporate Governance and
Behaviour as a guide for the Directors and key management personnel.
The document will be uploaded on the Company’s website in due
course.

Explanation for
departure

:

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:
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Intended Outcome
The board is committed to promoting good business conduct and maintaining a healthy
corporate culture that engenders integrity, transparency and fairness.
The board, management, employees and other stakeholders are clear on what is considered
acceptable behaviour and practice in the company.
Practice 3.2
The board establishes, reviews and together with management implements policies and
procedures on whistleblowing.
Application

:

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

Explanation for
departure

:

Departure

Policies and procedures on whistleblowing have yet to be formalised in
writing.

Although the Board has yet to formalize in writing a Code of Conduct
for Directors and employees of the Group, it has been the practice for
Senior Management to disseminate to employees of the Group on what
constitutes unacceptable behaviour or conduct.
Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

The Board will take steps to formalise in writing pertinent policies and
procedures on whistleblowing.

Timeframe

:

Within 1 year
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Intended Outcome
Board decisions are made objectively in the best interests of the company taking into account
diverse perspectives and insights.
Practice 4.1
At least half of the board comprises independent directors. For Large Companies, the board
comprises a majority independent directors.
Application

:

Applied

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

The Board comprises seven (7) Directors – two (2) Executive Directors,
Three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors, one (1) NonIndependent Non-Executive Director as well as an Alternate Director to
the Non-Independent Non-Executive Director. As the Alternate Director
is not taken into consideration to determine composition of Board, the
current composition fulfils the Practice.

Explanation for
departure

:

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:

15

Intended Outcome
Board decisions are made objectively in the best interests of the company taking into account
diverse perspectives and insights.
Practice 4.2
The tenure of an independent director does not exceed a cumulative term limit of nine years.
Upon completion of the nine years, an independent director may continue to serve on the
board as a non-independent director.
If the board intends to retain an independent director beyond nine years, it should justify and
seek annual shareholders’ approval. If the board continues to retain the independent director
after the twelfth year, the board should seek annual shareholders’ approval through a two-tier
voting process.
Application

:

Applied - Two Tier Voting

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

The Company has on its Board two (2) Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Y. Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ (Dr) Abdul Aziz bin Abdul
Rahman and Mr. Choong Show Tong, who have served as Independent
Directors for more than twelve (12) years as at end of the financial year
under review. The Board has assessed their suitability to continue as
Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company for the ensuing
year and, accordingly, has recommended for their continuance via the
two-tier voting process at the forthcoming AGM of the Company
scheduled in May 2018. The justifications by the Board for their
continuance as Independent Non-Executive Directors are set out in the
Notice of AGM.

Explanation for
departure

:

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:
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Intended Outcome
Board decisions are made objectively in the best interests of the company taking into account
diverse perspectives and insights.
Practice 4.3 - Step Up
The board has a policy which limits the tenure of its independent directors to nine years.
Application

:

Explanation on
adoption of the
practice

:

Not Adopted
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Intended Outcome
Board decisions are made objectively in the best interests of the company taking into account
diverse perspectives and insights.
Practice 4.4
Appointment of board and senior management are based on objective criteria, merit and with
due regard for diversity in skills, experience, age, cultural background and gender.
Application

:

Applied

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

Although the Board has not formalized in writing a Board Diversity
Policy, it has always reviewed diversity in the Board and Senior
Management and, for the financial year under review, the following
were observed by the Board:

Explanation for
departure



diversity in the Boardroom is an essential factor in ensuring an
effective and well-functioning Board;



the Board should comprise Directors from a diverse background –
based on their profiles in the Annual Report, it can be seen that the
current Directors possess diverse background, skills and
experience;



Directors’ age ranges from those in their 30s to those in their 80s;



one Board member is female and her alternate is also a female;
and



the Directors are drawn from different ethnic, cultural and socialeconomic background and are sufficiently diverse to ensure that
different viewpoints are considered in the decision-making
process.

:

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:
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Intended Outcome
Board decisions are made objectively in the best interests of the company taking into account
diverse perspectives and insights.
Practice 4.5
The board discloses in its annual report the company’s policies on gender diversity, its targets
and measures to meet those targets. For Large Companies, the board must have at least 30%
women directors.
Application

:

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

Explanation for
departure

:

Departure

The Board does not have a specific policy for setting targets for
women, ethnic or age composition on the Board.

Evaluation of suitability of candidates is based on the candidates’
competency, character, time availability, integrity and experience in
meeting the Company’s needs. The Board constantly advocates fair and
equal participation and opportunity for all individuals of the right
calibre.
Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:
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Intended Outcome
Board decisions are made objectively in the best interests of the company taking into account
diverse perspectives and insights.
Practice 4.6
In identifying candidates for appointment of directors, the board does not solely rely on
recommendations from existing board members, management or major shareholders. The
board utilises independent sources to identify suitably qualified candidates.
Application

:

Applied

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

There has been no new addition to the Board for the last 7 years as the
last appointment was in 2010. Whenever a need for new appointments
of non-executive director, the Board will strive to utilise independent
sources to look for suitable candidates.

Explanation for
departure

:

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:
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Intended Outcome
Board decisions are made objectively in the best interests of the company taking into account
diverse perspectives and insights.
Practice 4.7
The Nominating Committee is chaired by an Independent Director or the Senior Independent
Director.
Application

:

Applied

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

The Chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Choong Show Tong,
an Independent Non-Executive Director.

Explanation for
departure

:

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:
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Intended Outcome
Stakeholders are able to form an opinion on the overall effectiveness of the board and
individual directors.
Practice 5.1
The board should undertake a formal and objective annual evaluation to determine the
effectiveness of the board, its committees and each individual director. The board should
disclose how the assessment was carried out and its outcome.
For Large Companies, the board engages independent experts periodically to facilitate
objective and candid board evaluations.
Application

:

Departure

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

Explanation for
departure

:

Measure

:

Formal assessment criteria will be used for the assessment with the
assessment results documented and kept by the Company Secretary.

Timeframe

:

Within 1 year

Although an assessment was carried out, it was focused on those
Directors retiring by rotation, i.e. to consider their suitability for reelection before the Board proposes to shareholders for decision.
The current process does not serve as an alternative practice. As such,
the Board will formalise an assessment process to cover the
effectiveness of the Board, the Board Committees and individual
Directors, including the independence of Independent Non-Executive
Directors. The assessment process will consider the Corporate
Governance Guide 3rd Edition issued by Bursa Malaysia Berhad.
Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
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Intended Outcome
The level and composition of remuneration of directors and senior management take into
account the company’s desire to attract and retain the right talent in the board and senior
management to drive the company’s long-term objectives.
Remuneration policies and decisions are made through a transparent and independent
process.
Practice 6.1
The board has in place policies and procedures to determine the remuneration of directors
and senior management, which takes into account the demands, complexities and
performance of the company as well as skills and experience required. The policies and
procedures are periodically reviewed and made available on the company’s website.
Application

:

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

Explanation for
departure

:

Departure

The Board has yet to formalise in writing pertinent policies and
procedures for the remuneration of Directors and Senior Management.
It is the practice of the Remuneration Committee to review the existing
remuneration packages of Executive Directors and recommend to the
Board any changes thereto. The remuneration packages of Executive
Directors would normally take into account the individual Director’s
performance and experience, including the Director’s responsibilities
for the Group

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:

The Board is aware of the need to formalise in writing pertinent
policies and procedures on the remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management and will take measures to document the same for
uploading on the Company’s website
Within 1 year
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Intended Outcome
The level and composition of remuneration of directors and senior management take into
account the company’s desire to attract and retain the right talent in the board and senior
management to drive the company’s long-term objectives.
Remuneration policies and decisions are made through a transparent and independent
process.
Practice 6.2
The board has a Remuneration Committee to implement its policies and procedures on
remuneration including reviewing and recommending matters relating to the remuneration of
board and senior management.
The Committee has written Terms of Reference which deals with its authority and duties and
these Terms are disclosed on the company’s website.
Application

:

Applied

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee comprising 3
Independent Non-Executive Directors to provide assistance to the
Board to oversee matters relating to the remuneration packages of
Directors. This will be expanded to cover Remuneration packages of
Senior Management. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee will be accordingly amended to cater for this expanded
coverage and thereafter be uploaded on the Company’s website in due
course.

Explanation for
departure

:

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:
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Intended Outcome
Stakeholders are able to assess whether the remuneration of directors and senior
management is commensurate with their individual performance, taking into consideration the
company’s performance.
Practice 7.1
There is detailed disclosure on named basis for the remuneration of individual directors. The
remuneration breakdown of individual directors includes fees, salary, bonus, benefits in-kind
and other emoluments.
Application

:

Applied

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

The Executive Directors and Alternate Director are paid salaries and
allowances while the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors
comprises solely fees. The Board ensures that the remuneration for
Independent Non-Executive Directors do not conflict with their
obligation to bring objectivity and independent judgement on matters
discussed at Board meetings.
The aggregate remuneration of Directors received from the Company
and on Group basis for the financial year ended 31 December 2017 is as
follows:
Received from Company
Name of Director Salaries
Fees
(RM’000) (RM’000)
Executive
Directors
Y. Bhg. Dato’ Seri
240.0
Yong Tu Sang
Mr. Yong Hin
87.6
Siong
Non-Executive
Directors
Independent
Y. Bhg. Tan Sri
Dato’ (Dr) Abdul
Aziz bin Abdul
Rahman
Mr. Choong
Show Tong
Y. Bhg. Datuk Haji
Mohamed Iqbal
bin M.M.
Mohamed Ganey

Others
(RM’000)

Total
(RM’000)

153.0

393.0

19.0

106.6

-

30.0

-

30.0

-

30.0

-

30.0

-

30.0

-

30.0
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NonIndependent
Madam Yong
Emmy
Madam Yong
Ellen (Alternate
to Madam Yong
Emmy)
Total

-

30.0
75.6

403.2

-

120.0

-

30.0
68.0

143.6

240.0

763.2

*The remuneration paid to the Executive Directors were in respect of their
employment with the Company/Group.

Explanation for
departure

:

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:
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Intended Outcome
Stakeholders are able to assess whether the remuneration of directors and senior
management is commensurate with their individual performance, taking into consideration the
company’s performance.
Practice 7.2
The board discloses on a named basis the top five senior management’s remuneration
component including salary, bonus, benefits in-kind and other emoluments in bands of
RM50,000.
Application

:

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

Explanation for
departure

:

Measure

:

Timeframe

:

Departure

The Remuneration Committee and the Board are of the view that
disclosing the top 5 Senior Management’s remuneration on a named
basis in bands of RM50,000 according to salaries, bonuses, benefits-inkind and other emoluments would be disadvantageous to the Group’s
business interest, given the highly competitive conditions in the
industry the Group operates where poaching of executives is
commonplace.
As an Alternative, the Remuneration Committee and the Board believe
the disclosure of Senior Management’s remuneration, that includes the
top 5 key Senior Management, in the audited financial statements are
adequate as it complies with the requirements of Paragraph 17 of MFRS
124 “Related Party Disclosures”. It is the Board’s practice to structure
the compensation and benefits packages for Group’s Senior
Management competitively in order to attract, motivate and retain
talents
Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
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Intended Outcome
Stakeholders are able to assess whether the remuneration of directors and senior
management is commensurate with their individual performance, taking into consideration the
company’s performance.
Practice 7.3 - Step Up
Companies are encouraged to fully disclose the detailed remuneration of each member of
senior management on a named basis.
Application

:

Explanation on
adoption of the
practice

:

Not Adopted
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Intended Outcome
There is an effective and independent Audit Committee.
The board is able to objectively review the Audit Committee’s findings and recommendations.
The company’s financial statement is a reliable source of information.
Practice 8.1
The Chairman of the Audit Committee is not the Chairman of the board.
Application

:

Applied

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

At the date of this Statement, the Chair of the Audit Committee and
Chair of the Board are helmed by 2 different Independent NonExecutive Directors.

Explanation for
departure

:

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:
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Intended Outcome
There is an effective and independent Audit Committee.
The board is able to objectively review the Audit Committee’s findings and recommendations.
The company’s financial statement is a reliable source of information.
Practice 8.2
The Audit Committee has a policy that requires a former key audit partner to observe a coolingoff period of at least two years before being appointed as a member of the Audit Committee.
Application

:

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

Explanation for
departure

:

Departure

The Audit Committee has yet to formalise such a policy.
There has not been any new appointment to the Board for the past 7
years, let alone an appointment of a former key audit partner.

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

The Audit Committee will be developing a policy that requires a
former key audit partner to observe a cooling-off period of at least
two (2) years before being appointed as a member of the Audit
Committee. This policy, once approved by the Board, will be included
in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

Timeframe

:

Within 1 year
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Intended Outcome
There is an effective and independent Audit Committee.
The board is able to objectively review the Audit Committee’s findings and recommendations.
The company’s financial statement is a reliable source of information.
Practice 8.3
The Audit Committee has policies and procedures to assess the suitability, objectivity and
independence of the external auditor.
Application

:

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

Explanation for
departure

:

Measure

:

Timeframe

:

Departure

There is no formal process deployed to assess the suitability, objectivity
and independence of the external auditors, including documentation of
assessment conducted and the outcome thereof.
Assessment of the suitability, objectivity and independence of the
external auditors was informally carried out and also based upon
representation by the external auditors.
Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Going forward, the Audit Committee will formalise criteria to be used
in the assessment, including pertinent documentation to support its
recommendation to the Board. To augment this process, the Audit
Committee will develop a policy on the types of non-audit services
permitted to be provided by the external auditors and/or their
affiliates, including the need to obtain the Audit Committee’s approval
for such services so as not to compromise the professional
independence and objectivity of the external auditors.
Within 1 year

31

Intended Outcome
There is an effective and independent Audit Committee.
The board is able to objectively review the Audit Committee’s findings and recommendations.
The company’s financial statement is a reliable source of information.
Practice 8.4 - Step Up
The Audit Committee should comprise solely of Independent Directors.
Application

:

Adopted

Explanation on
adoption of the
practice

:

All the three (3) members of the Audit Committee comprise
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Tan Sri Dato’ (Dr) Abdul
Aziz bin Abdul Rahman, Mr. Choong Show Tong and Y. Bhg. Datuk Haji
Mohamed Iqbal bin M.M. Mohamed Ganey.
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Intended Outcome
There is an effective and independent Audit Committee.
The board is able to objectively review the Audit Committee’s findings and recommendations.
The company’s financial statement is a reliable source of information.
Practice 8.5
Collectively, the Audit Committee should possess a wide range of necessary skills to
discharge its duties. All members should be financially literate and are able to understand
matters under the purview of the Audit Committee including the financial reporting process.
All members of the Audit Committee should undertake continuous professional development
to keep themselves abreast of relevant developments in accounting and auditing standards,
practices and rules.
Application

:

Applied

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

All the three (3) Audit Committee members are considered financial
literate in view of their background and professional training. Refer to
the Annual Report for their profiles. For details of their training, refer to
the Corporate Governance Overview Statement in the Annual Report.

Explanation for
departure

:

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:
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Intended Outcome
Companies make informed decisions about the level of risk they want to take and implement
necessary controls to pursue their objectives.
The board is provided with reasonable assurance that adverse impact arising from a
foreseeable future event or situation on the company’s objectives is mitigated and managed.
Practice 9.1
The board should establish an effective risk management and internal control framework.
Application

:

Applied

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound system of
risk management and internal control of the Group that provides
reasonable assurance on effective and efficient business operations,
compliance with laws and regulations as well as internal procedures and
guidelines.
The Audit Committee assists the Board in reviewing the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the system of risk management and internal
control in the Group. The Audit Committee does this via the
deployment of an independent outsourced internal audit function,
namely Baker Tilly Monteiro Heng Governance Sdn Bhd, that conducts
internal audit based on an internal audit plan approved by the Audit
Committee. Findings raised from internal audit are presented directly
to the Audit Committee, including the remedial measures and action
plans agreed by Management to address the matters so highlighted. For
more details of the Internal Audit function, refer to the Statement on
Risk Management and Internal Control which is included in the Annual
Report of the Company.

Explanation for
departure

:

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:
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Intended Outcome
Companies make informed decisions about the level of risk they want to take and implement
necessary controls to pursue their objectives.
The board is provided with reasonable assurance that adverse impact arising from a
foreseeable future event or situation on the company’s objectives is mitigated and managed.
Practice 9.2
The board should disclose the features of its risk management and internal control framework,
and the adequacy and effectiveness of this framework.
Application

:

Applied

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

The key features of the Group’s risk management and internal control
framework are set out in the Statement on Risk Management and
Internal Control included in the Annual Report of the Company

Explanation for
departure

:

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:
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Intended Outcome
Companies make informed decisions about the level of risk they want to take and implement
necessary controls to pursue their objectives.
The board is provided with reasonable assurance that adverse impact arising from a
foreseeable future event or situation on the company’s objectives is mitigated and managed.
Practice 9.3 - Step Up
The board establishes a Risk Management Committee, which comprises a majority of
independent directors, to oversee the company’s risk management framework and policies.
Application

:

Adopted

Explanation on
adoption of the
practice

:

The Board has established a Risk Management Committee, comprising
wholly Independent Non-Executive Directors although the terms of
reference have yet to be formalised.
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Intended Outcome
Companies have an effective governance, risk management and internal control framework
and stakeholders are able to assess the effectiveness of such a framework.
Practice 10.1
The Audit Committee should ensure that the internal audit function is effective and able to
function independently.
Application

:

Applied

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

The Company outsourced its internal audit function to an independent
professional firm, namely Baker Tilly Monteiro Heng Governance Sdn.
Bhd. The internal audit function is independent of the activities it audits
as well as independent of Management. During the financial year under
review, the internal audit function carried out a follow-up review of the
system of internal control of a key subsidiary in the Group based on its
initial report issued to the Group in February 2017. The internal audit
function also conducted a review of the corporate governance practices
of the Company. A report was issued to the Audit Committee on the list
of observations for improvements, together with recommendations.
For more details on the internal audit function, refer to the Audit
Committee Report and the Statement on Risk Management and
Internal Control set out in the Annual report of the Company.

Explanation for
departure

:

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:
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Intended Outcome
Companies have an effective governance, risk management and internal control framework
and stakeholders are able to assess the effectiveness of such a framework.
Practice 10.2
The board should disclose–
 whether internal audit personnel are free from any relationships or conflicts of interest,
which could impair their objectivity and independence;
 the number of resources in the internal audit department;
 name and qualification of the person responsible for internal audit; and
 whether the internal audit function is carried out in accordance with a recognised
framework.
Application

:

Applied

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

The Internal Audit function is currently outsourced to an independent
professional firm and reports functionally to the Audit Committee of the
Board. This reporting relationship promotes independence and
objectivity, which assures adequate consideration of audit
recommendations and planned suggestive corrective actions. The
activities of the Internal Auditor are guided by Annual Internal Audit
Plan that are presented to and approved by the Audit Committee.
The Internal Audit function is carried out in accordance with the riskbased approach and the Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued
by The Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of Treadway
Commission. The Head of Internal Audit function, is a chartered
member of the IIA Malaysia and he was graduated with Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and also a Member of the Malaysian
Institute of Accountants. He is supported by adequate staff resources
to complete the internal audit assignments according to the approved
Internal Audit Plan.

Explanation for
departure

:

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:
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Intended Outcome
There is continuous communication between the company and stakeholders to facilitate
mutual understanding of each other’s objectives and expectations.
Stakeholders are able to make informed decisions with respect to the business of the
company, its policies on governance, the environment and social responsibility.
Practice 11.1
The board ensures there is effective, transparent and regular communication with its
stakeholders.
Application

:

Applied

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

The Board recognizes the importance of being transparent and
accountable to the Company’s stakeholders and acknowledges the
continuous communication between the Company and stakeholders
would facilitate mutual understanding of each other’s objectives and
expectations. As such, the Board consistently ensures the supply of
clear, comprehensive and timely information to stakeholders via
various disclosures and announcements, including quarterly and annual
financial results, which provide investors with up-to-date financial
information of the Group. All these announcements and other
information about the Company are available on the Company’s
website at www.btmresources.com.my which shareholders, investors
and the public may access.
In addition, the Directors also ensure that engagement with
shareholders occurs at least once a year during the AGM to better
understand their needs and obtain their feedback.

Explanation for
departure

:

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:
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Intended Outcome
There is continuous communication between the company and stakeholders to facilitate
mutual understanding of each other’s objectives and expectations.
Stakeholders are able to make informed decisions with respect to the business of the
company, its policies on governance, the environment and social responsibility.
Practice 11.2
Large companies are encouraged to adopt integrated reporting based on a globally
recognised framework.
Application

:

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

Explanation for
departure

:

Departure

The Company is not a large company
Not applicable

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:
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Intended Outcome
Shareholders are able to participate, engage the board and senior management effectively
and make informed voting decisions at General Meetings.
Practice 12.1
Notice for an Annual General Meeting should be given to the shareholders at least 28 days
prior to the meeting.
Application

:

Applied

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

The notice for the 23rd AGM held on 30 May 2017 was issued by the
Company on 28 April 2017, effectively giving shareholders 31 clear days
to review the annual report for any questions they might wish to raise.

Explanation for
departure

:

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:
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Intended Outcome
Shareholders are able to participate, engage the board and senior management effectively
and make informed voting decisions at General Meetings.
Practice 12.2
All directors attend General Meetings. The Chair of the Audit, Nominating, Risk Management
and other committees provide meaningful response to questions addressed to them.
Application

:

Applied

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

At the last AGM held on 30 May 201, all the Directors (including the
chair of the Board Committees) were present in person to engage
directly with, and were accountable to, the shareholders for their
stewardship of the Company. During the AGM, shareholders
participated in deliberating resolutions being proposed or on the
Group’s operations in general. The Directors and Senior Management
appropriately responded to all questions raised and provided
clarification as required by the shareholders.

Explanation for
departure

:

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
Measure

:

Timeframe

:
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Intended Outcome
Shareholders are able to participate, engage the board and senior management effectively
and make informed voting decisions at General Meetings.
Practice 12.3
Listed companies with a large number of shareholders or which have meetings in remote
locations should leverage technology to facilitate–
 including voting in absentia; and
 remote shareholders’ participation at General Meetings.
Application

:

Explanation on
application of the
practice

:

Explanation for
departure

:

Measure

:

Timeframe

:

Departure

The number of shareholders of the Company is not considered large and
AGMs are not held at remote locations deterring participation by
shareholders.
The Company allows shareholders to appoint proxies to represent them
if they are unable to attend personally. Moreover, AGMs are normally
held in cities, the last AGM was held in Petaling Jaya which was
accessible by most shareholders.
Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged
to complete the columns below.
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SECTION B – DISCLOSURES ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES PERSUANT
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GUIDELINES ISSUED BY BANK NEGARA MALAYSIA
Disclosures in this section are pursuant to Appendix 4 (Corporate Governance Disclosures)
of the Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by Bank Negara Malaysia. This section is
only applicable for financial institutions or any other institutions that are listed on the Exchange
that are required to comply with the above Guidelines.
Click here to enter text.
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